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The Company’s Code of Ethical Conduct can be accessed on our website at www.Teaminc.com.

This Code encompasses our Core Values, which are:
Safety First/Quality Always - In everything we do
Integrity — Uncompromising standards of integrity and ethical conduct
Service Leadership - Leading service quality, professionalism and responsiveness
Innovation - Supports continuous growth and improvement

Pride and Respect - For our customers, for each other and for all our stakeholders

Teamwork - Global teamwork and collaboration




April 12, 2018
Dear Shareholders,

2017 was a year of challenges and opportunities as we continued to face headwinds from soft end markets and customer
spending deferrals—as well as two Gulf Coast hurricanes that affected many of our customers and employees. We are
thankful that both our customers and employees persevered through these natural disasters, and we are encouraged by
signals of a market turnaround experienced in the latter part of the year. In fact, we ended the year with our best quarterly
earnings performance of 2017, including:

¢ Consolidated revenues of $316.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2017 were the highest of the year;

e Consolidated net loss improved to breakeven in the fourth quarter of 2017 from a net loss of $9.4 million in the
fourth quarter of 2016;

e Quest Integrity revenues increased 21% in the fourth quarter of 2017 compared to prior year same quarter; full year
2017 revenues of $82 million were an annual record; and

e All business segments achieved their highest Adjusted EBITDA? performance of the year in the fourth quarter and
highest since the second quarter of 2016.

Now, | would like to share some insights from my first few months as Chief Executive Officer in terms of key priorities:

1. Safety and Quality. As part of our first core value, Safety First, Quality Always, we are committed to achieving the
highest standard of safety in the industry. In 2018, we are refreshing our safety programs and empowering and
incentivizing our employees to deliver improved safety performance across all of our operations and business
segments.

2. People. We have a talented group of loyal, hard-working and experienced people across our branches, business
units, manufacturing and engineering teams and technology centers. They take pride in their work and have
embraced our mission of continuous improvement in execution excellence.

3. Improve operating performance. We have the broadest service offering in the industrial services market. We will
continue to ensure our service line execution is standardized across our operations network to achieve the highest
quality for our customers, regardless of location.

4. Financial performance and balance sheet. While we are encouraged by the profitability improvements in the fourth
quarter, we remain focused on continued improvements to profitability, cash flows and debt balance reduction. We
are monitoring short-term results and developing longer-term strategic initiatives to improve our cost structure and
to leverage the scale of the Company. Further, we recently announced an amendment to our credit facility that
enhances our liquidity and financial flexibility.

Recent Operational Performance and Technology Developments

e Team Digital is our proprietary platform that maximizes quality and efficiency through digitally enabled workflows.
Our clients gain real-time visibility into inspection efficiencies, project planning and task status, enabling more rapid
business decisions and adherence to project scope and quality control. Utilizing the Team Digital platform, our clients
have experienced increased inspection efficiencies in their turnarounds of 20% to 30%.

e  Our parts manufacturing and engineering processes, in many cases, were technologically outdated, not cost effective
and led to extended delivery times. In the last few months, we have made strategic investments into manufacturing
equipment and lean processes, and have added subject matter experts to significantly improve our manufacturing
and engineering capabilities. These actions will allow us to produce parts more efficiently both in terms of speed and
cost, with a higher level of safety and quality control.

e Quest Integrity’s InVista™ in-line inspection service continues to gain global traction, with successful projects
completed in North America, Europe and Asia. The recent introduction of our two-inch in-line inspection tool and
further development of our portfolio to accommodate higher pressures and temperatures common in the offshore
environment have collectively expanded our addressable market.

1 Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. Please refer to our fourth quarter 2017 earnings press release included in our Current Report on Form
8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 14, 2018 for additional information.



Branding Strategy

We are now proactively accelerating the integration of our business segments under the TEAM brand. Going forward, we will
operate as TEAM and provide services through Team Mechanical Services, Team Inspection & Heat Treating, and Quest
Integrity. This new branding initiative will help to change the way we approach our customers and to influence our go-to-
market strategy.

Performance Improvement

In response to the softer and more volatile macro environment in 2017, Team took direct actions to reduce the overall cost
structure of the Company.
1. InJuly 2017, we launched Phase | of the performance improvement plan, which was completed during the second
half of the year. We reduced our costs by $30 million on an annualized basis from this phase.
2. In February 2018, along with our consultant, Alvarez & Marsal (A&M), we formally launched Phase Il or
“OneTEAM”, our business integration and transformation program.

OneTEAM leverages our existing strengths with an emphasis on safety, quality, service line delivery and addressable markets
to enhance profitability and cash flows.

OneTEAM consists of three key pillars:

1. Revenue Enhancement. We are developing plans to provide more of our services and products to existing clients
and geographies in order to increase total market share, expand and diversify to other industries and geographies
and improve our pricing and value positioning.

2. Operational Excellence. Our new operating model will reduce the administrative burden on operations, and allow
branch locations to enhance their focus on product and service delivery, safety, quality, customers and field
personnel.

3. Center-led Functional Support Cost Improvement. We will leverage Team’s size and scale through purchasing as
well as the introduction of innovative technologies and optimized processes to better support our branches more
efficiently and cost effectively.

Macroeconomic Outlook

The 2018 global and U.S. GDP outlook suggests year-over-year growth. The external data for 2018 industrial plant spending
projects a 4% to 5% increase over 2017, driven partially by more stable oil prices. Team also expects improvements in 2018,
as evidenced by positive early indicators of both turnaround and project activity levels. And because our employees’ success
should align directly with our shareholders, we have established our 2018 incentive compensation plan based on these
improved market expectations, with targets for revenue, profitability and cash flows.

We continue to instill a strong culture of safety, management discipline and accountability, while taking proactive steps to
stabilize and improve our overall business performance. We are focused on integrating and transforming the organization by
leveraging our strengths—our people, technology, scale and blue-chip customer base. Our goal is to create an organization
that is more efficient and cost effective to drive growth and profitability. | am proud of the resolve and accomplishments of
our employees, customers and shareholders during 2017, and am honored to have the opportunity to lead an outstanding
team as we embark on a new chapter for Team — driving execution excellence.

Thank you for your continued support.

Sincerely,

Amerino Gatti
Chief Executive Officer
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes 0 No M

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates on June 30, 2017 was approximately $580 million, determined using the closing
price of shares of common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on that date of $23.45.

For purposes for the foregoing calculation only, all directors, executive officers, the Team, Inc. Salary Deferral Plan and Trust and known 10% or greater
beneficial owners have been deemed affiliates.

The Registrant had 29,987,116 shares of common stock, par value $0.30, outstanding as of March 8, 2018.

Documents Incorporated by Reference
Portions of our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated by reference into Part III of this report.
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Certain items required in Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K can be found in our 2018 Proxy Statement and are
incorporated herein by reference. A copy of the 2018 Proxy Statement will be provided, without charge, to any person who receives
a copy of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and submits a written request to Team, Inc., Attn: Corporate Secretary, 13131 Dairy
Ashford, Suite 600, Sugar Land, Texas 77478.

PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General Information

9 ¢ 99 ¢ 99 <

Introduction. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms “Team, Inc.,” “Team,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” are used
in this report to refer to Team, Inc., to one or more of our consolidated subsidiaries or to all of them taken as a whole. We incorporated
in the State of Delaware on October 20, 2006 and our company website can be found at www.teaminc.com. Our corporate
headquarters is located at 13131 Dairy Ashford, Suite 600, Sugar Land, Texas, 77478 and our telephone number is (281) 331-6154.
Our stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “TISI.” On November 10, 2015, we announced
a change of our fiscal year end to December 31 of each calendar year from May 31.

We are a leading provider of standard to specialty industrial services, including inspection, engineering assessment and
mechanical repair and remediation required in maintaining high temperature and high pressure piping systems and vessels that
are utilized extensively in the refining, petrochemical, power, pipeline and other heavy industries. We conduct operations in three
segments: TeamQualspec Group (“TeamQualspec”) (formerly the Inspection and Heat Treating Services Group), TeamFurmanite
Group (“TeamFurmanite”) (formerly the Mechanical Services Group) and Quest Integrity (“Quest Integrity””). Through the
capabilities and resources in these three segments, we believe that Team is uniquely qualified to provide integrated solutions
involving in their most basic form, inspection to assess condition, engineering assessment to determine fitness for purpose in the
context of industry standards and regulatory codes and mechanical services to repair, rerate or replace based upon the client’s
election. In addition, the Company is capable of escalating with the client’s needs, as dictated by the severity of the damage found
and the related operating conditions, from standard services to some of the most advanced services and integrated integrity
management and asset reliability solutions available in the industry. We also believe that Team is unique in its ability to provide
services in three distinct client demand profiles: (i) turnaround or project services, (ii) call-out services and (iii) nested or run-
and-maintain services.

TeamQualspec provides standard and advanced non-destructive testing (“NDT”) services for the process, pipeline and power
sectors, pipeline integrity management services, field heat treating services, as well as associated engineering and assessment
services. These services can be offered while facilities are running (on-stream), during facility turnarounds or during new
construction or expansion activities.

TeamFurmanite, our mechanical services segment, provides primarily call-out and turnaround services under both on-stream
and off-line/shut down circumstances. Turnaround services are project-related and demand is a function of the number and scope
of scheduled and unscheduled facility turnarounds as well as new industrial facility construction or expansion activities. The
turnaround and call-out services TeamFurmanite provides include field machining, technical bolting, field valve repair, and isolation
test plugging services. On-stream services offered by TeamFurmanite represent the services offered while plants are operating and
under pressure. These services include leak repair, fugitive emissions control and hot tapping.

Quest Integrity provides integrity and reliability management solutions for the process, pipeline and power sectors. These
solutions encompass two broadly-defined disciplines: (1) highly specialized in-line inspection services for unpiggable process
piping and pipelines using proprietary in-line inspection tools and analytical software; and (2) advanced condition assessment
services through a multi-disciplined engineering team.

We offer these services globally through over 220 locations in 20 countries throughout the world with more than 7,300
employees. We market our services to companies in a diverse array of heavy industries which include the petrochemical, refining,
power, pipeline, steel, pulp and paper industries, as well as municipalities, shipbuilding, original equipment manufacturers
(“OEMSs”), distributors, and some of the world’s largest engineering and construction firms.

As previously announced, in September 2017, Ted W. Owen stepped down as Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Gary
G. Yesavage, a member of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), was appointed as Team’s Interim CEO to serve until a permanent
CEO was hired. Effective January 24, 2018, the Board named Amerino Gatti as CEO and a member of the Board.



Table of Contents

Narrative Description of Business
TeamQualspec Group:

TeamQualspec offers standard to specialty inspection services as well as heat treating services. Heat treating services are
generally associated with turnaround or project activities. A description of these services is as follows:

Non-Destructive Evaluation and Testing Services. Machined parts and industrial structures can be complex systems that
experience extreme loads and fatigue during their lifetime. Our Non-Destructive Evaluation (“NDE”), or Non-Destructive Testing
(“NDT”), enables the inspection of these components without permanently altering the equipment. It is a highly valuable technique
that is often used to validate the integrity of materials, detect instabilities, discover performance outside of tolerances, identify
failed components, or highlight an inadequate control system. Inspection services frequently require industry recognized training
and certification processes. We maintain training and certification programs, which are designed to meet or exceed industry
standards. As assets continue to age and compliance regulations advance, inspection techniques are playing a critical role in fit-
for-life service assessments.

Radiographic Testing. Radiographic Testing (“RT”) is used to detect discontinuities in ferrous and nonferrous castings,
welds or forgings using X-ray or gamma ray radiation. RT reveals both external and internal defects, internal assembly details
and changes in thickness. Our licensed technicians utilize conventional, computed and real-time radiography testing
techniques depending upon the complexity and needs of our customers.

Ultrasonic Testing. Ultrasonic Testing (“UT”) uses high frequency ultrasonic waves to detect surface breaking and internal
imperfections, measure material thickness and determine acceptance or rejection of a test object based on a reference code
or standard. We offer ten different types of UT methods, including traditional scans as well as automated and high speed
ultrasonic Electro Magnet Acoustic Transducer testing. Each method is utilized to meet a specific material or process
application requirement.

Magnetic Particle Inspection. Magnetic Particle Inspection is an NDT process for detecting surface and slightly subsurface
discontinuities in ferroelectric materials such as iron, nickel, cobalt, and some of their alloys. The process puts a magnetic
field into the test object. When the part is magnetized, flaws perpendicular to the magnetic field direction cause flux leakage.
If a lapse or a crack is present, the magnetic particles will be attracted to the flawed area, providing our technician with what
is called an indication. Our technician will then evaluate the indication to assess the location, size, shape and extent of these
imperfections.

Liquid Penetrant Inspection. Liquid Penetrant Inspection is one of the most widely used NDE/NDT methods. Its popularity
can be attributed to two main factors: its relative ease of use and its flexibility. Liquid Penetrant Inspection can be used to
inspect almost any material. At Team, we utilize Liquid Penetrant Inspection to detect surface discontinuities in both
ferromagnetic and non-ferromagnetic materials. In castings and forgings, there may be cracks or leaks in new products or
fatigue cracks in in-service components.

Positive Material Identification. Positive Material Identification (“PMI”) quickly and accurately identifies the composition
of more than 100 different engineering alloys onsite. Team can perform PMI on virtually any size or shape of pipe, plate,
weld, welding materials, machined parts or castings.

Electromagnetic Testing. Electromagnetic Testing applies to a family of test methods that use magnetism and electricity to
detect or measure cracks, flaws, corrosion or heat damage in conductive materials. Magnetic properties and geometric analysis
are used to determine the best technique to identify defects. Our electromagnetic services enable our technicians to evaluate
small cracks, pits, dents and general thinning in tubing with small diameters, large steel surfaces such as storage tank floors,
and everything in between.

Alternating Current Field Measurement. Originally developed for inspection of fatigue cracking, our Alternating Current
Field Measurement (“ACFM”) is an advanced technique for detecting surface cracks and pinpointing the location, length
and depth of the defect. Our ACFM works through paint and coatings and in a wide range of temperatures. Results are
automatically recorded and accepted by certification authorities.

Eddy Current Testing. Eddy Current Testing (“ECT”) is ideal for nonferrous materials such as heat exchanger tubes,
condensers, boilers, tubing and aircraft surfaces. Team’s ECT uses electromagnetic induction to detect flaws in conductive
materials, displaying the presence of very small cracks, pits, dents and general thinning.

Long-Range Guided Ultrasonics. Guided wave inspection is a method of ultrasonic testing that enables the detection and
location of pipe defects above and below ground without disruption of service. This technique only requires a small area of
excavation to perform the testing where applicable. Guided ultrasonics sends a bilateral signal over hundreds of feet allowing
long ranges of piping to be inspected at one time.
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Phased Array Ultrasonic Testing. Phased Array Ultrasonics (“PAUT”) provides sharper detection capability for off-angle
cracks and is capable of displaying multiple presentations simultaneously. PAUT applies computer-controlled excitation to
individual elements in a multi-element probe. By varying the timing of the excitation, the sound beam can be swept through
a range of angles. The shape of the beam may also be modified to a specific focal distance or spot.

Tank Inspection and Management Programs. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, TCI Services, Inc. (“TCI”), is a storage tank
management company that performs inspections, engineering and repair services across the United States (“U.S.”) for above
ground storage tanks. Backed by Team’s in-house engineering, documentation and certification services —including American
Petroleum Institute 653 evaluations — TCI’s on-site tank inspections, repair and maintenance services help keep customers’
tanks fully operational and compliant with stringent industry standards.

Rope Access. We provide a range of innovative and cost-effective solutions to suit the customer’s individual requirements
for inspection and maintenance services to the energy and industrial markets. Our rope access solutions allow for work to
be carried out more quickly than traditional methods using scaffolding, keeping costs and job duration to a minimum. We
provide these services under full accreditation by the Industrial Rope Access Trade Association, whose guidelines are
recognized by the industry as the safest method of working at height.

Mechanical Integrity Services. Maintaining the integrity of equipment is more than simply performing inspections. A well-
implemented Mechanical Integrity (“MI”’) program involves multiple components that improve the safety and reliability of
a facility’s equipment. Our MI programs are designed to ensure the continued integrity and fitness for service of piping
systems, pressure vessels, tanks and related components. We believe our mechanical integrity engineers are well versed in
pertinent codes and standards of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration’s (“OSHA”) process safety management
and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (the “EPA”) risk management program regulations.

Field Heat Treating Services. Field Heat Treating Services include electric resistance and gas-fired combustion, primarily
utilized by industrial customers to enhance the metallurgical properties of their process piping and equipment. Electric resistance
heating is the transfer of high energy power sources through attached heaters to the plant component to preheat weld joints, to
remove contaminants and moisture prior to welding, post-weld heat treatments and to relieve metal thermal stresses induced by
the welding process. Specialty heat treating processes are performed using gas-fired combustion on large pressure vessels for
stress relieving to bake specialty paint coatings and controlled drying of abrasion and temperature resistant refractories. Special
high frequency heating, commonly called induction heating, is used for expanding metal parts for assembly or disassembly,
expanding large bolting for industrial turbines and stress relieving projects which is cost prohibitive for electric resistance or gas-
fired combustion.

TeamFurmanite Group:

TeamFurmanite offers standard to specialty services as follows within both on-stream and turnaround/project-related
environments as follows:

Leak Repair Services. Our leak repair services consist of on-stream repairs of leaks in pipes, valves, flanges and other parts
of piping systems and related equipment. Our on-stream repairs utilize composite repair, drill and tap repair, and both standard
and custom-designed clamps and enclosures for piping systems. We use specially developed techniques, sealants and equipment
for repairs. Many of our repairs are furnished as interim measures which allow plant systems to continue operating until more
permanent repairs can be made during plant shut downs. Our leak repair services involve inspection of the leak by our field crew
who records pertinent information about the faulty part of the system and transmits the information to our engineering department
for determination of appropriate repair techniques. Repair materials such as clamps and enclosures are custom designed and
manufactured at our International Organization for Standardization (“ISO)-9001 certified manufacturing centers and delivered
to the job site. We maintain an inventory of raw materials and semi-finished clamps and enclosures to reduce the time required to
manufacture the finished product.

Fugitive Emissions Control Services. We provide fugitive volatile organic compound (“VOC”) emission leak detection
services that include identification, monitoring, data management and reporting primarily for the chemical, refining and natural
gas processing industries. These services are designed to monitor and record VOC emissions from specific process equipment and
piping components as required by environmental regulations and customer requests, typically assisting the customer in enhancing
an ongoing maintenance program and/or complying with present and/or future environmental regulations. We provide specialty
trained technicians in the use of portable organic chemical analyzers and data loggers to measure potential leaks at designated
plant components maintained in customer or our proprietary databases. The measured data is used to prepare standard reports in
compliance with EPA and local regulatory requirements. We also provide enhanced custom-designed reports to customer
specifications.
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Hot Tapping Services. Our hot tapping services consist of a full range of hot tapping, Line-stop™ ™ and Freeze-stop™™ services
with capabilities for up to 48” diameter pipelines. Hot tapping services involve utilizing special equipment to cut a hole in a
pressurized pipeline so that a new branch pipe can be connected onto the existing pipeline without interrupting operations. Line-
stop™ ™ services permit the line to be depressurized downstream so that maintenance work can be performed on the piping system.
We typically perform these services by mechanically cutting into the pipeline similar to a hot tap and installing a special plugging
device to stop the process flow. The Hi-stop™ is a proprietary procedure that allows stopping of the process flow in extreme
pressures and temperatures. In some cases, we may use a line freezing procedure by injecting liquid nitrogen into installed special
external chambers around the pipe to stop the process flow. Inflatable bag stops are used when a pipe is out of round or inside
surface conditions of the pipe prevent a standard line stop. It can also be used to back up a line stop. A small hot tap is made into
a pipe and an inflatable pipe plug is inserted into the pipe to allow the plug to stop the flow in the pipe. Additionally, we provide
innovative line stop applications for unique service applications to meet customers’ needs.

Field Machining Services and Technical Bolting Services. We use portable machining equipment to repair or modify
machinery, equipment, vessels and piping systems not easily removed from a permanent location. As opposed to conventional
machining processes where the work piece rotates and the cutting tool is fixed, in field machining, the work piece remains fixed
in position and the cutting tool rotates. Other common descriptions for this service are on-site or in-place machining. Field machining
services include flange facing, pipe cutting, line boring, journal turning, drilling and milling. We provide customers technical
bolting as a complementary service to field machining during plant shut downs or maintenance activities. These services involve
the use of hydraulic or pneumatic equipment with industry standard bolt tightening techniques to achieve reliable and leak-free
connections following plant maintenance or expansion projects. Additional services include bolt disassembly and hot bolting,
which is a technique to remove and replace a bolt while in service and hot.

Valve Repair Services. We perform on-site and shop-based repairs to manual and control valves and pressure and safety
relief valves as well as specialty valve actuator diagnostics and repair. We are certified and authorized to perform testing and
repairs to pressure and safety relief valves by The National Board of Boiler and Pressure Vessel Inspectors (the “NBBPVI™). This
certification requires specific procedures, testing and documentation to maintain the safe operation of these essential plant valves.
We provide special transportable trailers to the plant site which contain specialty machines to manufacture valve components
without removing the valve from the piping system. In addition, we provide preventive maintenance programs for VOC specific
valves and valve data management programs. The Company also represents selected valve manufacturers and distributes their
products complementary to our clients’ valve needs.

Field Welding. We perform certified manual, semi-automatic and fully automated machine welding services in a variety of
specialty industrial applications. All Team welders are certified to applicable American Society of Mechanical Engineers (“ASME”)
code and we are authorized by the NBBP VI for the repair of nuclear components, boilers and other pressure-containing components.

Isolation and Test Plug Services. We install isolation plugs to provide a mechanical block of flammable atmosphere to allow
for pipe cutting and welding without having to purge the entire piping system. The plugs are mechanically expanded to seal on
the inside pipe surface and provide a venting system to prevent pressure from building up in the piping system while the system
is opened. Test plugs are used to verify the integrity of welded joints by providing sealing surfaces on both sides of the weld and
pressuring the void cavity in between. The test plugs allow the customer to comply with the ASME hydrostatic test requirements
for welded joints without having to pressurize the whole system which may result in shutdown of other systems or environmental
issues with the test medium.

Valve Insertion Services. We offer professional installation services for our patented InsertValve™. The valve installs under
pressure, eliminating the need for line shut downs in the event of planned or emergency valve cut-ins. Designed for a wide range
of line sizes and types, the InsertValve™ wedge gate sits on the valve body, not the pipe bottom. This unique feature prevents the
seat from coming into contact with the cut pipe edges to significantly extend valve life. If a repair is ever needed, we believe it is
the only valve on the market that can be repaired under pressure.

Quest Integrity:

Quest Integrity offers integrity and reliability management solutions to the energy industry in the form of advanced
quantitative inspection and engineering assessment services and products. Quest Integrity’s advanced quantitative inspection
services utilize proprietary non-destructive testing and examination (NDT/NDE) instrumentation to provide technology-enabled
in-line inspections of fired heaters, pipelines, process piping systems and steam reformers, primarily to the process, pipeline and
power industries. Additionally, Quest Integrity offers engineering assessment services enabled by proprietary software and a variety
of analytical models.
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Quest Integrity’s major service offerings are described as follows:

Furnace Tube Inspection System. Furnace Tube Inspection System (“FTIS™") in-line inspection service provides an
untethered 360-degree 100% coverage ultrasonic inspection of the internal and external surfaces of serpentine coils of fired heaters,
which are found in refineries. FTIS™ allows us to detect and quantify internal/external pipe/tube wall loss, deformation and fouling
and thereby identify weak points in such heaters in order to provide customers with timely, actionable information to better manage
their infrastructure.

InVista™. Our proprietary InVista" in-line inspection service provides an untethered 360-degree 100% coverage ultrasonic
inspection of the internal and external surfaces of pipelines and process piping that are considered “unpiggable” or too challenging
to inspect by traditional inspection methods, due to a number of factors. InVista™ allows us to detect and quantify pipe/tube
internal/external wall loss, deformation, pitting and fouling in such pipelines. Our standard InVista™ service also provides a
fitness-for-service report on the pipeline and displays the information in a highly intuitive format, providing an integrated solution
set for pipeline customers.

Pipeline Integrity Management. We offer turn-key Pipeline Integrity Management services, including project management,
integrity engineering and integrity management development services, in-line inspection support, land surveying, and materials
equipment selection and procurement. We offer these resources on an integrated basis with our InVista™ in-line inspection services
and engineering assessment capabilities, or individually as applicable.

Engineering Assessment Services. Using proprietary software and a variety of analytical models, we offer a variety of
advanced engineering assessment services to customers in the process, power, pipeline, and petrochemical industries including
fitness-for-service, computational mechanics, failure analysis, pipeline analysis, risk-based asset management, and materials
consulting.

Acquisitions

In June 2016, we acquired a mechanical furnace and pipe cleaning business in Europe, Turbinate International B.V.
(“Turbinate”) for approximately $8 million. Recognized as a service leader in the European market, Turbinate specializes in de-
coking and cleaning of fired heaters and unpiggable refinery assets as well as mechanical cleaning of furnaces and pipes from two
to 18 inches in diameter by means of pigging, endoscopy and ultra sound inspection services. Turbinate is located in Vianen, the
Netherlands. Turbinate is reported in the Quest Integrity segment.

In April 2016, we acquired two related businesses in Europe: Quality Inspection Services (“QIS”) and TiaT Europe (“TiaT”)
for a total of approximately $9 million. QIS is an NDT inspection company and TiaT is an NDT training school and consultancy
and engineering company recognized as a specialist in aerospace inspections. Both companies are located in Roosendaal, the
Netherlands. The businesses added about 65 employees to our organization in Europe and serve off-shore energy and storage tank
clients, steel construction, ship repair, off-shore and storage tank customers, as well as the aerospace industry. QIS is the fourth
largest NDT inspection company in the Netherlands and represents TeamQualspec’s first inspection operation outside of North
America. QIS and TiaT are reported in the TeamQualspec segment.

In February 2016, we completed our acquisition of Furmanite Corporation (now Furmanite LLC, “Furmanite”) pursuant to
an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) under which we acquired all the outstanding shares of Furmanite in
a stock transaction at a value of approximately $282.3 million which included the payoff, immediately prior to closing, of
approximately $70.8 million in Furmanite debt. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Furmanite shareholders received 0.215
shares of Team common stock for each share of Furmanite common stock they owned. The combination doubled the size of Team’s
mechanical services capabilities and established a deeper, broader talent and resource pool that better supports customers across
standard and specialty mechanical services worldwide. In addition, our expanded capability and capacity offers an enhanced single-
point of accountability and flexibility in addressing some of the most critical needs of clients; whether as individual services or
as part of an integrated specialty industrial services solution. The purchase price allocation included net working capital of $143.9
million, $63.3 million in fixed assets, $89.0 million in intangibles, $91.4 million of non-current deferred tax liabilities, $13.5
million of defined benefit pension liabilities with $89.6 million allocated to goodwill. Our consolidated results include the activity
of Furmanite beginning on the acquisition date of February 29, 2016. Included in the Furmanite acquisition was a process
management inspection services business serving contractors and operators participating primarily in the midstream oil and gas
market in the U.S. Upon acquisition, we determined that this business was not a strategic fit for Team and shortly thereafter began
marketing the business to prospective buyers. We completed the sale of this operation in December 2016. The operating results
of this business were reported as discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements.
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InJuly 2015, we acquired 100% of the membership interests in Qualspec Group LLC (“Qualspec”) for total cash consideration
of $255.5 million. Qualspec is a leading provider of NDT services in the U.S., with significant operations in the West Coast, Gulf
Coast and Mid-Western areas of the country. Qualspec was primarily specialized in nested or run-and-maintain services and adds
strength to our resident refinery inspection programs with major customer relationships across the U.S., as well as to our already
strong capabilities in advanced inspection services, rope access services and the delivery of innovative technologies to our
customers. The purchase of Qualspec was financed through borrowings under our banking credit facility. The purchase price
allocation included net working capital of $16.3 million, $15.5 million in fixed assets, $78.1 million in intangibles, $3.0 million
of non-current deferred tax liability, with $148.5 million allocated to goodwill. Our consolidated results include the activity of
Qualspec beginning on the acquisition date of July 7, 2015 in the TeamQualspec segment.

In June 2015, we purchased DK Amans Valve, an advanced valve leader located in Long Beach, California, with a portfolio
of projects from various sectors including oil and gas refining, pipelines and power generation for a total consideration of $12.3
million, net of cash acquired of $0.1 million. The purchase price included net working capital of $3.0 million, $0.6 million in fixed
assets and $8.8 million in intangibles that includes $2.5 million allocated to goodwill. The purchase price allocation included
contingent consideration initially valued at $1.8 million, but as a result of meeting certain performance targets, ultimately resulted
in the payment of additional consideration of $4.0 million. DK Amans Valve is reported in the TeamFurmanite segment.

In August 2014, we purchased a valve repair company in the U.K. for total consideration of $3.1 million, net of cash acquired
of $0.2 million, including estimated contingent consideration of $0.3 million. Our purchase price allocation resulted in $2.1 million
being allocated to fixed assets and net working capital and $1.0 million being applied to goodwill and intangible assets. This
business is reported in the TeamFurmanite segment.

In July 2013, we purchased a leading provider of industrial rope access services, for total consideration of approximately
$12.9 million including net working capital of $1.3 million and $11.6 million allocated to goodwill and intangible assets. We
estimate $9.2 million ofthe goodwill recognized to be deductible for tax purposes. The purchase price allocation included contingent
consideration valued at $1.9 million. This business is reported in the TeamQualspec segment.

Marketing and Customers

Our industrial services are marketed principally by personnel based at our service locations. We believe that these service
locations are situated to facilitate timely responses to customer needs with on-call expertise, which is an important feature of
selling and providing our services. Our array of integrated services also allows us to benefit from the procurement trends of many
of our customers who are seeking reductions in the number of contractors and vendors in their facilities. No single customer
accounted for 10% or more of consolidated revenues during the years ended December 31, 2017 or 2016, the seven months ended
December 31, 2015 or in the year ended May 31, 2015.

Generally, customers are billed on a time and materials basis, although some work may be performed pursuant to a fixed-
price bid. Services are usually performed pursuant to purchase orders issued under written customer agreements. While most
purchase orders provide for the performance of a single job, some provide for services to be performed on a run-and-maintain
basis. Substantially all our agreements and contracts may be terminated by either party on short notice. The agreements generally
specify the range of services to be performed and the hourly rates for labor. While many contracts cover specific plants or locations,
we also enter into multiple-site regional or national contracts which cover multiple plants or locations.

Geographic Areas

For a discussion and breakdown of revenues by geographic area, see Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Seasonality

We experience some seasonal fluctuations. Historically, the refining industry has scheduled plant shutdowns (commonly
referred to as “turnarounds”) for the fall and spring seasons. The timing of large turnarounds can significantly impact our revenues.

Employees

At December 31, 2017, we had approximately 7,300 employees in our worldwide operations. Our employees in the U.S.
are predominantly non-unionized. Most of our Canadian employees and certain employees outside of North America, primarily
Europe, are unionized. There have been no employee work stoppages to date and we believe our relations with our employees
and their representative organizations are fair and productive.
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Regulation

A significant portion of our business activities are subject to foreign, federal, state and local laws and regulations. These
regulations are administered by various foreign, federal, state and local health and safety and environmental agencies and authorities,
including OSHA of the U.S. Department of Labor and the EPA. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may involve
civil and criminal liability. From time to time, we are also subject to a wide range of reporting requirements, certifications and
compliance as prescribed by various federal and state governmental agencies that include, but are not limited to, the EPA, the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission, the Chemical Safety Board, the Department of Transportation and the Federal Aviation
Administration. Expenditures relating to such regulations are made in the normal course of our business and are neither material
nor place us at any competitive disadvantage. We do not currently expect that compliance with such laws and regulations will
require us to make material expenditures.

From time to time, during the operation of our environmental consulting and engineering services, the assets of which were
sold in 1996, we handled small quantities of certain hazardous wastes or other substances generated by our customers. Under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (the “Superfund Act”), the EPA is authorized
to take administrative and judicial action to either cause parties who are responsible under the Superfund Act for cleaning up any
unauthorized release of hazardous substances to do so, or to clean up such hazardous substances and to seek reimbursement of
the costs thereof from the responsible parties, who are jointly and severally liable for such costs under the Superfund Act. The
EPA may also bring suit for treble damages from responsible parties who unreasonably refuse to voluntarily participate in such a
clean-up or funding thereof. Similarly, private parties who bear the costs of cleanup may seek to recover all or part of their costs
from responsible parties in cost recovery or contribution actions. Responsible parties include anyone who owns or operates the
facility where the release occurred (either currently and/or at the time such hazardous substances were disposed of), or who by
contract arranges for disposal, treatment, transportation for disposal or treatment of a hazardous substance, or who accepts hazardous
substances for transport to disposal or treatment facilities selected by such person from which there is a release. We believe that
our risk of liability is minimized since our handling consisted solely of maintaining and storing small samples of materials for
laboratory analysis that are classified as hazardous. Due to its prohibitive costs, we accordingly do not currently carry insurance
to cover liabilities which we may incur under the Superfund Act or similar environmental statutes.

Intellectual Property

We hold various patents, trademarks, trade secrets and licenses, which have not historically been material to our consolidated
business operations. However, Quest Integrity has significant trade secrets and intellectual property pertaining to its proprietary
inspection and engineering assessment and software tools. This subsidiary was acquired in the fiscal year ended 2011 and a
significant amount of the purchase price was allocated to these intangible assets.

Competition

In general, competition stems from a large number of other outside service contractors. More than 100 different competitors
are currently active in our markets. We believe we have a competitive advantage over most service contractors due to the quality,
training and experience of our technicians, our nationwide and increasingly international service capability, the breadth and depth
ofourservices, our ability to provide such services on an integrated, more turnkey basis, and our technical support and manufacturing
capabilities supporting the service network. However, there are other competitors that may offer a similar range of coverage or
services and include, but are not limited to, Acuren Group, Inc., Guardian Compliance, Mistras Group, Inc. and T.D. Williamson,
Inc.

Available Information

As a public company, we are required to file periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
within established deadlines. Any document we file with the SEC may be viewed or copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room
at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Additional information regarding the Public Reference Room can be obtained by
calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330. Our SEC filings are also available to the public through the SEC’s website located at
www.sec.gov. Our internet website address is www.teaminc.com. Information contained on our website is not part of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, Proxy Statements and current reports
on Form 8-K filed with (or furnished to) the SEC are available on our website, free of charge, as soon as reasonably practicable
after we file or furnish such material. We also post our code of ethical conduct, our governance principles, our social responsibility
policy and the charters of our Board committees on our website. Our governance documents are available in print to any stockholder
that submits a written request to Team, Inc., Attn: Corporate Secretary, 13131 Dairy Ashford, Suite 600, Sugar Land, Texas 77478.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and/or stock price could be materially adversely affected
by any of the risks and uncertainties described below.

The economic environment may affect our customers’ demand for our services. Future economic uncertainty may reduce
the availability of liquidity and credit and, in many cases, reduce demand for our customers’ products. Disruption of the credit
markets could also adversely affect our customers’ ability to finance on-going maintenance and new projects, resulting in contract
cancellations or suspensions, and project delays. An extended or deep recession may result in plant closures or other contractions
in our customer base. These factors may also adversely affect our ability to collect payment for work we have previously performed.
Furthermore, our ability to expand our business could be limited if, in the future, we are unable to increase our credit capacity
under favorable terms or at all. Such disruptions, should they occur, could materially impact our results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Our revenues are heavily dependent on certain industries. Sales of our services are dependent on customers in certain
industries, particularly the refining and petrochemical industries. As experienced in the past, and as expected to occur in the future,
downturns characterized by diminished demand for services in these industries could have a material impact on our results of
operations, financial position or cash flows. Certain of our customers have employees represented by unions and could be subject
to temporary work stoppage which could impact our activity level.

We sell our services in highly competitive markets, which places pressure on our profit margins and limits our ability to
maintain or increase the market share of our services. Our competition generally stems from other outside service contractors,
many of whom offer a similar range of services. Future economic uncertainty could generally reduce demand for industrial services
and thus create a more competitive bidding environment for new and existing work. No assurances can be made that we will
continue to maintain our pricing model and our profit margins or increase our market share.

No assurances can be made that we will be successful in maintaining or renewing our contracts with our customers. A
significant portion of our contracts and agreements with customers may be terminated by either party on short notice. Although
we actively pursue the renewal of our contracts, we cannot assure that we will be able to renew these contracts or that the terms
of the renewed contracts will be as favorable as the existing contracts. If we are unable to renew or replace these contracts, or if
we renew on less favorable terms, we may suffer a material reduction in revenue and earnings.

No assurances can be made that we will be successful in hiring or retaining members of a skilled technical workforce.
We have a skilled technical workforce and an industry recognized technician training program for each of our service lines that
prepares new employees as well as further trains our existing employees. The competition for these individuals is intense. The
loss of the services of a number of these individuals, or failure to attract new employees, could adversely affect our ability to
perform our obligations on our customers’ projects or maintenance and consequently could negatively impact the demand for our
products and services.

Unsatisfactory safety performance can affect customer relationships, eliminate or reduce revenue streams from our
largest customers, result in higher operating costs and negatively impact our ability to hire and retain a skilled technical
workforce. Our workers are subject to the normal hazards associated with providing services at industrial facilities. Even with
proper safety precautions, these hazards can lead to personal injury, loss of life, destruction of property, plant and equipment,
lower employee morale and environmental damage. While we are intensely focused on maintaining a strong safety environment
and reducing the risk of accidents to the lowest possible level, there can be no assurance that these efforts will be effective. Poor
safety performance may limit or eliminate potential revenue streams our customers, including from many of our largest customers,
and may materially increase our operating costs, including increasing our required insurance deductibles, self-insured retention
and insurance premium costs.

The Company’s insurance coverage will not fully indemnify us against certain claims or losses. Further, the Company’s
insurance has limits and exclusions and not all losses or claims are insured. We perform services in hazardous environments
on or around high-pressure, high temperature systems and our employees are exposed to a number of hazards, including exposure
to hazardous materials, explosion hazards and fire hazards. Incidents that occur at these large industrial facilities or systems,
regardless of fault, may be catastrophic and adversely impact our employees and third parties by causing serious personal injury,
loss of life, damage to property or the environment, and interruption of operations. Our contracts typically require us to indemnify
our customers for injury, damage or loss arising out of our presence at our customers’ location, regardless of fault, or the performance
of our services and provide for warranties for materials and workmanship. We may also be required to name the customer as an
additional insured under our insurance policies. We maintain limited insurance coverage against these and other risks associated
with our business. Due to the high cost of general liability coverage, we maintain insurance with a self-insured retention of $3.0
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million per occurrence. This insurance may not protect us against liability for certain events, including events involving pollution,
product or professional liability, losses resulting from business interruption or acts of terrorism or damages from breach of contract
by the Company. We cannot assure you that our insurance will be adequate in risk coverage or policy limits to cover all losses or
liabilities that we may incur. Moreover, in the future, we cannot assure that we will be able to maintain insurance at levels of risk
coverage or policy limits that we deem adequate. Any future damages caused by our products or services that are not covered by
insurance or are in excess of policy limits could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or
cash flows.

We are subject to risks associated with indebtedness under our banking credit facility, including the risk of failure to
maintain compliance with financial covenants, the risk of being unable to make interest and principal payments when due and
the risk of rising interest rates. Our banking credit facility (the “Credit Facility”’), which matures in July 2020, contains financial
covenants requiring the Company to maintain certain financial ratios. As of December 31, 2017, we were required to maintain (i)
a maximum ratio of senior secured debt to consolidated EBITDA (the “Senior Secured Leverage Ratio,” as defined in the Credit
Facility agreement) of not more than 4.25 to 1.00 and (ii) an interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.00 to 1.00 (the “Interest
Coverage Ratio,” as defined in the Credit Facility agreement). As of December 31,2017, we are in compliance with these covenants.
The Senior Secured Leverage Ratio and the Interest Coverage Ratio stood at 3.53 to 1.00 and 3.03 to 1.00, respectively, as of
December 31, 2017.

We entered into the seventh amendment to the Credit Facility (the “Seventh Amendment”) on March 8, 2018 to modify
certain of the financial covenants. The Seventh Amendment eliminated the Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility
agreement) covenant through the remainder of the term of the Credit Facility and also modified both the Senior Secured Leverage
Ratio and the Interest Coverage Ratio as follows. First, the Company is required to maintain a maximum Senior Secured Leverage
Ratio of not more 4.25 to 1.00 as of March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2018, not more than 3.50 to 1.00 as of September 30, 2018 and
each quarter thereafter through June 30, 2019 and not more than 2.75 to 1.00 as of September 30, 2019 and each quarter thereafter.
With respect to the Interest Coverage Ratio, the Company is required to maintain a ratio of not less than 2.25 to 1.00 as of March
31, 2018 and each quarter thereafter through December 31, 2018 and not less than 2.50 to 1.00 as of March 31, 2019 and each
quarter thereafter.

Our ability to maintain compliance with the financial covenants is dependent upon our future operating performance and
future financial condition, both of which are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that
we will be able to maintain compliance with the Credit Facility covenants as of any future date. In the event we are unable maintain
compliance with our financial covenants, we would seek to enter into an amendment to the Credit Facility with our bank group
in order to modify and/or to provide relief from the financial covenants for an additional period of time. Although we have entered
into amendments in the past, there can be no assurance that any future amendments would be available on terms acceptable to us,
if at all.

We rely primarily on cash flows from our operations to make required interest and principal payments on our debt under
the Credit Facility. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flows from our operations, we may be unable to pay interest and
principal obligations on our debt when they become due. Failure to comply with these obligations or failure to comply with the
financial covenants discussed above could result in an event of default, which would permit our lenders to accelerate the repayment
of the debt. If our lenders accelerate the repayment of debt, there is no assurance that we could refinance such debt on terms
favorable to us or at all.

All of the debt outstanding under the Credit Facility bears interest at variable market rates. If market interest rates increase,
our interest expense and cash flows could be adversely impacted. Based on Credit Facility borrowings outstanding at December
31,2017, an increase in market interest rates of 100 basis points would increase our interest expense and decrease our operating
cash flows by approximately $2 million on an annual basis.

Our Credit Facility restricts our ability to, among other items, incur additional indebtedness, engage in mergers, acquisitions
and dispositions and alter the business conducted by the Company and its subsidiaries. These restrictions could adversely affect
our ability to operate our businesses and may limit our ability to take advantage of potential business opportunities as they arise.

The accounting method for our convertible debt securities may have a material effect on our reported financial results.
On July 31, 2017 we issued $230.0 million principal amount of 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2023 (the “Notes”) in a
private offering. Accordingly, the issuance of the Notes and the subsequent accounting associated with the Notes has been reflected
in our consolidated financial statements beginning in the third quarter of 2017.

Under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 470-20, Debt with
Conversion and Other Options, (“ASC 470-20”), an entity must separately account for the liability and equity components of the
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convertible debt instruments (such as the Notes) that may be settled entirely or partially in cash upon conversion in a manner that
reflects the issuer’s economic interest cost. The effect of ASC 470-20 on the accounting for the Notes is that the equity component
isincluded in the additional paid-in capital section of equity on our consolidated balance sheet, and the value of the equity component
is treated as original issue discount for purposes of accounting for the debt component of the Notes. As a result, we are recording
a greater amount of non-cash interest expense as a result of the amortization of the discounted carrying value of the Notes to their
face amount over the term of the Notes. We will report lower net income (or greater net loss) in our financial results because ASC
470-20 requires interest to include both the current period’s amortization of the debt discount and the instrument’s coupon interest,
which could adversely affect our reported or future financial results, the market price of our common stock and the trading price
of the Notes.

Also, because the Notes could be convertible in full into more than 19.99 percent of our outstanding common stock, we
have agreed to seek the approval of the holders of our outstanding shares of common stock at our next annual stockholders’ meeting
for the issuance of more than 19.99 percent of our outstanding common stock upon conversion of the Notes. Unless and until we
receive stockholder approval, holders may only surrender their Notes for conversion for cash or a combination of cash and common
stock upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. Accordingly, these circumstances could require us to cash-settle a portion of the
conversion feature of the Notes. Because of this cash settlement requirement, we have recorded an embedded derivative liability
for the conversion feature for approximately 60% of the Notes pursuant to ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, with changes in
fair value of the embedded derivative liability reflected in our results of operations each period. Gains and/or losses on the embedded
derivative liability will continue to impact our results of operations unless and until we receive stockholder approval. The valuation
of such derivative liability is highly sensitive to changes in the price of our common stock. Generally, decreases in our stock price
will result in gains, while increases in our stock price will result in losses. As such, movement in our stock price could materially
and adversely affect our financial results, including our net income (loss) as well as increase the volatility of our financial results
from period to period.

In addition, convertible debt instruments (such as the Notes) that may be settled entirely or partly in cash are currently
accounted for utilizing the treasury stock method if we have the ability and intent to settle in cash, the effect of which is that the
shares issuable upon conversion of the Notes are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share except to the extent
that the conversion value of the Notes exceeds their principal amount. Under the treasury stock method, for diluted earnings per
share purposes, the transaction is accounted for as if the number of shares of common stock that would be necessary to settle such
excess, if we elected to settle such excess in shares, are issued. We cannot be sure that we will be able to demonstrate the ability
or intent to settle the Notes in cash in any future reporting period or that future accounting standards will continue to permit the
use of the treasury stock method. If we are unable to use the treasury stock method in accounting for the shares of common stock
issuable upon conversion of the Notes, then we would utilize the if-converted method, which would require us to assume the Notes
would be settled entirely in shares of common stock for purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share. In such case, our diluted
earnings per share would be adversely affected.

Transactions relating to our convertible debt securities may dilute the ownership interest of existing stockholders, or may
otherwise depress the price of our common stock. The Notes are initially convertible into 10,599,067 shares of common stock,
but the occurrence of certain corporate events could increase the conversion rate, which could result in the Notes becoming
convertible into a maximum of 14,838,703 shares of common stock. Upon conversion, the Company may settle the Notes in cash
or in shares of common stock or a combination of cash and shares of common stock, in each case, at the Company’s election,
subject to certain limitations prior to the receipt of the shareholder approval described above. If the Notes are converted, our intent
is to settle the principal amount of the Notes in cash and settle the remainder of our conversion obligation by issuing shares of
common stock; however, we cannot guarantee that we will have sufficient funds available to us at the time of any such conversions
in order effect settlement in that manner. In such case, we could elect to settle the conversion obligation in a different combination
of cash and shares of common stock or entirely in shares of common stock, depending on the circumstances. To the extent we
deliver shares of common stock upon conversion of the Notes, the ownership interests of existing stockholders would be diluted.
Any sales in the public market of the common stock issuable upon such conversion could adversely affect prevailing market prices
of our common stock.

Additional impairments of our goodwill, impairments of our intangible and other long-lived assets, and changes in the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial
condition. As a result of past acquisitions, goodwill and other intangible assets comprise a substantial portion of our total assets.
As of December 31, 2017, our goodwill and intangible assets totaled $284.8 million and $160.2 million, respectively. We assess
or test goodwill for impairment at least annually in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the U.S.
(“GAAP”), while our other long-lived assets, including our finite-lived intangible assets, are tested for impairment when
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. A decrease in our market capitalization or profitability
or unfavorable changes in market, economic and industry conditions all would increase the risk of impairment. In the second and
third quarters of 2017, we determined that there were sufficient indicators to trigger interim goodwill impairment tests. The
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indicators included, among other factors, the continued market softness and the related impacts on our financial results and our
stock price. While the second quarter 2017 test indicated no impairment, our third quarter 2017 test resulted in an impairment loss
of $75.2 million. Our 2017 annual goodwill impairment test, which was completed as of December 1, 2017, did not result in any
additional impairment. However, given the recent weak and uncertain macro environment in the industries in which we operate,
there can be no assurance that the estimates and assumptions made for purposes of the Company’s most recent goodwill impairment
test will prove to be accurate predictions of the future. Accordingly, we may be required to recognize additional impairment charges
in future reporting periods, which could materially and adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition.

GAAP requires that we evaluate the useful lives of our intangible assets subject to amortization each reporting period. If
the estimate of an intangible asset’s remaining useful life is changed, the remaining carrying amount of the intangible asset is
amortized prospectively over that revised remaining useful life. To the extent the revised useful life of an intangible asset is less
than originally estimated, our future amortization expense will increase, which could have a material impact on our results of
operations and financial condition. With respect to our intangible asset associated with the Furmanite trade name, management
has recently determined that, as a result of initiatives to consolidate the Company’s branding, the useful life of this intangible asset
is not expected to extend beyond December 31, 2018. In accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other, we will
account for the change in useful life prospectively and amortize the remaining balance during 2018. We expect to recognize
additional amortization expense of approximately $12 million in 2018, compared to 2017, as a result of this change in estimate.

Improvements in operating results from expected savings in operating costs from our reduction in workforce and other
cost saving and business improvement initiatives may not be realized in the estimated amounts, may take longer to be realized,
or could be realized only for a limited period. In order to address the reduction in revenues and operating income we have
experienced during 2016 and 2017, beginning in July 2017 we took actions to reduce our workforce by eliminating certain employee
positions and implementing other cost saving initiatives. Based upon estimates from our current planning model for these reductions,
we believe that the actions we have taken have reduced our annual operating expenses by approximately $30 million, with the
impact to operating results of those reduction synergies having begun in the third quarter of 2017. This cost savings initiative is
largely complete. Later in 2017, the Company began a separate project to identify additional cost savings and business improvement
opportunities, with implementation planned beginning in 2018. However, in order to implement this or any other future cost savings
or business improvement initiatives, we expect to incur additional expenses, which could adversely impact our financial results
prior to the realization of the expected benefits associated with the initiatives. Due to numerous factors or future developments,
we may not achieve cost reductions or other business improvements consistent with our expectations or the benefits may be
delayed. These factors or future developments could include (i) the incurrence of higher than expected costs or delays in reassigning
and retraining remaining employees or outsourcing or eliminating duties and functions of eliminated employees, (ii) unanticipated
delays in discharging employees in eliminated positions as a result of regulatory or legal limitations on employee terminations in
certain jurisdictions, (iii) actual savings differing from anticipated cost savings, (iv) anticipated benefits from business improvement
initiatives not materializing and (v) disruptions to normal operations or other unintended adverse impacts resulting from the
initiatives.

We may also decide to reduce, suspend or terminate our workforce reduction plans and other cost saving and business
improvement initiatives at any time before achieving the estimated benefits or after a limited period of time. The elimination of
current employees can also result in increased future costs in hiring, training and mobilizing new employees or rehires in the event
of a future increase in demand for our services resulting in a slower recovery of results from operations. Our initiatives may
negatively affect our ability to retain and attract qualified personnel, who may experience uncertainty about their future roles with
the Company.

Fluctuations in our effective tax rate and our tax obligations could adversely affect our financial results. We are subject
to taxes in the U.S. and in various foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide income
tax provision, tax assets and accruals for other taxes, and there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Our effective income tax rate could be adversely affected by our profit levels, changes in our business,
reorganization of our business and operating structure, changes in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax
rates, changes in the elections we make, changes in applicable tax laws or interpretations of existing tax laws or changes in the
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, as well as other factors.

We are also currently subject to audit in various jurisdictions, and these jurisdictions may assess additional income tax
liabilities against us. Developments in an audit, litigation, or the relevant laws, regulations, administrative practices, principles,
and interpretations could have a material effect on our operating results or cash flows in the period or periods for which that
development occurs, as well as for prior and subsequent periods.

Uncertainties in the interpretation and application of the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (Public Law No. 115-97) could
materially affect our tax obligations and effective tax rate. The 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “2017 Tax Act”) was enacted
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on December 22,2017 and represents a significant change to the U.S. federal tax code. This tax legislation lowers the U.S. statutory
tax rate, but also includes a number of provisions that could significantly and adversely impact our U.S. federal income tax position
in future reporting periods, including the limitation of interest expense deduction and the elimination of certain other deductions
or credits, and ongoing tax requirements related to certain foreign earnings. Due to the timing of the enactment and the complexities
involved in applying the provisions of the new tax law, we made reasonable estimates of the effects and recorded provisional
amounts in our consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,2017. The U.S. Treasury Department,
the IRS, and others could interpret or issue new guidance on how provisions of the 2017 Tax Act will be applied or otherwise
administered that is different from our interpretation. As we complete our analysis of the 2017 Tax Act, collect and prepare necessary
data and interpret any additional guidance, we may make adjustments to provisional amounts that we have recorded that may
materially impact our provision for income taxes in the period in which the adjustments are made.

The Company’s operations and information systems, including its employee and financial records, are subject to
cybersecurity risks. Team continues to increase its dependence on digital technologies to conduct its operations. Many of the
Company’s files, including employee and financial records, are digitized and more employees are working in almost paperless
and remote environments. We have also outsourced certain information technology development, maintenance and support
functions. As a result, the Company may be exposed to potentially severe cyber incidents at both its internal locations and outside
vendor locations that could result in a theft of sensitive data and/or intellectual property, alteration or deletion of critical data and/
or disruption of its operations for an extended period of time. This could also result in claims, losses, fines and higher costs to
correct and remedy the effects of such incidents, although no such material incidents have occurred to date to the Company’s
knowledge.

Our operations and properties are subject to extensive governmental regulation under environmental laws. Environmental
laws and regulations can impose substantial sanctions for violations or operational changes that may limit our services. We must
conform our operations to applicable regulatory requirements and adapt to changes in such requirements in all locations in which
we operate. These actions may increase the overall costs of providing our services. Some of our services involve handling or
monitoring highly regulated materials, including VOCs or hazardous wastes. Environmental laws and regulations generally impose
limitations and standards for regulated materials and require us to obtain permits and comply with various other requirements.
The improper characterization, handling, disposal or monitoring of regulated materials or any other failure by us to comply with
increasingly complex and strictly enforced federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations or associated environmental
permits could subject us to the assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of investigatory or remedial
obligations, or the issuance of injunctions that could restrict or prevent our ability to operate our business and complete contracted
services. A defect in our services or faulty workmanship could result in an environmental liability if, as a result of the defect or
faulty workmanship, a contaminant is released into the environment.

We are involved and are likely to continue to be involved in legal proceedings, which will increase our costs and, if
adversely determined, could have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows. We are currently
a defendant in legal proceedings arising from the operation of our business and it is reasonable to expect that we will be named
in future actions. Most of the legal proceedings against us arise out of the normal course of performing services at customer
facilities, and include claims for workers’ compensation, personal injury and property damage. Legal proceedings can be expensive
to defend and can divert the attention of management and other personnel for significant periods of time, regardless of the ultimate
outcome. An unsuccessful defense of a liability claim could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Economic, political and other risks associated with international operations could adversely affect our business. A portion
of our operations are conducted and located outside the U.S., and accordingly, our business is subject to risks associated with
doing business internationally, including changes in foreign currency exchange rates, instability in political or economic conditions,
difficulty in repatriating cash proceeds, differing employee relations, differing regulatory environments, trade protection measures,
and difficulty in administering and enforcing corporate policies which may be different than the normal business practices of local
cultures. In many foreign countries, particularly in those with developing economies, it is common to engage in business practices
that are prohibited by U.S. and foreign anti-corruption regulations applicable to us such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
and the United Kingdom Bribery Act. Our international business operations may include projects in countries where corruption
is prevalent. Although we have, and continue to, implement policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with these
laws, there can be no assurance that all of our employees, contractors or agents, including those representing us in countries where
practices which violate such anti-corruption laws may be customary, will not take actions in violation of our policies and procedures.
Any violation of foreign or U.S. laws by our employees, contractors or agents, even if such violation is prohibited by our policies
and procedures, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Our growth strategy entails risk for investors. We intend to continue to pursue acquisitions in, or complementary to, the
specialty maintenance and construction services industry to complement and diversify our existing business. We may not be able
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to continue to expand our market presence through acquisitions, and any future acquisitions may present unforeseen integration
difficulties or costs. From time to time, we make acquisitions of other businesses that enhance our services or geographic scope.
No assurances can be made that we will realize the cost savings, synergies or revenue enhancements that we may anticipate from
any acquisition, or that we will realize such benefits within the time frame that we expect. If we are not able to address the challenges
associated with acquisitions and successfully integrate acquired businesses, or if our integrated product and service offerings fail
to achieve market acceptance, our business could be adversely affected. The consideration paid in connection with an acquisition
may also affect our share price or future financial results depending on the structure of such consideration. To the extent we issue
stock or other rights to purchase stock, including options or other rights, existing shareholders may be diluted and earnings per
share may decrease. In addition, acquisitions may result in the incurrence of additional debt.

The price of our outstanding securities may be volatile. 1t is possible that in some future quarter (or quarters) our revenues,
operating results or other measures of financial performance will not meet the expectations of public stock market analysts or
investors, which could cause the price of our outstanding securities to decline or be volatile. Historically, our quarterly and annual
sales and operating results have fluctuated. We expect fluctuations to continue in the future. In addition to general economic and
political conditions, the following factors may affect our sales and operating results: the timing of significant customer orders, the
timing of planned maintenance projects at customer facilities, changes in competitive pricing, wide variations in profitability by
product line, variations in operating expenses, rapid increases in raw material and labor costs, the timing of announcements or
introductions of new products or services by us, our competitors or our respective customers, the acceptance of those services,
our ability to adequately meet staffing requirements with qualified personnel, relative variations in manufacturing efficiencies and
costs, and the relative strength or weakness of international markets. Since our quarterly and annual revenues and operating results
vary, we believe that period-to-period comparisons are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as indicators of
our future performance.

Our business may be adversely impacted by work stoppages, staffing shortages and other labor matters. At December 31,
2017, we had approximately 7,300 employees, approximately 1,700 of whom were located in Canada and Europe where employees
predominantly are represented by unions. Although we believe that our relations with our employees are good and we have had
no strikes or work stoppages, no assurances can be made that we will not experience these and other types of conflicts with labor
unions, works councils, other groups representing employees, or our employees in general, or that any future negotiations with
our labor unions will not result in significant increases in the cost of labor.

Our operations and properties are subject to extensive environmental, health and safety regulations. We are subject to a
variety of U.S. federal, state, local and international laws and regulations relating to the environment, and worker health and safety.
These laws and regulations are complex, change frequently, are becoming increasingly stringent, and can impose substantial
sanctions for violations or require operational changes that may limit our services. We must conform our operations to comply
with applicable regulatory requirements and adapt to changes in such requirements in all locations in which we operate. These
requirements can be expected to increase the overall costs of providing our services over time. Some of our services involve
handling or monitoring highly regulated materials, including VOCs or hazardous wastes. Environmental laws and regulations
generally impose limitations and standards for the characterization, handling and disposal of regulated materials and require us
to obtain permits and comply with various other requirements. The improper characterization, handling, or disposal of regulated
materials or any other failure by us to comply with increasingly complex and strictly-enforced federal, state, local, and international
environmental, health and safety laws and regulations or associated permits could subject us to the assessment of administrative,
civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of investigatory or remedial obligations, or the issuance of injunctions that could restrict
or prevent our ability to operate our business and complete contracted services. A defect in our services or faulty workmanship
could result in an environmental liability if, as a result of the defect or faulty workmanship, a contaminant is released into the
environment. In addition, the modification or interpretation of existing environmental, health and safety laws or regulations, the
more vigorous enforcement of existing laws or regulations, or the adoption of new laws or regulations may also negatively impact
industries in which our customers operate, which in turn could have a negative impact on us.

Climate change legislation or regulations restricting emissions of “greenhouse gases” could result in reduced demand
for our services and products. There has been an increased focus in the last several years on climate change in response to findings
that emissions of carbon dioxide, methane and other greenhouse gases present an endangerment to public health and the
environment. As aresult, there have been a variety of regulatory developments, proposals or requirements and legislative initiatives
that have been introduced in the U.S. (and other parts of the world) that are focused on restricting the emission of greenhouse
gases. The adoption of new or more stringent legislation or regulatory programs limiting greenhouse gas emissions from customers
for whom we provide repair and maintenance services could affect demand for our products and services. Further, some scientists
have concluded that increasing greenhouse gas concentrations in the atmosphere may produce physical effects, such as increased
severity and frequency of storms, droughts, floods and other climate events. Such climate events have the potential to adversely
affect our operations or those of our customers, which in turn could have a negative effect on us.
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Interruptions in the proper functioning of our information systems could disrupt operations and cause increases in costs
and/or decreases in revenues. The proper functioning of our information systems is critical to the successful operation of our
business. Although our information systems are protected through physical and software safeguards, our information systems are
still vulnerable to natural disasters, power losses, telecommunication failures and other problems. If critical information systems
fail or are otherwise unavailable, our business operations could be adversely affected.

Regulations related to conflict-free minerals may cause us to incur additional expenses. The SEC has established annual
disclosure and reporting requirements for those companies who use “conflict” minerals sourced from the Democratic Republic
of Congo and adjoining countries in their products. These requirements could limit the pool of suppliers who can provide conflict-
free minerals and as a result, we cannot ensure that we will be able to obtain these minerals at competitive prices. Compliance
with these new requirements may also increase our costs. In addition, we may face challenges with our customers if we are unable
to sufficiently verify the origins of the minerals used in our products.

Other risk factors. Other risk factors may include interruption of our operations, or the operations of our customers due to
fire, floods, hurricanes, earthquakes, power loss, telecommunications failure, terrorist attacks, labor disruptions, health epidemics
and other events beyond our control.

Any of these factors, individually or in combination, could materially and adversely affect our future results of operations,
financial position, cash flows and/or stock price and could also affect whether any forward-looking statements in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K ultimately prove to be accurate.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
NONE
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

There are several materially important physical properties used in our operations. Our 120,000 square foot facility in Alvin,
Texas consists of our primary training facility, equipment center and ISO-9001 certified manufacturing facility for clamps,
enclosures, and sealants. Additionally, we own a 39,000 square foot manufacturing facility in Houston, Texas. We lease
approximately 60,000 square feet of office space utilized as our corporate headquarters in Sugar Land, Texas. The following is a
list of owned and leased branch service locations considered materially important physical properties:

*  Beaumont, Texas

*  Pasadena, Texas (2 locations)
e Pearland, Texas

Hammond, Indiana

*  Cincinnati, Ohio

*  Gonzales, Louisiana

*  Wood River, Illinois

*  Long Beach, California

*  Columbus, Ohio

*  Vlissingen, Netherlands

+  Kendal, Cumbria, United Kingdom

We believe that our property and equipment are adequate for our current needs, although additional investments are expected
to be made for expansion of property and equipment, replacement of assets at the end of their useful lives will occur in connection
with corporate development activities.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Con Ed Matter. We have, from time to time, provided temporary leak repair services to the steam system of Consolidated
Edison Company of New York (“Con Ed”) located in New York City. In July 2007, a Con Ed steam main located in midtown
Manhattan ruptured resulting in one death and other injuries and property damage. As of December 31, 2017, sixty-eight lawsuits
are currently pending against Con Ed, the City of New York and Team in the Supreme Courts of New York, alleging that our
temporary leak repair services may have contributed to the cause of the rupture, allegations which we dispute. The lawsuits seek
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generally unspecified compensatory damages for personal injury, property damage and business interruption. Additionally, Con
Ed is alleging that our contract with Con Ed requires us to fully indemnify and defend Con Ed for all claims asserted against Con
Ed including those amounts that Con Ed has paid to settle with certain plaintiffs for undisclosed sums as well as Con Ed’s own
alleged damages to its infrastructure. Con Ed filed an action to join Team and the City of New York as defendants in all lawsuits
filed against Con Ed that did not include Team and the City of New York as direct defendants. We are vigorously defending the
lawsuits and Con Ed’s claim for indemnification. We are unable to estimate the amount of liability to us, if any, associated with
these lawsuits and the claim for indemnification. We filed a motion to dismiss in April 2016. We maintain insurance coverage,
subject to a deductible limit of $250,000, which we believe should cover these claims. We have not accrued any liability in excess
of the deductible limit for the lawsuits. We do not believe the ultimate outcome of these matters will have a material adverse effect
on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Patent Infringement Matters. In December 2014, our subsidiary, Quest Integrity, filed three patent infringement lawsuits
against three different defendants, two in the U.S. District of Delaware and one in the U.S. District of Western Washington. Quest
Integrity alleges that the three defendants infringed Quest Integrity’s patent, entitled “2D and 3D Display System and Method for
Furnace Tube Inspection”. This Quest Integrity patent generally teaches a system and method for displaying inspection data
collected during the inspection of furnace tubes in petroleum and petro-chemical refineries. The subject patent litigation is specific
to the visual display of the collected data and does not relate to Quest Integrity’s underlying advanced inspection technology. In
these lawsuits Quest Integrity is seeking temporary and permanent injunctive relief, as well as monetary damages. Defendants
have denied they infringe any valid claim of Quest Integrity’s patent, and have asserted declaratory judgment counterclaims that
the patent at issue is invalid and/or unenforceable, and not infringed. In June 2015, the U.S. District of Delaware denied our
motions for preliminary injunctive relief in the Delaware Cases (that is, our request that the defendants stop using our patented
systems and methods during the pendency of the actions). In March 2017, the judge in the Delaware Cases granted summary
judgment against Quest Integrity, finding certain patent claims of the asserted patent invalid. In August 2017, the judge in the
Washington Case granted summary judgment against Quest Integrity based on the Delaware Cases ruling. Quest Integrity is in
the process of appealing both Delaware Cases and the Washington Case.

We are involved in various other lawsuits and are subject to various claims and proceedings encountered in the normal

conduct of business. In our opinion, any uninsured losses that might arise from these lawsuits and proceedings will not have a
materially adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
NOT APPLICABLE

15



Table of Contents

PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our stock is traded on the NYSE under the symbol “TISI”. The table below reflects the high and low sales prices of our
common stock by quarter for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Sales Price

High Low
2017
Quarter ended:
1Y 0 2 R 0 B USRS $ 39.70 § 23.70
JUNE 30, 2017 .ottt ettt ettt et ettt b et st sttt ne st eteeneeneetenteereesenbenne $ 3020 $ 23.25
SePtemMDEr 30, 2017 ...eeeiieie ettt ettt ettt te et neenneens $ 24.80 $ 10.45
DECEMDET 31, 2017 .ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt eae s $ 1535 § 11.45
2016
Quarter ended:
Y e N 2 R 0 TSR $ 3187 § 21.61
JUNE 30, 2016ttt ettt ettt ettt et e s b st ne st teeneeseete et ereesensenne $ 3249 § 23.53
SeptembEr 30, 2010 .....c.eiieieieiecieieeeee ettt seeaeeneeneens $ 3371 § 24.10
DECEMDET 31, 2016.....cc ettt et naaee s $ 39.60 $ 28.00
Holders

There were 595 holders of record of our common stock as of March 8, 2018, excluding beneficial owners of stock held in
street name.

Dividends

No cash dividends were declared or paid during the year ended December 31, 2017 or the year ended December 31, 2016.
We are limited in our ability to pay cash dividends without the consent of our bank syndicate. Accordingly, we have no present
intention to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Additionally, any future dividend payments will continue to depend on
our financial condition, market conditions and other matters deemed relevant by the Board.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

This information has been omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K as we intend to file such information in our
Definitive Proxy Statement no later than 120 days following the close of our fiscal year ended December 31,2017. The information
required regarding equity compensation plans is hereby incorporated by reference.
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the performance of our common stock to the NYSE Composite Index and a
Peer Group Index. The comparison assumes $100 was invested on May 31, 2012 in our common stock, the NYSE Composite
Index and a Peer Group Index. The values of each investment are based on share price appreciation, with reinvestment of all
dividends, assuming any were paid. For each graph, the investments are assumed to have occurred at the beginning of each period
presented. The following companies are included in our Peer Group Index used in the graph: Matrix Service Company, Englobal
Corporation and Mistras Group, Inc.

COMPARISON OF 6 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Team, Inc., the NYSE Composite Index and Peer Group

$300

$250

$200

$150

$100

$50

$0 T T \ T T \
05/31/12 05/31/13 05/31/14 05/31/15 12/31/15 12/31/16 12/31/17

—H— Team, Inc. - A - NYSE Composite —#&— Peer Group

* $100 invested on 5/31/12 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends. Years ended May 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015; seven-month transition
period ended December 31, 2015; and years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017.

5112 513 5/14 5115 12/15 12/16 12/17
Team, Inc.......cccceuennenne. 100.00 135.19 157.12 149.18 119.79 147.11 55.85
NYSE Composite.......... 100.00 128.64 151.57 159.48 148.40 166.12 197.23
Peer Group ..........c....... 100.00 109.89 165.90 104.86 115.09 144.41 120.35

Note: The above information was provided by Research Data Group, Inc.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We have included selected financial data for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended
December 31,2015 and for the years ended May 31, 2013 through 2015 under “Five Year Comparison,” in the financial information
that is included in this report in Part I, Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” This information is incorporated
herein by reference.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations listed in the Financial Table
of Contents included in this report is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have included a discussion about market risks under “Market Risk” in the Management’s Analysis that is included in
this report in Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” This
information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our Consolidated Financial Statements, the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the reports of our Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm and the information under “Quarterly Results” listed in this report are incorporated herein by
reference. All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC are not required
under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and therefore, have been omitted.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There have been no disagreements concerning accounting and financial disclosures with our independent accountants during
any of the periods presented.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Limitations on effectiveness of control. Our management, including the principal executive and financial officer, does not
expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all errors
and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed or operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the control system are met. The design of our control system reflects the fact that there are resource constraints
and the benefits of such controls must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control failures and instances of fraud, if any, have been
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can
occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts, by collusion of two
or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is also based in part on certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated
goals under all potential future conditions. Projections of management’s assessments of the current effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures and its internal control over financial reporting are subject to risks. However, our disclosure controls and
procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the objectives of our control system are met.

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation was
carried out under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
and our Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”)). This
evaluation included consideration of the various processes carried out under the direction of our disclosure committee in an effort
to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our SEC reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified by the SEC. This evaluation also considered the work completed related to our compliance with Section 404
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that, as of December 31,2017, our disclosure controls and procedures
were operating effectively to ensure that the information required to be disclosed in our SEC reports is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the requisite time periods and that such information is appropriately accumulated and
communicated to management, including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined
in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with GAAP.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial objectives because of its
inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and compliance and is
subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal control over financial reporting can also be
circumvented by collusion or improper management override. Because of such limitations, there is arisk that material misstatements
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations
are known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce,
though not eliminate, this risk.

We have used the framework set forth in the report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013) to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting. We have concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2017.

Attestation report of the registered public accounting firm. The attestation report of KPMG LLP, the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is set forth in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K on page 44.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting. There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act) that have materially affected or are reasonably likely
to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended December 31,
2017.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
NONE
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PART III

The information for the following items of Part III has been omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K since we will
file, not later than 120 days following the close of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, our Definitive Proxy Statement. The
information required by Part III will be included in that proxy statement and such information is hereby incorporated by reference,
with the exception of the information under the headings “Compensation Committee Report” and “Audit Committee Report.”

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
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ITEM 15.
@ 1

PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Consolidated Financial Statements filed as part of this report are listed in the Financial Table of Contents included in

this report and incorporated by reference in this report in Part II, Item 7 “ Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Item 8, “Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data.”

2)  All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are listed in this report
in Part II, Item 8, “Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

3)

See exhibits listed under Part (b) below.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

33

4.1

4.2

10.14

10.2%

10.3f

10.4%

10.5F

10.6F

10.7¢

10.8+

10.9

10.10

Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 2, 2011, incorporated by reference herein).

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated October
24,2013 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 25,2013, incorporated
by reference herein).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company.

Certificate representing shares of common stock of Company (filed as Exhibit 4(1) to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, File No. 2-68928, incorporated by reference herein).

Indenture, dated July 31, 2017, between Team, Inc. and Branch Banking and Trust Company, as trustee, relating
to the Company’s 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes Due 2023 (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on July 31, 2017, incorporated by reference herein).

Team, Inc. 2004 Restricted Stock Option and Award Plan dated June 24, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2004, incorporated by reference herein).

Team, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (as Amended and Restated August 1, 2009) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 30, 2009, incorporated by reference herein).

Furmanite Corporation 1994 Stock Incentive Plan, Amendment and Restatement effective May 9, 2013 (filed as
Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 333-209871, filed on March 1, 2016,
incorporated by reference herein).

Team, Inc. 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Appendix A of the Company’s Definitive
Proxy on Schedule 14A, as filed with the SEC on April 12, 2016).

Form of Stock Unit Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
October 17, 2008, incorporated by reference herein).

Form of Performance-Based Stock Unit Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on October 17, 2008, incorporated by reference herein).

Form of Performance Share Award Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed November 4, 2014, incorporated by reference herein).

Form of Performance Award Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on March 16, 2017, incorporated by reference herein).

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 7, 2015 among Team, Inc., Bank of America,
N.A. as Administrative Agent, Swingline Lender and L/C Issuer, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication
Agent, Compass Bank, as Documentation Agent and the other Lenders party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 9, 2015, incorporated by reference herein).

Second Amendment and Commitment Increase to Credit Agreement, dated February 24, 2016, among Team Inc.,
certain Team Inc. Subsidiary Guarantors, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender
and L/C Issuer, and other Lenders party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on March 1, 2016, incorporated by reference herein).
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Exhibit
Number

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.177

10.18 +

10.19 +

10.20 +

10.21 ¥

10.22 1

10.23

10.24 +

10.25

10.26 +
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23.1

Description

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated August 17, 2016, among Team, Inc., certain Team, Inc. Subsidiary
Guarantors, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer, and other Lenders
party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2016,
incorporated by reference herein).

Fourth Amendment and Limited Waiver to Credit Agreement, dated December 19,2016, among Team, Inc., certain
Team, Inc. Subsidiary Guarantors, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C
Issuer, and other Lenders party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on March 16, 2017, incorporated by reference herein).

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated May 5, 2017, among Team, Inc., certain Team, Inc. Subsidiary
Guarantors, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer, and other Lenders
party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2017,
incorporated herein by reference).

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 21, 2017 (but effective as of June 30,2017), among Team,
Inc., certain Team, Inc. Subsidiary Guarantors, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line
Lender and L/C Issuer, and other Lenders party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed on July 31, 2017, incorporated by reference herein).

Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2018, among Team, Inc., certain Team, Inc.
Subsidiary Guarantors, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuers, and
other Lenders party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March
9, 2018, incorporated by reference herein).

Purchase Agreement, dated July 25, 2017, between Team, Inc. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as representatives of the several initial purchasers named in Schedule
1 thereto, relating to the Company’s 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes Due 2023 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 31, 2017, incorporated by reference herein).

Non-Disclosure, Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Agreement between Philip J. Hawk, Team Industrial
Services, Inc., Team, Inc. and their affiliated entities, effective as of August 8, 2016 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2016, incorporated herein by reference).

Confidential Severance Agreement and Release by and between Team, Inc. and Ted W. Owen, dated September
18, 2017 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 19, 2017,
incorporated by reference herein).

Letter Agreement for Consulting Services between Team, Inc. and Ted W. Owen, dated September 18, 2017
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 19,
2017).

Letter Agreement between Team, Inc. and Gary G. Yesavage, dated September 18,2017 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 19, 2017).

Letter Agreement Regarding Retention Benefits between Team, Inc. and Jeffrey L. Ott, dated September 18,2017
(incorporated by reference herein Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September
19,2017).

Letter Agreement Regarding Retention Benefits between Team, Inc. and Arthur F. Victorson, dated September 18,
2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September
19, 2017).

Offer Letter, dated January 15, 2018, between Team, Inc. and Amerino Gatti (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 16, 2018, incorporated by reference herein).

Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement between Team, Inc. and Amerino Gatti (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 16, 2018, incorporated by reference herein).

Settlement Agreement, by and among Team, Inc. and Engine Capital, L.P. (together with the entities listed on the
signature page thereto), dated February 8, 2018 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on February 9, 2018, incorporated by reference herein).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on February 9, 2018, incorporated by reference herein).

Subsidiaries of the Company.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—KPMG LLP.
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Exhibit

Number Description
31.1 Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certifications pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
322 Certifications pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS  XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document.
101.CAL XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF  XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB XBRL Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE  XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.

1 Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement.

Note: Unless otherwise indicated, documents incorporated by reference are located under SEC file number 001-08604.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY
NONE
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized March 15, 2018.

TEAM, INC.

/S/ AMERINO GATTI
Amerino Gatti
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacity and on the dates indicated.

Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal
/S/ AMERINO GATTI Executive Officer) March 15, 2018

(Amerino Gatti)

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal
/8! GREG L. BOANE Accounting Officer) March 15, 2018

(Greg L. Boane)

/S/ JEFFERY G. DAVIS Director March 15, 2018
(Jeffery G. Davis)
Director
(Brian K. Ferraioli)
/S/" SYLVIA J. KERRIGAN Director March 15, 2018
(Sylvia J. Kerrigan)
/s/" EMMETT J. LESCROART Director March 15, 2018
(Emmett J. Lescroart)
/s/" MICHAEL A. LUCAS Director March 15, 2018
(Michael A. Lucas)
Director
(Craig L. Martin)
/s/ LouIls A. WATERS Chairman of the Board March 15, 2018
(Louis A. Waters)
/S/" GARY G. YESAVAGE Director March 15, 2018

(Gary G. Yesavage)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following review of our results of operations and financial condition should be read in conjunction with Item 1 “Business,”
Item 1A “Risk Factors,” Item 2 “Properties,” and Item 8 “Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF
SAFE HARBOR PROVISIONS OF THE
PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

This report includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In addition, other written or oral statements that constitute forward-looking
statements may be made by us or on behalf of the Company in other materials we release to the public including all statements,
other than statements of historical facts, included or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, that address
activities, events or developments which we expect or anticipate will or may occur in the future. You can generally identify our
forward-looking statements by the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “estimate,” “project,” “projection,”

“predict,” “budget,” “forecast,” “goal,” “guidance,” “target,” “will,” “could,” “should,” “may” and similar expressions.

LR 2 ¢ EENT3
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We based our forward-looking statements on our reasonable beliefs and assumptions, and our current expectations, estimates
and projections about ourselves and our industry. We caution that these statements are not guarantees of future performance and
involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that we cannot predict. In addition, we based many of these forward-looking statements
on assumptions about future events that may prove to be inaccurate. We wish to ensure that such statements are accompanied by
meaningful cautionary statements, so as to obtain the protections of the safe harbor established in the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for us to predict all such risk factors, nor
can we assess the impact of all such risk factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may
cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. Accordingly, forward-looking
statements cannot be relied upon as a guarantee of future results and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those projected in the statements, including, but not limited to the statements under “Risk
Factors.” We undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is provided as a supplement
to the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes to help provide an understanding of our financial condition,
changes in financial condition, and results of operations.

General Information

We are a leading provider of standard to specialty industrial services, including inspection, engineering assessment and
mechanical repair and remediation required in maintaining high temperature and high pressure piping systems and vessels that
are utilized extensively in the refining, petrochemical, power, pipeline and other heavy industries. We conduct operations in three
segments: TeamQualspec, TeamFurmanite and Quest Integrity. Through the capabilities and resources in these three segments,
we believe that Team is uniquely qualified to provide integrated solutions involving in their most basic form, inspection to assess
condition, engineering assessment to determine fitness for purpose in the context of industry standards and regulatory codes and
mechanical services to repair, rerate or replace based upon the client’s election. In addition, our Company is capable of escalating
with the client’s needs-as dictated by the severity of the damage found and the related operating conditions-from standard services
to some of the most advanced services and integrated integrity management and asset reliability solutions available in the industry.
We also believe that Team is unique in its ability to provide services in three distinct client demand profiles: (i) turnaround or
project services, (ii) call-out services and (iii) nested or run-and-maintain services.

TeamQualspec provides standard and advanced NDT services for the process, pipeline and power sectors, pipeline integrity
management services, field heat treating services, as well as associated engineering and assessment services. These services can
be offered while facilities are running (on-stream), during facility turnarounds or during new construction or expansion activities.

TeamFurmanite, our mechanical services segment, provides primarily call-out and turnaround services under both on-stream
and off-line/shut down circumstances. Turnaround services are project-related and demand is a function of the number and scope
of scheduled and unscheduled facility turnarounds as well as new industrial facility construction or expansion activities. The
turnaround and call-out services TeamFurmanite provides include field machining, technical bolting, field valve repair, and isolation
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test plugging services. On-stream services offered by TeamFurmanite represent the services offered while plants are operating and
under pressure. These services include leak repair, fugitive emissions control and hot tapping.

Quest Integrity provides integrity and reliability management solutions for the process, pipeline and power sectors. These
solutions encompass two broadly-defined disciplines: (1) highly specialized in-line inspection services for unpiggable process
piping and pipelines using proprietary in-line inspection tools and analytical software; and (2) advanced condition assessment
services through a multi-disciplined engineering team.

We offer these services globally through over 220 locations in 20 countries throughout the world with more than 7,300
employees. We market our services to companies in a diverse array of heavy industries which include the petrochemical, refining,
power, pipeline, steel, pulp and paper industries, as well as municipalities, shipbuilding, OEMs, distributors, and some of the
world’s largest engineering and construction firms.

As previously announced, in September 2017, Ted W. Owen stepped down as CEO and Gary G. Yesavage, a member of the
Board, was appointed as Team’s Interim CEO to serve until a permanent CEO was hired. Effective January 24, 2018, the Board
named Amerino Gatti as CEO and a member of the Board.

Results of Operations

In November 2015, we announced we would change our fiscal year end to December 31 of each calendar year from May
31. In connection with this change, we previously filed a Transition Report on Form 10-K to report the results of the seven-month
transition period from June 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. In this report, the periods presented are the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, the seven-month transition period from June 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015.
For comparison purposes, we have also included unaudited data for the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the seven months
ended December 31, 2014, which can be found in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2016

The following table sets forth the components of revenue and operating income (loss) from our operations for years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Twelve Months Ended Increase
December 31, (Decrease)
2017 2016 $ %
Revenues by business segment:
TeamQuUAlSPEC......ccvevierieiieiieieeeereee e $ 588,441 $ 589,478 $ (1,037) (0.2)%
TeamFurmanite..........ccooeeevvieeciieiieeceecie e 529,973 539,627 (9,654) (1.8)%
QUESE INEEGIILY .oovveereeieeiieieeieie e 81,797 67,591 14,206 21.0 %
TOtal oo $ 1,200,211 $ 1,196,696 $ 3,515 0.3 %
Operating income (loss):
TeamQUAISPEC? ... $ 11,128 $ 43,367 $ (32,239) (74.3)%
TeamFUurmanite’..............oooueveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen (33,993) 27,283 (61,276) NM!
QUESE INEEEIILY .oovveveenieeiieieciieie e 12,337 4,780 7,557 158.1 %
Corporate and shared support Services ............cceevenvnnen. (104,582) (78,548) (26,034) 33.1 %
TOLAL vttt $ (115,110) $ (3,118) $ (111,992) NM'

1 NM - Not meaningful
Includes goodwill impairment loss of $21.1 million and $54.1 million for TeamQualspec and TeamFurmanite, respectively, in 2017.

[

Revenues. Total revenues grew $3.5 million or 0.3% from the same period in the prior year. Excluding the favorable impact
of $4.2 million due to foreign currency exchange rates, total revenues decreased by $0.7 million, TeamQualspec revenues decreased
by $3.7 million, TeamFurmanite revenues decreased by $10.4 million, and Quest Integrity revenues increased by $13.4 million.
The decreases in TeamQualspec and TeamFurmanite revenues were partially attributable to hurricane-related impacts in 2017,
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including customer project deferrals and lost billable hours that we estimate reduced revenues by approximately $7 million and
$6 million, respectively, for these segments. Within TeamQualspec, these hurricane-related impacts were partially offset by
approximately $3.1 million of revenue attributable to acquisitions completed in the prior year. Within TeamFurmanite, in addition
to the hurricane-related impacts, the revenue decline is also attributable to the effects of ongoing market softness that began in the
second half 2015 and continued through 2017, as we experienced a continuation of the weak and uncertain macro environment
in the industries in which we operate, with activity levels remaining below historical levels. These decreases were partially offset
by increases associated with a full-year effect of the acquisition of Furmanite in 2017, compared to ten months of activity from
Furmanite in 2016. On a pro forma basis, assuming Furmanite had been acquired prior to January 1, 2016, TeamFurmanite revenues
declined by $53.4 million, or 9.2%, in 2017 compared to 2016, reflecting the ongoing market softness. The increase in revenues
for Quest Integrity reflects overall higher volumes across inspection and assessment services reflecting increased demand and the
impact of an acquisition in the prior year that contributed approximately $1.7 million of revenue, partially offset by hurricane-
related project deferrals estimated at approximately $1 million.

Operating income (loss). Overall operating loss was $115.1 million, compared to an operating loss of $3.1 million in the
prior year. The increase in the operating loss is primarily attributable to the TeamFurmanite and TeamQualspec segments, which
experienced decreased operating income of $61.3 million and $32.2 million, respectively, as well as an increase in corporate and
shared support services expenses of $26.0 million compared to the prior year. Partially offsetting these impacts, the Quest Integrity
segment experienced higher operating income of $7.6 million. The sharp decline in operating income for the TeamFurmanite and
TeamQualspec segments is largely attributable to goodwill impairment losses in the current year of $54.1 million and $21.1 million,
respectively, in these segments, These impairment losses were a result of our interim goodwill impairment test completed in the
third quarter of 2017, which was triggered by the existence of impairment indicators, including the continued market softness and
the related impacts on our financial results and our stock price. The results of the impairment test indicated that the carrying values
of our TeamFurmanite and TeamQualspec operating segments exceeded their estimated fair values. The estimated fair values of
these segments have been adversely impacted by the declines in operating results and the related significant decrease in our share
price experienced during 2017, particularly the decrease experienced during the third quarter. Although there was no additional
impairment following our fourth quarter annual impairment test, it is possible that we could experience additional goodwill
impairment losses in future periods.
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In addition to the $75.2 million in goodwill impairment losses, the current year includes net expenses totaling $32.5 million
that we do not believe are indicative of the Company’s core operating activities, while the same period in the prior year included
$34.6 million of such items, as detailed by segment in the table below (in thousands):

Expenses reflected in operating income (loss) that are not indicative of the Company s core operating activities (unaudited):

Corporate and

shared support
TeamQualspec  TeamFurmanite  Quest Integrity services Total
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2017
Implementation of the new ERP system............... $ — 3 — 3 — 3 13,776 $ 13,776
Restructuring and other related charges................ 966 393 429 863 2,651
Executive severance/transition cost' — — — 1,190 1,190
Natural disaster COStS2...........ourerrrrerirrererrnenns 1,325 633 — 95 2,053
Goodwill impairment 10SS.............ccccoorveveiruerennnnn. 21,140 54,101 — — 75,241
Revaluation of contingent consideration.............. (1,174) — — — (1,174)
AsSet WIE-0fFS.......cvieieieciecieieeeeiee e 1,210 — — — 1,210
Legal, professional fees and other® ....................... — 163 — 12,552 12,715
Total......oooeiiiiiccc e $ 23,467 $ 55290 $ 429 % 28,476 $ 107,662
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2016
Implementation of the new ERP system $ — 3 — 3 — 3 7,631 $ 7,631
Restructuring and other related charges................ — 5,513 — — 5,513
ACqUISItION COSES® ........eeoeeeeeeeeee e 307 257 114 6,736 7,414
Natural diSaster COSIS?..........ovurrerrerunrrerrernnienes 162 233 — — 395
Revaluation of contingent consideration............... — 2,184 — — 2,184
Asset WITtE-0fTS.........uovuuereerireieierieeirceeeireenis 650 — — — 650
Legal, professional fees and other® ...............co...... (184) 728 3,014 7,224 10,782
TOtAl....oe e $ 935 § 8915 $ 3,128 $ 21,591 $ 34,569

1 Associated with the executive leadership change discussed above

2 Primarily incremental costs incurred associated with hurricane-related impacts in 2017 and severe flooding in Louisiana in 2016

3 Consists primarily of professional fees for assessment of corporate and support cost structures, acquired business integration, intellectual property legal defense costs associated

with Quest Integrity and non-cash compensation cost associated with acceleration of vesting of awards
4 Primarily associated with the acquisition of Furmanite in 2016

Excluding the impact of these identified items in both periods, operating loss changed unfavorably by $38.9 million, consisting
of decreased operating income in TeamQualspec and TeamFurmanite of $9.7 million and $14.9 million, respectively, and an
increase in corporate and shared support services expenses of $19.2 million, partially offset by increased operating income in the
Quest Integrity segment of $4.9 million. The overall decline in operating income was partially offset by the initial benefits realized
from our company-wide cost savings initiative, which commenced in July 2017. The reduced operating income this year for
TeamQualspec is primarily attributable to unfavorable changes in the mix of work, including more nested/resident work which
traditionally carries a lower margin, as well as higher labor costs and the effect of the hurricane-related impacts. Within
TeamFurmanite, the lower operating income is primarily attributable to the effects of market softness in 2017 and the hurricane-
related impacts described above. The higher operating income in the Quest Integrity segment is primarily attributable to higher
volumes across inspection and assessment services, reflecting improvements in market conditions. The higher expenses in corporate
and shared support services is due in part to the commencement of depreciation and amortization expense on our new Enterprise
Resource Planning (“ERP”) system that was placed into service in the first quarter of 2017 as well as related ongoing operating
costs. Additionally, the increase consists of higher rent expense, increases in certain professional fees and the absorption of certain
of Furmanite’s corporate costs.

Write-off of deferred loan costs. The write-off of deferred loan costs of $1.2 million for the year ended December 31,2017
was associated with the extinguishment of the term-loan portion of the Company’s Credit Facility as well as a reduction in capacity
of the revolving portion of the Credit Facility in July 2017.

Gain on convertible debt embedded derivative. Because we could be required to cash-settle a portion of the conversion
feature of the Notes, we recognize an embedded derivative liability for the conversion feature for approximately 60% of the Notes
pursuant to ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, with changes in fair value of the embedded derivative liability reflected in our
results of operations each period. Gains and/or losses on the embedded derivative liability will continue to impact our results of
operations unless and until we receive stockholder approval for the issuance of more than 19.99 percent of our outstanding common
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stock upon conversion of the Notes. The valuation of such derivative liability is highly sensitive to changes in the price of our
common stock. Generally, decreases in our stock price will result in gains, while increases in our stock price will result in losses.
The Company recorded a gain on this embedded derivative of $0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased from $12.7 million in the prior year to $21.5 million in the current year. The
increase is primarily due to higher interest rates on our Credit Facility borrowings compared to the same period in the prior year,
as well as the effect of using the proceeds from the Notes offering to repay a portion of the Credit Facility borrowings. The Notes
bear a higher effective interest rate than our Credit Facility borrowings and therefore also contributed to the increase in interest
expense.

Foreign currency gain (loss) and other. Non-operating results include foreign currency transaction losses of $0.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to foreign currency transaction gains of $0.1 million in the same period last year.
Foreign currency transaction gains and losses in both periods reflect the effects of fluctuations in the U.S. Dollar relative to the
currencies to which we have exposure, including but not limited to, the Brazilian Real, British Pound, Canadian Dollar, Euro,
Australian Dollar, New Zealand Dollar, Norwegian Kroner, Malaysian Ringgit, Mexican Peso and Singapore Dollar.

Taxes. The benefit for income tax was $33.4 million on the pre-tax loss from continuing operations of $137.5 million in the
current year compared to the benefit for income tax of $3.1 million on pre-tax loss from continuing operations of $15.7 million
in the prior year. The effective tax rate was 24.3% for the year ended December 31,2017 and 19.8% for the year ended December 31,
2016. In connection with our initial analysis of the impact of the 2017 Tax Act, we have recorded a provisional estimate of a net
tax benefit of $26.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2017, which was the primary reason for the net increase in the
Company’s effective tax rate for the period as compared to 2016. This net benefit included a net benefit of $17.1 million for the
decrease in our deferred tax liability on unremitted foreign earnings, a benefit of $17.4 million associated with the remeasurement
of other deferred tax balances to reflect the new tax rate and an increase in tax expense of approximately $8.4 million, net of
related foreign tax credits, associated with a deemed repatriation tax. The net increase in the effective tax rate for the period was
partially offset by the effect of the non-deductible portion of the goodwill impairment loss and the establishment of a valuation
allowance on U.S. federal deferred tax assets, both of which were not directly related to the 2017 Tax Act. In 2018, our income
tax expense (benefit) may be materially impacted by the adjustments to our provisional estimates that result from the finalization
of our assessment of the impacts of the 2017 Tax Act. For additional information on the 2017 Tax Act, see Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Discontinued operations. Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax, was $0.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and relates to the operating results and disposal of an acquired Furmanite business that we sold in December
2016.

Year Ended December 31, 2016 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2015

The following table sets forth the components of revenue and operating income from our operations for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

Twelve Months Ended Increase
December 31, (Decrease)
2016 2015 $ %
(unaudited)
Revenues by business segment:
TeamQUAISPEC........cvvereeiererereeieeeeteeeeeee et $ 580478 $ 549,307 $ 40,171 7.3 %
TeamFurmanite.........ccoecverveevenieieneieieseeee s eeeseeae e 539,627 302,581 237,046 78.3 %
QUESt INtEGIILY .evveeeenieiieieieeeeeecee e 67,591 74,468 (6,877) (9.2)%
TOtAL ..o $ 1,196,696 $ 926,356 $ 270,340 29.2 %
Operating income (loss):
TeamQUAISPEC........cvvereeiererereeieeeeteeeeeee et $ 43,367 $ 56,001 $ (12,634) (22.6)%
TeamFurmanite...........cocveoveveeeieeeeeeee e 27,283 26,164 1,119 4.3 %
QUESt INtEGIILY .evveeienieiieieiieeee e 4,780 11,497 (6,717) (58.4)%
Corporate and shared support Services ..........cecceeeeenennen. (78,548) (46,371) (32,177) 69.4 %
TOLAL .ot $ (3,118) $ 47,291 $ (50,409) (106.6)%
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Revenues. Total revenues grew $270.3 million or 29.2% from the same period in 2015, primarily due to the Furmanite and
Qualspec acquisitions, completed in February 2016 and July 2015, respectively, partially offset by lower Quest Integrity revenues
and an adverse impact of $6.6 million due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Excluding the impact of changes in foreign
exchange rates, total revenues increased by $276.9 million, TeamQualspec revenues increased by $43.6 million, TeamFurmanite
revenues increased by $239.9 million and Quest Integrity revenues decreased by $6.6 million. Due to the integration of both
Furmanite and Qualspec into our existing operations during 2016, it is not practicable to specifically quantify the year-over-year
revenue impact of these acquisitions. On a pro forma basis, assuming that the Furmanite and Qualspec acquisitions occurred at
the beginning of 2015, total revenues declined $120.8 million, or 8.9%. Market softness, which began in the second half of 2015,
continued throughout 2016 across all three business segments. The weak market conditions led to a combination of project deferrals,
scope reductions and maintenance deferrals, which, among other impacts, resulted in approximately 29% lower sales volumes in
heat treating services, typically associated with large, more complex turnaround projects, within our TeamQualspec segment.
Additionally, our TeamFurmanite and TeamQualspec segments were adversely affected by wildfires in the Canadian oil sands
area near Fort McMurray in the second quarter of 2016 as well as severe flooding in Louisiana in the third quarter of 2016. In the
fall of 2016, what appeared to be the first signs of more normalized market activity did not ultimately develop into sustained
increases as we saw demand weaken again in the latter part of the year.

Operating income (loss). Overall operating loss was $3.1 million, compared to operating income of $47.3 million in 2015.
The year ended December 31, 2016 includes net expenses totaling $34.6 million that we do not believe are indicative of the
Company’s core operating activities, while the same period in 2015 included $14.2 million of such items, as detailed by segment
in the table below (in thousands):

Expenses reflected in operating income (loss) that are not indicative of the Company s core operating activities (unaudited):

Corporate and
shared support

TeamQualspec ~ TeamFurmanite  Quest Integrity services Total
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2016
Implementation of the new ERP system............... $ — 3 — $ — 3 7,631 $ 7,631
Restructuring and other related charges................ — 5,513 — — 5,513
ACQUISIHION COSES” ..o 307 257 114 6,736 7,414
Natural disaster COStS?..........oovreriurrerrereerienrennes 162 233 — — 395
Revaluation of contingent consideration.............. — 2,184 — — 2,184
ASSEt WITE-0FS ... 650 — — — 650
Legal, professional fees and other®...............c....... (184) 728 3,014 7,224 10,782
TOtAL.....oeiiiec e $ 935 § 8915 $ 3,128 $ 21,591  $ 34,569
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2015
Implementation of the new ERP system............... $ — 3 — 3 — 3 2,875 $ 2,875
ACqUISItIon COSES' ............ovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeceees — — — 6,782 6,782
Revaluation of contingent consideration .............. 522 — — — 522
ASSEt WITE-0fFS ..o — 383 — — 383
Legal, professional fees and other®....................... — — 2,746 897 3,643
TOtAL...ooi e $ 522§ 383 § 2,746 $ 10,554  $ 14,205
1 Primarily associated with the acquisition of Furmanite in 2016 and Qualspec in 2015
2 Primarily incremental costs incurred due to the severe flooding in Louisiana in 2016
3 Consists primarily of professional fees for acquired business integration, intellectual property legal defense costs associated with Quest Integrity and non-cash compensation

cost associated with acceleration of vesting of awards

Excluding the impact of these items, operating income (loss) changed unfavorably by $30.0 million as the effect of acquisition-
related growth was more than offset by the adverse effects of the market softness and reduced customer spending described above.
Additionally, we experienced lower average gross margins in 2016 as the market softness resulted in an unfavorable service mix
shift away from higher margin advanced and specialty services normally tied to large turnaround projects. Further, operating
income (loss) was affected by an increase in corporate and shared support services of $21.1 million, which includes the addition
of Furmanite’s ongoing corporate-related costs and higher share-based compensation expense.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased from $5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to $12.7 million for

the year ended December 31, 2016. The increase is due primarily to additional debt financing used to fund acquisitions, including
the July 2015 acquisition of Qualspec and a portion of the February 2016 acquisition of Furmanite.

31



Table of Contents

Foreign currency gain (loss) and other. Non-operating results include $0.1 million of foreign currency transaction gains
for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to foreign currency transaction losses and other losses of $2.3 million in the
same period in 2015. Foreign currency gains and losses in both periods reflect the effects of fluctuations in the U.S. Dollar relative
to the currencies we have exposure to, including but not limited to, the Australian Dollar, Brazilian Real, British Pound, Canadian
Dollar, Euro, Malaysian Ringgit and Mexican Peso. Non-operating results in 2015 also reflect a one-time pre-tax charge of $1.2
million after we began reporting the results of our Venezuelan operations using the cost method of accounting. We disposed of
our Venezuelan operations in June 2015.

Taxes. The benefit for income tax was $3.1 million on the pre-tax loss from continuing operations of $15.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the provision for income tax of $13.7 million on pre-tax income from continuing
operations of $39.2 million in 2015. The effective tax rate was 19.8% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 35.1% for the
year ended December 31, 2015. The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily driven by the effects of discrete items such
as the settlement of prior years with the Internal Revenue Service and changes in valuation allowances as well as permanent
differences that had significant impacts due to the size and direction of pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operations in both
periods.

Discontinued operations. Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax, was $0.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and relates to the operating results and disposal of an acquired Furmanite business that we sold in December
2016.

Seven Months Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to Seven Months Ended December 31, 2014

The following table sets forth the components of revenue and operating income from our operations for the seven months
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands):

Seven Months Ended Increase
December 31, (Decrease)
2015 2014 $ %
(unaudited)
Revenues by business segment:
TeamQUAISPEC........cuiverieeriieteeieeeeteee ettt $ 351,949 $ 269,742 $ 82,207 30.5 %
TeamFurmanite.........cccoeeveevveenienieeieesie e 178,238 176,112 2,126 1.2 %
QUESt INtEGIILY .ot 41,531 41,554 (23) (0.)%
TOtal oo s $ 571,718  $ 487,408 $ 84,310 17.3 %
Operating income:
TeamQUAISPEC........cuiverieeriieteeieeeeteee ettt $ 31,175 S 35,696 $ (4,521) (12.7)%
TeamFurmanite.........cccoeveeevieecieiieeieesie e 14,335 16,838 (2,503) (14.9)%
QUESt INtEGIILY .oovveeeeeieiieee e 5,491 7,194 (1,703) (23.71)%
Corporate and shared support Services ..........coceeeenvenen. (31,839) (19,645) (12,194) 62.1 %
TOtal .o $ 19,162 $ 40,083 $ (20,921) (52.2)%

Revenues. Total revenues grew $84.3 million or 17.3% from the same period in 2014. Of this amount, approximately $85.8
million represents revenues from acquisitions completed during 2015. Excluding the impacts of acquisitions and an adverse impact
of $16.3 million due to foreign exchange rates, total revenues increased by $14.8 million, TeamQualspec revenues increased by
$11.6 million, TeamFurmanite revenues increased by $2.3 million and Quest revenues increased by $0.9 million. While activity
levels were up slightly in the seven months ended December 31, 2015, the fall turnaround season was softer than expected as our
refining and petrochemical customers deferred many of their planned capital and maintenance projects.

Operating income. Overall operating income declined by $20.9 million or 52.2% from the same period in 2014. The seven

months ended December 31, 2015 includes expenses that are not indicative of our core operating activities totaling $11.1 million,
while the same period in 2014 includes $0.2 million of such items, as detailed by segment in the table below (in thousands):
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Expenses reflected in operating income (loss) that are not indicative of the Company s core operating activities (unaudited):

Corporate and
shared support

TeamQualspec ~ TeamFurmanite  Quest Integrity services Total

Seven Months Ended December 31, 2015
Implementation of the new ERP system............... $ — 3 — § — 3 2,266 $ 2,266
ACQUISTHON COSES ......ooooeeeeeeeeseeee e — — — 6,215 6,215
Revaluation of contingent consideration.............. 522 — — — 522
Legal, professional fees and other”....................... — — 1,222 897 2,119
TOtAL ...ttt $ 522§ — 3 1,222 § 9,378 $ 11,122

Seven Months Ended December 31, 2014
ACQUISItION COSES! ..o $ — 3 164 $ — 3 — 3 164
TOMAL oot $ — 3 164 § — — 164

1 Primarily associated with the acquisition of Qualspec in 2015
2 Consists primarily of professional fees for acquired business integration and the change in the Company’s year end as well as intellectual property legal defense costs
associated with Quest Integrity

Excluding the impact of these items as well as the adverse foreign exchange rate changes of $1.1 million, operating income
decreased by $8.7 million or 21.7% as a result of weaker than expected revenue generation mentioned above coupled with an
increase in corporate and shared support services expenses of $2.8 million.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased from $1.3 million for the seven months ended December 31, 2014 to $4.9
million for the seven months ended December 31, 2015. The increase is due primarily to additional debt financing used to fund
the July 2015 acquisition of Qualspec.

Foreign currency (gain) loss and other. Non-operating results include foreign currency losses of $0.8 million in the seven
months ended December 31, 2015 compared to $1.2 million in the seven months ended December 31, 2014. The seven-month
period ended December 31, 2015 reflected the effects of a strengthening U.S. Dollar relative to the currencies we have exposure
to, including but not limited to, the Euro, Australian Dollar, Brazilian Real, Canadian Dollar, Malaysian Ringgit and Mexican
Peso.

Taxes. The provision for income tax was $4.6 million on pre-tax income of $13.5 million for the seven months ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the provision for income tax of $13.6 million on pre-tax income of $37.6 million for the same
period in 2014. The effective tax rate was 34% for the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and 36% for the seven months
ended December 31, 2014. The reduction in the effective tax rate was primarily the result of foreign exchange rate changes to
certain deferred tax liability accounts.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Financing for our operations consists primarily of our Credit Facility and cash flows attributable to our operations, which
we believe are sufficient to fund our business needs. From time to time, we may experience periods of weakness in the industries
in which we operate, with activity levels below historical levels. These conditions, depending on their duration and severity, have
the potential to adversely impact our operating cash flows. In the event that existing liquidity sources are no longer sufficient for
our capital requirements, we would explore additional external financing sources. However, there can be no assurance that such
sources would be available on terms acceptable to us, if at all.

Credit Facility. In July 2015, we renewed our Credit Facility. In accordance with the second amendment to the Credit Facility,
which was signed in February 2016, the Credit Facility had a borrowing capacity of up to $600 million and consisted of a $400
million, five-year revolving loan facility and a $200 million five-year term loan facility. The swing line facility is $35.0 million.
On July 31, 2017, we completed the issuance of $230.0 million of 5.00% convertible senior notes in a private offering (the
“Offering,” which is described further below) and used the proceeds from the Offering to repay in full the outstanding term-loan
portion of our Credit Facility and a portion of the outstanding revolving borrowings. Concurrent with the completion of the Offering
and the repayment of outstanding borrowings, we entered into the sixth amendment to the Credit Facility, effective as of June 30,
2017, which reduced the capacity of the Credit Facility to a $300 million revolving loan facility, subject to a borrowing availability
test (based on eligible accounts, inventory and fixed assets). The Credit Facility matures in July 2020, bears interest based on a
variable Eurodollar rate option (LIBOR plus 3.75% margin at December 31, 2017) and has commitment fees on unused borrowing
capacity (0.75% at December 31, 2017). The Credit Facility limits our ability to pay cash dividends.
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The Credit Facility also contains financial covenants. As of December 31, 2017, the Company was required to maintain (i)
a maximum ratio of senior secured debt to consolidated EBITDA (the “Senior Secured Leverage Ratio,” as defined in the Credit
Facility agreement) of not more than 4.25 to 1.00 and (ii) an interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.00 to 1.00 (the “Interest
Coverage Ratio,” as defined in the Credit Facility agreement). As of December 31,2017, we are in compliance with these covenants.
The Senior Secured Leverage Ratio and the Interest Coverage Ratio stood at 3.53 to 1.00 and 3.03 to 1.00, respectively, as of
December 31,2017. At December 31, 2017, we had $26.6 million of cash on hand and had approximately $41 million of available
borrowing capacity through our Credit Facility. In connection with the repayment in full of the outstanding term-loan portion of
our Credit Facility of $160.0 million on July 31, 2017 and the reduction in capacity of the revolving portion of the Credit Facility,
we recorded a loss of $1.2 million during the third quarter of 2017 associated with the write-off of a portion of the debt issuance
costs associated with the Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2017, we had $2.1 million of unamortized debt issuance costs that
are being amortized over the life of the Credit Facility.

We entered into the seventh amendment to the Credit Facility (the “Seventh Amendment”) on March 8, 2018 to modify
certain of the financial covenants. The Seventh Amendment eliminated the Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility
agreement) covenant through the remainder of the term of the Credit Facility and also modified both the Senior Secured Leverage
Ratio and the Interest Coverage Ratio as follows. First, the Company is required to maintain a maximum Senior Secured Leverage
Ratio of not more 4.25 to 1.00 as of March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2018, not more than 3.50 to 1.00 as of September 30, 2018 and
each quarter thereafter through June 30, 2019 and not more than 2.75 to 1.00 as of September 30, 2019 and each quarter thereafter.
With respect to the Interest Coverage Ratio, the Company is required to maintain a ratio of not less than 2.25 to 1.00 as of March
31, 2018 and each quarter thereafter through December 31, 2018 and not less than 2.50 to 1.00 as of March 31, 2019 and each
quarter thereafter.

Our ability to maintain compliance with the financial covenants is dependent upon our future operating performance and
future financial condition, both of which are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that
we will be able to maintain compliance with the Credit Facility covenants as of any future date. In the event we are unable to
maintain compliance with our financial covenants, we would seek to enter into an amendment to the Credit Facility with our bank
group in order to modify and/or to provide relief from the financial covenants for an additional period of time. Although we have
entered into amendments in the past, there can be no assurance that any future amendments would be available on terms acceptable
to us, if at all.

In order to secure our casualty insurance programs, we are required to post letters of credit generally issued by a bank as
collateral. A letter of credit commits the issuer to remit specified amounts to the holder if the holder demonstrates that we failed
to meet our obligations under the letter of credit. If this were to occur, we would be obligated to reimburse the issuer for any
payments the issuer was required to remit to the holder of the letter of credit. We were contingently liable for outstanding stand-
by letters of credit totaling $22.5 million at December 31, 2017 and $21.6 million at December 31, 2016. Outstanding letters of
credit reduce amounts available under our Credit Facility and are considered as having been funded for purposes of calculating
our financial covenants under the Credit Facility.

Issuance of Convertible Senior Notes. On July 31,2017, we issued $230.0 million principal amount of 5.00% Convertible
Senior Notes due 2023 in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers (as defined in the Securities Act) pursuant to Rule
144A under the Securities Act.. The Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company. The Notes bear interest at a rate of
5.0% per year, payable semiannually in arrears on February 1 and August 1 of each year, beginning on February 1, 2018. The
Notes mature on August 1, 2023 unless repurchased, redeemed or converted in accordance with their terms prior to such date. The
Notes are convertible at an initial conversion rate of 46.0829 shares of our common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the
Notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $21.70 per share, which represents a conversion premium
of 40% to the last reported sale price of $15.50 per share on the NYSE on July 25, 2017, the date the pricing of the Notes was
completed. The conversion rate, and thus the conversion price, may be adjusted under certain circumstances as described in the
indenture governing the Notes.

Holders may convert their Notes at their option prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding
May 1, 2023, but only under the following circumstances:

. during any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending on December 31, 2017 (and only during
such calendar quarter), if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not
consecutive) during a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding
calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price on each applicable trading day;
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. during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day period (the “measurement period”) in which
the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Notes for each trading day of such measurement period was less than
98% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the conversion rate on such trading day;

. if we call any or all of the Notes for redemption, at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the redemption date; or;

. upon the occurrence of specified corporate events described in the indenture governing the Notes.

On or after May 1, 2023 until the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the maturity date, holders
may, at their option, convert their Notes at any time, regardless of the foregoing circumstances.

Because the Notes could be convertible in full into more than 19.99 percent of our outstanding common stock, we are
required by the listing rules of the New York Stock Exchange to obtain the approval of the holders of our outstanding shares of
common stock before the Notes may be converted into more than 5,964,858 shares of common stock. The Notes are initially
convertible into 10,599,067 shares of common stock. We have agreed to seek approval of the holders of our outstanding shares
of common stock at our next annual stockholders’ meeting. The Notes will be convertible into, subject to various conditions, cash
or shares of the Company’s common stock or a combination of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock, in each case, at
the Company’s election, except that prior to receipt of the requisite stockholder approval, the Company will settle conversion in
cash or a combination of cash and shares of common stock.

If holders elect to convert the Notes in connection with certain fundamental change transactions described in the indenture
governing the Notes, we will, under certain circumstances described in the indenture governing the Notes, increase the conversion
rate for the Notes so surrendered for conversion.

We may not redeem the Notes prior to August 5, 2021. We will have the option to redeem all or any portion of the Notes
on or after August 5, 2021, if certain conditions (including that our common stock is trading at or above 130% of the conversion
price then in effect for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive)), including the trading day immediately preceding the
date on which the Company provides notice of redemption, during any 30 consecutive trading day period ending on, and including,
the trading day immediately preceding the date on which the Company provides notice of redemption at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption
date.

Net proceeds received from the Offering were approximately $222.3 million after deducting discounts, commissions and
expenses. We used $160.0 million of the net proceeds to repay all outstanding borrowings under the term-loan portion of our
Credit Facility and $62.3 million of the net proceeds to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the revolving portion
of our Credit Facility, which may be subsequently reborrowed for general corporate purposes.

Cost Savings and Business Improvement Initiatives. On July 24, 2017, we announced our commitment to a cost savings
initiative to take direct actions to reduce our overall cost structure given the recent weak and uncertain macro environment in the
industries in which we operate. The cost savings initiative included reductions to discretionary spending and the elimination of
certain employee positions. Based upon estimates from our current planning model for workforce reductions, we believe that the
actions we have taken have reduced our annual operating expenses by approximately $30 million, with the impact to operating
results of those reduction synergies having begun in the third quarter of 2017. The resulting severance and related charges, which
were recorded in the third and fourth quarters of 2017, were approximately $3.9 million, most of which had been paid in cash as
of December 31, 2017. This cost savings initiative is largely complete. Later in 2017, the Company engaged an external consultant
to assist management with assessing the Company’s business, including its operating and corporate cost structure, and identifying
performance improvement opportunities. The assessment phase of this project is now complete and management has formed
project teams that are developing the organizational design and implementation plans. The Company expects to begin to realize
certain cost savings and other business improvements as execution of the implementation occurs starting in 2018, but does not
expect to fully realize such benefits until 2020. We expect to incur various expenses associated with execution of these plans, the
majority of which will be incurred in 2018, with funding provided by our operating cash flows and the Credit Facility. Currently,
we estimate that such expenses will not exceed $30 million in 2018. Although management expects that cost savings and other
business improvements will result from these actions, there can be no assurance that such results will be achieved.

ERP System. At the end of 2013, we initiated the design and implementation of a new ERP system, which was substantially
installed by the end of 2017. Amortization of the ERP system development costs began in March 2017 and is computed by the
straight-line method. Through December 31, 2017, we have capitalized $46.6 million associated with the project which includes
$1.6 million of capitalized interest and we have recognized $2.6 million of amortization expense.
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Common Stock Repurchase Plan. On June 23, 2014, our Board authorized an increase in the stock repurchase plan limit
to repurchase Team common stock up to $50 million (net of the $13.3 million repurchased previously). During the quarter ended
February 28, 2015, we repurchased 546,977 shares for a total cost of $21.1 million. During the year ended December 31, 2016,
we repurchased 274,110 shares for a total cost of $7.6 million. In the fourth quarter of 2016, these 821,087 shares were retired
and are not included in common stock issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2016. The retirement of the shares resulted in
areduction in common stock of $0.2 million, a reduction of $9.1 million to additional paid-in capital and a $19.4 million reduction
to retained earnings. No shares were repurchased during the year ended December 31, 2017. At December 31, 2017, $7.9 million
remained available to repurchase shares under the stock repurchase plan.

Shelf Registration Statement. In October 2016, we filed universal shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (file no.
333-214055) with the SEC (the “Shelf Registration Statement”) to issue common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants
and units from time to time in one or more offerings. However, upon the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we no longer
meet the definition of a “well-known seasoned issuer” under Rule 405 of the Securities Act, therefore the Shelf Registration
Statement will no longer be available to us. Other than through the ATM Program (defined and discussed below), no securities
were issued under the Shelf Registration Statement.

At-The-Market Offering Program. On November 28, 2016, we filed a prospectus supplement to the Shelf Registration
Statement, under which we could have sold up to $150.0 million of our common stock through an “at-the-market” equity offering
program (the “ATM Program”). Through December 31, 2016, we sold 167,931 shares of common stock under the ATM Program.
The net proceeds from such sales were $6.0 million after deducting the aggregate commissions paid of approximately $0.1 million
and were used to reduce outstanding indebtedness. No shares of common stock were sold under the ATM Program during 2017.

On July 31, 2017, we delivered written notice to Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Raymond James &
Associates, Inc. and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. (collectively, the “Agents”) of our termination of the ATM Equity
Offering®™ Sales Agreement, dated November 28, 2016 (the “Sales Agreement™), pursuant to Section 9(a) thereof. The Sales
Agreement was terminable by us or the Agents for any reason at any time without penalty upon three days’ written notice to the
other party.

In connection with the filing of the Shelf Registration Statement and the commencement of the ATM Program, we capitalized
costs totaling $0.7 million, substantially all of which was written off to selling, general and administrative expense in 2017 after
the cancellation of the ATM Program.

Cash and cash equivalents. Our cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2017 totaled $26.6 million, of which $21.5
million was in foreign accounts, primarily in Europe, Canada and Australia.

Cash flows attributable to our operating activities. For the year ended December 31, 2017, net cash used in operating
activities was $13.7 million. The negative operating cash flow was primarily attributable to the net loss of $104.2 million, deferred
tax benefits of $46.5 million and a decrease in working capital of $5.0 million, largely offset by the effect of the non-cash goodwill
impairment loss of $75.2 million, depreciation and amortization of $52.1 million and non-cash compensation cost of $7.9 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, net cash provided by operating activities was $79.6 million. Although we incurred
a net loss of $12.7 million, the effect of depreciation and amortization of $48.7 million, a decrease in working capital of $31.2
million and non-cash compensation cost of $7.3 million resulted in positive operating cash flow.

For the seven months ended December 31, 2015, net cash provided by operating activities was $17.3 million. Positive
operating cash flow was primarily attributable to net income of $8.9 million, depreciation and amortization of $19.4 million, and
non-cash compensation cost of $3.5 million offset by an increase in working capital of $20.4 million.

For the year ended May 31, 2015, net cash provided by operating activities was $43.5 million. Positive operating cash flow
was primarily attributable to net income of $40.5 million, depreciation and amortization of $22.8 million, and non-cash
compensation cost of $4.8 million offset by a $27.7 million increase in working capital.

Cash flows attributable to our investing activities. For the year ended December 31, 2017, net cash used in investing
activities was $34.0 million, consisting primarily of $36.8 million of capital expenditures. Capital expenditures included $1.8
million in costs related to our ERP project. Capital expenditures can vary depending upon specific customer needs that may arise
unexpectedly.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, net cash used in investing activities was $70.8 million, consisting primarily of $48.4
million for business acquisitions, $45.8 million of capital expenditures, partially offset by $13.3 million in net proceeds from the
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sale of discontinued operations. Capital expenditures included $19.3 million in costs related to our ERP project. Discontinued
operations relates to a pipeline inspection business that we acquired as part of the acquisition of Furmanite. This operation was
sold in December 2016.

For the seven months ended December 31,2015, net cash used in investing activities was $287.8 million, consisting primarily
of $262.1 million for business acquisitions and $25.8 million of capital expenditures. Capital expenditures included $11.1 million
in costs related to our ERP project.

For the year ended May 31, 2015, net cash used in investing activities was $31.8 million, consisting primarily of $28.8
million of capital expenditures and $3.1 million related to business acquisitions. Capital expenditures included $10.0 million in
costs related to our ERP project.

Cash flows attributable to our financing activities. For the year ended December 31, 2017, net cash provided by financing
activities was $25.6 million, consisting primarily of $222.3 million of proceeds from the issuance of our convertible senior notes,
partially offset by $170.0 million in payments on our term loan, $23.0 million of net debt repayments under the revolving portion
of our Credit Facility and $1.9 million of Credit Facility debt issuance costs.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, net cash used in financing activities was $6.0 million, consisting primarily of $7.6
million of cash related to the purchase of stock pursuant to our stock repurchase plan, $4.0 million of net cash used for debt
repayments and $2.5 million of contingent and deferred consideration payments, partially offset by $11.1 million of net cash
generated from the issuance of common stock and exercise of stock options.

For the seven months ended December 31, 2015, net cash provided by financing activities was $283.7 million consisting
primarily of $293.0 million of net borrowings related to our Credit Facility principally to fund the Qualspec acquisition and $2.1
million from the issuance of common stock from share-based payment arrangements. These amounts were partially offset by $5.9
million for the acquisition of the noncontrolling interest in Quest Integrity, $2.3 million in deferred consideration payments and
$2.0 million related to debt issuance costs.

For the year ended May 31, 2015, net cash used in financing activities was $10.1 million, consisting primarily of $21.1
million of cash related to the purchase of stock pursuant to our stock repurchase plan partially offset by $8.0 million of borrowings.

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash. For the year ended December 31,2017, the effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash was a positive impact of $2.5 million. The positive impact in the current period is primarily attributable to favorable
fluctuations in U.S. Dollar exchange rates with the Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar, and the British Pound, partially offset by
unfavorable fluctuations with the Euro and the Malaysian Ringgit.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash was a negative impact of $1.3
million. The negative impact in 2016 was primarily attributable to changes in U.S. Dollar exchange rates with the British Pound.

For the seven months ended December 31, 2015, the effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash was a negative impact
of $1.6 million. The negative impact in the period was primarily attributable to changes in U.S. Dollar exchange rates with Canada,

Europe and Malaysia.

For the year ended May 31, 2015, the effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash was a negative impact of $3.1 million.
The negative impact in the period was primarily attributable to changes in U.S. Dollar exchange rates with Canada and Europe.
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Contractual Obligations

A summary of contractual obligations as of December 31, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):

Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years Total

Principal payments on long-term debt...... $ — 5 177,857 $ — 3 230,000 $ 407,857
Interest payments on long-term debt' ...... 20,265 36,218 23,000 11,500 90,983
Operating lease obligations...................... 33,141 42,193 22,702 21,129 119,165
Defined benefit pension plan
contribution obligations .............cccceceeuenne. 2,508 5,015 5,015 26,021 38,559

TOtAl” ..o $ 55914 § 261,283 §$ 50,717  $ 288,650 §$ 656,564
1 While we cannot predict with any certainty the amount of interest payments due to the expected variability of interest rates and principal amounts outstanding, we have provided

estimated amounts of interest payments based on the following assumptions. With respect to our Credit Facility, the calculation includes estimated interest payments totaling
$22 million over the remaining contractual period based on the outstanding principal balance and interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2017. With respect to the Notes,
includes total interest payments of $69 million assuming that the Notes remain outstanding through the maturity date.

2 The table above excludes approximately $8 million (undiscounted) of lease payments over a 15-year period that we expect to be recorded as a capital lease obligation when the
facility subject to the lease is constructed and the lease commences, which is scheduled to occur in 2018.

A summary of long-term liabilities and other long-term obligations as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (in

thousands):

Long-term liabilities per consolidated balance sheets:
Long-term debt:

Credit FACIIILY ..vocviiiiiiiciiciiciieeee ettt et b e b e et e s e esaesaeesaesseenseseeas

December 31,

(010310775 ¢ 510) (3 =] o SRR

CUITENT NATUTTEIES ....veeievieeeieeeeeeeeeceee e et e eeee e e et e e e e e eeareeeeaeeeeteeeenaseeeenseeeenreeeensneeennnees

Long-term debt, excluding current maturities

Defined benefit pension lability..........ccoieiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e
Other 10ng-term HabIlItIES ... .c.eeovieiieiieiere ettt ettt saeeneeseeenseeneas

Other long-term obligations:

Outstanding 1etters Of CrEdit.........ccueririiirieiieiiee ettt s aeenees
Leasing arran@eIMENTS ...........ecveuereeueriererierereerertesertesesaesessesessesessessesensesesesensesessesessesessesessenens

Critical Accounting Policies

2017 2016
$ 177857 $ 366911
209,892 —
— (20,000)
.$ 387,749 § 346911
. $ 14976 $ 21,239
$ 9,758 $ 2,592
$ 22,540 $ 21,600
$ 119,165 $ 110,126

The process of preparing financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires our management to make estimates and
judgments. It is possible that materially different amounts could be recorded if these estimates and judgments change or if actual
results differ from these estimates and judgments. We have identified the following five critical accounting policies that require
a significant amount of estimation and judgment and are considered to be important to the portrayal of our financial position and

results of operations:
*  Revenue Recognition
*  Goodwill and Intangible Assets

¢ Income Taxes

*  Workers’ Compensation, Auto, Medical and General Liability Accruals

*  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Revenue recognition. Most of our projects are short-term in nature and we predominantly derive revenues by providing a
variety of industrial services on a time and material basis. For all of these services, our revenues are recognized when services are
rendered or when product is shipped to the job site and risk of ownership passes to the customer. However, due to various contractual
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terms with our customers, at the end of any reporting period, there may be earned but unbilled revenue that is accrued to properly
match revenues with related costs. At December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the amount of earned but unbilled revenue
included in accounts receivable was $69.1 million and $39.7 million, respectively.

Goodwill and intangible assets. We allocate the purchase price of acquired businesses to their identifiable tangible assets
and liabilities, such as accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. We
also allocate a portion of the purchase price to identifiable intangible assets, such as non-compete agreements, trademarks, trade
names, patents, technology and customer relationships. Allocations are based on estimated fair values of assets and liabilities. We
use all available information to estimate fair values including quoted market prices, the carrying value of acquired assets, and
widely accepted valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows. Certain estimates and judgments are required in the application
of the fair value techniques, including estimates of future cash flows, selling prices, replacement costs, economic lives and the
selection of a discount rate, and it involves using of Level 3 measurements as defined in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosure (“ASC 820). Deferred taxes are recorded for any differences between the assigned values and tax bases of assets and
liabilities. Estimated deferred taxes are based on available information concerning the tax bases of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and loss carryforwards at the acquisition date, although such estimates may change in the future as additional information
becomes known. Any remaining excess of cost over allocated fair values is recorded as goodwill. We typically engage third-party
valuation experts to assist in determining the fair values for both the identifiable tangible and intangible assets. The judgments
made in determining the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as asset
lives, could materially impact our results of operations.

With respect to our intangible asset associated with the Furmanite trade name, management has recently determined that,
as a result of initiatives to consolidate the Company’s branding, the useful life of this intangible asset is not expected to extend
beyond December 31, 2018. In accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (“ASC 350”), we will account for
the change in useful life prospectively and amortize the remaining balance during 2018. We expect to recognize additional
amortization expense of approximately $12 million in 2018, compared to 2017, as a result of this change in estimate.

Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life
are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of the ASC 350.
Intangible assets with estimated useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives up to their estimated residual
values and reviewed for impairment in accordance with ASC 350. We assess goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level,
which we have determined to be the same as our operating segments. Each reporting unit has goodwill relating to past acquisitions.

Prior to January 1, 2017, the test for impairment was a two-step process that involved comparing the estimated fair value
of each reporting unit to the reporting unit’s carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeded its
carrying amount, the goodwill of the reporting unit was not considered impaired; therefore, the second step of the impairment test
would not be deemed necessary. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeded its fair value, we would then perform the
second step to the goodwill impairment test, which involved the determination of the fair value of a reporting unit’s assets and
liabilities as if those assets and liabilities had been acquired/assumed in a business combination at the impairment testing date, to
measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recorded. However, as discussed under “Newly Adopted Accounting
Principles—ASU No. 2017-04” in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2017 we prospectively
adopted a new accounting principle that eliminated the second step of the goodwill impairment test. Therefore, for goodwill
impairment tests occurring after January 1, 2017, if the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we measure any
goodwill impairment losses as the amount by which the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, not to exceed
the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. Our goodwill annual test date is December 1 of each year.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we performed a quantitative test for goodwill impairment as of December 1, 2016
and concluded that there was no impairment. The fair values of the reporting units at December 1, 2016 were determined using a
combination of income and market approaches. The income approach was based on discounted cash flow models with estimated
cash flows based on internal forecasts of revenue and expenses over a five-year period plus a terminal value period. The income
approach estimated fair value by discounting each reporting unit’s estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that
approximated our weighted-average cost of capital. Major assumptions applied in an income approach include forecasted growth
rates as well as forecasted profitability by reporting unit. Additionally, we considered two market approaches that used multiples,
based on observable market data, of certain financial metrics of our reporting units to arrive at fair value. We applied equal weighting
to each of the income and the two market approaches. The fair value derived from these approaches, in the aggregate, approximated
our market capitalization. At December 1, 2016, our market capitalization exceeded the carrying value of our consolidated net
assets by approximately $437 million or 80%, and the fair value of each reporting unit significantly exceeded its respective carrying
amount as of that date.
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In the second quarter of the year ended December 31, 2017, we determined that there were sufficient indicators to trigger
an interim goodwill impairment analysis. The indicators included, among other factors, the continued market softness, primarily
in our TeamFurmanite segment, and the related impacts on our financial results and our stock price. The Company’s interim
goodwill impairment test was prepared as of June 30, 2017 using a similar methodology as described above for its 2016 impairment
test. The June 30, 2017 interim goodwill impairment test indicated no impairment as the fair values of each reporting unit exceeded
their carrying values. On June 30, 2017, our market capitalization exceeded the carrying value of our consolidated net assets by
approximately $175 million or 33%. The fair value of the Quest Integrity reporting unit significantly exceeded its carrying value.
With respect to our TeamQualspec and TeamFurmanite reporting unit, the fair values exceeded carrying values by 65% and 46%,
respectively.

In the third quarter of the year ended December 31, 2017, we determined that there were sufficient indicators to trigger an
additional interim goodwill impairment analysis, primarily due to a 43% decrease in the Company’s stock price during the quarter,
coupled with the continuation of the other factors noted above. This interim goodwill impairment test was prepared as of July 31,
2017 using a similar methodology as used in the December 1,2016 and June 30, 2017 impairment tests as described above, except
that additional weighting was given to the income approach. Additionally, for the two market approaches, we added a weighting
of historical financial metrics in addition to projected financial metrics. Management believes these changes were appropriate
given the significant decrease in share price since the last interim impairment test in order to reconcile its reporting unit fair values
to the lower market capitalization. The July 31, 2017 interim goodwill impairment test indicated impairment as the carrying values
of the TeamFurmanite and TeamQualspec reporting units exceeded their fair values. The carrying value of the TeamFurmanite
reporting unit exceeded its fair value by $54.1 million and the carrying value of the TeamQualspec reporting unit exceeded its fair
value by $21.1 million, resulting in a total impairment loss of $75.2 million. The fair values of the reporting units are “Level 3”
measurements as defined in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of the Quest Integrity reporting unit
significantly exceeded its carrying value.

For our annual goodwill impairment test as of December 1,2017, we elected to perform a qualitative assessment to determine
if it was more likely than not (that is, a likelihood of more than 50 percent) that the fair values of our reporting units were less
than their respective carrying values as of the test date. Our qualitative assessment considered relevant events and circumstances
occurring since the July 31, 2017 quantitative impairment test date that could affect the fair value or carrying amount of the
reporting units. Specifically, we considered changes in the Company’s stock price, industry and market conditions, our internal
forecasts of future revenue and expenses, any significant events affecting the Company and actual changes in the carrying value
of our net assets. After considering all positive and negative evidence, we concluded that it was not more likely than not that our
carrying values exceeded fair values and, as such, no additional impairment was indicated.

There was $284.8 million and $355.8 million of goodwill at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. A summary of
goodwill is as follows (in thousands):

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2017
TeamQualspec TeamFurmanite Quest Integrity Total
Balance at beginning of year............cccoceeveeircinienininenen, $ 213,475 $ 109,059 $ 33,252 % 355,786
ACQUISIEIONS ....eeviereiie et ereie e seeae st eve et se e sse e eseees — — — —
Foreign currency adjustments...........ccceeeeveeeveeneencreenveenneenns 1,876 1,642 741 4,259
IMpPairment 10SS .....cceveererierieiereee e (21,140) (54,101) — (75,241)
Balance at end of Year ..........ccooveeeveiereiereeeeeeeeeeee $ 194211 $ 56,600 $ 33,993 $ 284,804
Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2016
TeamQualspec TeamFurmanite Quest Integrity Total
Balance at beginning of period.............ccoceevvveveeirierereninnnns $ 207,497 $ 19,874 $ 29,283 $ 256,654
ACQUISIEIONS ...ttt e 5,955 89,646 4,137 99,738
Foreign currency adjustments.............ccoeeeerveeeerieeceenieenennns 23 (461) (168) (606)
IMpPairment 10SS ......cuevveeierieieiee e — — — —
Balance at end of period...........cceeveviierivieiciciseeeeee, $ 213,475 $ 109,059 $ 33,252 $ 355,786

There was no accumulated impairment loss at December 31, 2016.
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Income taxes. We follow the guidance of ASC 740 Income Taxes (“ASC 740), which requires that we use the asset and
liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes and provide deferred income taxes for all significant temporary differences.
As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of
the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating our actual current tax payable and related tax expense
together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of certain items, such as depreciation, for tax and
accounting purposes. These differences can result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our consolidated
balance sheets.

In accordance with ASC 740, we are required to assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be realized and, to the
extent we believe that it is more likely than not (a likelihood of more than 50%) that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized, we must establish a valuation allowance. We consider all available evidence to determine whether, based on
the weight of the evidence, a valuation allowance is needed. Evidence used includes information about our current financial position
and our results of operations for the current and preceding years, as well as all currently available information about future years,
including our anticipated future performance, the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences and tax planning strategies.

Management believes future sources of taxable income, reversing temporary differences and other tax planning strategies
will be sufficient to realize assets for which no reserve has been established. While we have considered these factors in assessing
the need for a valuation allowance, there is no assurance that a valuation allowance would not need to be established in the future
if information about future years change. Any change in the valuation allowance would impact our income tax provision and net
income (loss) in the period in which such a determination is made. As of December 31,2017, we believe that it is more likely than
not that we will have sufficient reversals of temporary differences and future taxable income to allow us to realize the benefits of
the net deferred tax assets except for those related to net operating loss carry forwards of certain foreign subsidiaries in the amount
$6.0 million, U.S net operating loss carry forwards of $99.0 million and unutilized research and development tax credits of $0.8
million. Our belief is based upon our record of historical earnings levels in recent years and projections of future taxable income
over the periods in which the future deductible temporary differences become deductible. As of December 31,2017, our deferred
tax assets were $59.7 million, less a valuation allowance of $26.2 million. As of December 31, 2017, our deferred tax liabilities
were $33.3 million.

Significant judgment is required in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items for tax purposes. In
accordance with ASC 740-10, we establish reserves for uncertain tax positions when, despite our belief that our tax return positions
are supportable, we believe that it is not more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon challenge. When facts and
circumstances change, we adjust these reserves through our provision for income taxes. To the extent interest and penalties may
be assessed by taxing authorities on any related underpayment of income tax, such amounts have been accrued and are classified
as a component of income tax provision (benefit) in our consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2017, our
unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions were $1.2 million.

The 2017 Tax Act was enacted on December 22, 2017 and represents a significant change to the U.S. corporate income tax
system including: a federal corporate rate reduction from 35% to 21%; limitations on the deductibility of interest expense and
executive compensation; creation of new minimum taxes such as the base erosion anti-abuse tax (“BEAT”’) and Global Intangible
Low Taxed Income (“GILTI”) tax; and the transition of U.S. international taxation from a worldwide tax system to a modified
territorial tax system, which will result in a one-time U.S. tax liability on those earnings that have not previously been repatriated
to the U.S.

Due to the complexities involved in accounting for the 2017 Tax Act, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118
(“SAB 118”), which requires companies include in their financial statements reasonable estimates of the impacts of the 2017 Tax
Act to the extent such reasonable estimates have been determined. Under SAB 118, companies are allowed a measurement period
of up to one year after the enactment date of the 2017 Tax Act to finalize the recording of the related tax impacts. Accordingly,
the Company has recorded certain reasonable estimates of the tax impact in its consolidated financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017, as detailed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. However, we have not yet completed
our accounting for the income tax effects of certain elements of the 2017 Tax Act, including the new GILTI and BEAT taxes. Due
to the complexity of these new tax rules, we are continuing to evaluate these provisions of the 2017 Tax Act and whether such
taxes are recorded as a current-period expense when incurred or whether such amounts should be factored into the measurement
deferred taxes. The Company will continue to evaluate the impact of the 2017 Tax Act and will record any resulting adjustments
to its provisional estimates during 2018, which may materially impact our income tax expense (benefit).

Workers’ compensation, auto, medical and general liability accruals. In accordance with ASC 450, Contingencies (“ASC
450”), we record a loss contingency when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. We review our loss contingencies on an ongoing basis to ensure that we have appropriate reserves recorded
on our balance sheet. These reserves are based on historical experience with claims incurred but not received, estimates and
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judgments made by management, applicable insurance coverage for litigation matters, and are adjusted as circumstances warrant.
For workers’ compensation, our self-insured retention is $1.0 million and our automobile liability self-insured retention is currently
$500,000 per occurrence. For general liability claims we have an effective self-insured retention of $3.0 million per occurrence.
For medical claims, our self-insured retention is $350,000 per individual claimant determined on an annual basis. For environmental
liability claims, our self-insured retention is $1.0 million per occurrence. We maintain insurance for claims that exceed such self-
retention limits. The insurance is subject to terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions that may not fully compensate us for all
losses. Our estimates and judgments could change based on new information, changes in laws or regulations, changes in
management’s plans or intentions, or the outcome of legal proceedings, settlements or other factors. If different estimates and
judgments were applied with respect to these matters, it is likely that reserves would be recorded for different amounts.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. In the ordinary course of business, a portion of our accounts receivable are not collected
due to billing disputes, customer bankruptcies, dissatisfaction with the services we performed and other various reasons. We
establish an allowance to account for those accounts receivable that we estimate will eventually be deemed uncollectible. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on a combination of our historical experience and management’s review of long outstanding
accounts receivable.

New Accounting Principles

For information about newly adopted accounting principles as well as information about new accounting principles pending
adoption, see Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have operations in foreign countries with a functional currency that is not the U.S. Dollar. We are exposed to market
risk, primarily related to foreign currency fluctuations related to these operations. Subsidiaries with asset and liability balances
denominated in currencies other than their functional currency are remeasured in the preparation of their financial statements using
a combination of current and historical exchange rates, with any resulting remeasurement adjustments included in net income
(loss) for the period. Net foreign currency transaction losses for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $0.5 million. The foreign
currency transaction gains realized in the year ended December 31, 2017 reflect the effects of fluctuations in the U.S. Dollar
relative to the currencies we have exposure to, including but not limited to, the Australian Dollar, Brazilian Real, British Pound,
Canadian Dollar, Euro, Malaysian Ringgit and Mexican Peso.

In 2015, we initiated a foreign currency hedging program to mitigate the foreign currency risk in countries where we have
significant assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. We utilize monthly foreign currency
swap contracts to reduce exposures to changes in foreign currency exchange rates related to our largest exposures including, but
not limited to the Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar, Brazilian Real, British Pound, Euro, Malaysian Ringgit and Mexican Peso.
The impact from these swap contracts was not material as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 or for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015.

Translation adjustments for the assets and liability accounts are included as a separate component of accumulated other
comprehensive loss in shareholders’ equity. Foreign currency translation gains recognized in other comprehensive income were
$10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Based on the year ended December 31, 2017, we had foreign currency-based revenues and operating income of $328.8
million and $14.9 million, respectively, a hypothetical 10% adverse change in all applicable foreign currencies would result in an
annual change in revenues and operating income of $32.9 million and $1.5 million, respectively.

We carry Euro-based debt to serve as a hedge of our net investment in our European operations as fluctuations in the fair
value of the borrowing attributable to the U.S. Dollar/Euro spot rate will offset translation gains or losses attributable to our
investment in our European operations. We are exposed to market risk, primarily related to foreign currency fluctuations related
to the unhedged portion of our investment in our European operations.

On July 31, 2017, we issued $230.0 million of aggregate principal amount of 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2023.
The Notes are initially convertible into 10,599,067 shares of our common stock. Because we could be required to cash-settle a
portion of the conversion feature of the Notes, we have recorded an embedded derivative liability for the conversion feature for
approximately 60% of the Notes pursuant to ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, with changes in fair value of the embedded
derivative liability reflected in our results of operations each period. Gains and/or losses on the embedded derivative liability will
continue to impact our results of operations unless and until we receive stockholder approval for the issuance of more than 19.99
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percent of our outstanding common stock upon conversion of the Notes. The valuation of such derivative liability is highly sensitive
to changes in the price of our common stock. Generally, decreases in our stock price will result in gains, while increases in our
stock price will result in losses. As such, movement in our stock price could materially and adversely affect our financial results,
including our net income (loss) as well as increase the volatility of our financial results from period to period. The Company
recorded a gain on this embedded derivative of $0.8 million in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, the fair value of the embedded derivative reflected in our consolidated balance
sheet was $20.6 million.

All of the debt outstanding under the Credit Facility bears interest at variable market rates. If market interest rates increase,
our interest expense and cash flows could be adversely impacted. Based on Credit Facility borrowings outstanding at December
31,2017, an increase in market interest rates of 100 basis points would increase our interest expense and decrease our operating
cash flows by approximately $2 million on an annual basis.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Team, Inc.:

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Team, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017,
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31,2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31,2017 and 2016, the related consolidated statements
of operations, comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2017, the seven months ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended May 31, 2015 and the related notes
(collectively, the consolidated financial statements), and our report dated March 15, 2018 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Houston, Texas
March 15, 2018
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Team, Inc.:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Team, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31,
2017 and 2016, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, the seven months ended December 31, 2015, and
the year ended May 31, 2015 and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31,
2017, the seven months ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended May 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, and our report dated March 15,2018 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether
due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ KPMG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2002.

Houston, Texas
March 15, 2018
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TEAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2017 2016
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash qUIVAIEIILS .........ccoiriiriiriirieieiieeer sttt ettt $ 26552 $ 46,216
Receivables, net of allowance of $11,308 and $7,835......c..coieviiriecieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 301,963 262,773
TIIVEIIEOTY ..ttt sttt sttt b et e b et e a et e a e e bt eat e s bt et bt e bt sbe et eaeenreas 49,703 49,571
INCOME taX TECEIVADIC ...c.viiieiieiieciiieiee ettt ettt ettt e et e e e e tae e be e seeeabeeseseesseessseensaenseas 892 512
DEferred INCOME TAXES .....ocuvveeierieeeeeee ettt et ete e et e e e e e e eaeeeeteeeeeaeeeeeaaeeseteeeenaseeeenneessneeeans — 16,521
Prepaid expenses and Other CUITENT @SSELS ........ccvieriierieiiierieecieeite et eriee e eeee e e seeeebeeseaeeseeneeas 17,950 25,764
TOLAl CUITEINE ASSELS.......eeeeeeeeeeeeee et et et eete e et e e et e e e e e e aeeeeeaeeeeeneeeeeaeeeeeneeeeenseeeenneens 397,060 401,357
Property, plant and eqUIPMENT, NEL..........ccverierieiieieiiesieeteie ettt eeeseeeeesreersesseesesseesesseessessnensens 203,219 203,130
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $54,184 and $37,309 .........ccceviviienennene 160,161 176,104
GOOAWILL ...ttt sttt ettt et e st e e esa e seena e seensenseensesseensesseensesneensesnnansens 284,804 355,786
(01 4 1= g T TN 1 =1 SRR 5,798 4,826
DEfErred INCOMIE TAXES .....vvvveieeieeieeiee ettt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e s e e e e e e esaateeeesesntaeeeeesensasseessennareeesseanes 4,793 6,215
TOLAL ASSEES ...evvieeeie ettt ettt et et e e et e e e et e eaeeeaeeeeaeeeateeeaeeenteeeaeeenaeeeaeseteeenteeteeeraeeneens $ 1,055,835 $1,147,418
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current-portion of 1ong term debt.........cc.coieiiiiiiiiniiirree et $ — $ 20,000
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC......cuviieieiiiieie ettt ettt ettt st e aeeseesbeesbesbeessesseenseesaenseessenseesnesseansenes 55,312 47,817
Other aCCrUEA HADIIITIES .....vvviiiiieieeii et e et e e e e et e e e e e eenraeeeessenaaareeeeeanes 92,472 79,904
Total current HabIlItIES .........ccveiiieieieee e e e et e e aaeeeeneeeeneens 147,784 147,721
DeEferred INCOME TAXES .....ocvviiierieeeeee e eeteee et ete e et e e e ettt e e eaeeeeteeeeeaeeeeeaeeesteeeensseeeenneeesneeeans 38,100 93,318
LoNG-eTM dEDL ..ottt ettt st 387,749 346,911
Defined benefit pension HabIlitY .........cccoeoeiieieiiee e 14,976 21,239
Other 10ng-1erm LHADIIIHICS. ... .ecvieieriieiirii ettt et ete b e sseessesaeesessaesessnensens 9,758 2,592
TOtAl THADIIILIES ..vevvivieiiiciieieeiteie ettt ettt sttt b et e b e e sseebeessesteenseeseessesrsessessnenseas 598,367 611,781
Commitments and contingencies
Equity:
Preferred stock, 500,000 shares authorized, None 1SSUE ..........eeevivviiveiiiiiiieiieeeceeeeee e — —
Common stock, par value $0.30 per share, 60,000,000 shares authorized; 29,953,041 and
29,784,734 SNATES ISSUEA ...vvvvieiieiieeieee ettt ettt e e e et e e e e eeatae e e e e eentaeeeessenaaaeeeseeanes 8,984 8,934
Additional paid-in CaAPItAl .......cceiiiiieieieee e 352,500 336,756
REtaAINEA CAIMINGS........iivieiieiieiieieeti ettt sttt et e e s et eeseebeessesseessesseessesseensesseessesssensenssensens 115,780 218,947
Accumulated other COMPIENENSIVE 10SS ....uvieviiiiiiiiieciie ettt et saeebeeneees (19,796) (29,000)
TOLAL EQUILY +neeeeeeeetiee ettt ettt ettt st e e et e e e et e bt e st et e ene e st eneesseenteeneenseeneeneeneenneas 457,468 535,637
Total 1liabilitieS and EQUILY......c.ccvevieieieieieeietiee ettt ettt ettt reereereereereebesaeebebebesessenes $ 1,055,835 $1,147,418

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TEAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Seven Months Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015

REVEIUES ..ottt $ 1,200,211  $ 1,196,696 $ 571,718  $ 842,047
OPErating EXPEISES -....everveeurererrerierienteniessesseeseeseestessensensensensenee 890,212 868,144 409,391 584,054

GIOSS MATZIN...c.eeteiiiieteiiieteieiere ettt 309,999 328,552 162,327 257,993
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses ..........c.ccoceveueeenene. 348,391 323,973 142,643 189,528
Restructuring and other related charges, net...........ccccoeeeevevennene 2,651 5,513 — —
(Gain) loss on revaluation of contingent consideration.............. (1,174) 2,184 522 —
Goodwill impairment 10SS........c.coervreerueerierieinieireneeseeeenene 75,241 — — —

Operating iNCOmMe (10SS)..c..eeverveeeeriiriinininieeeieeeereniee (115,110) (3,118) 19,162 68,465
Interest €Xpense, Net.........ccccuevvevierieniiniinininieieieieieieeee e 21,487 12,667 4,898 2,489
Write-off of deferred 10an COStS ........ccceverercieiecieieierereseeiee 1,244 — — —
Gain on convertible debt embedded derivative ...........cccoeueueeee (818) — — —
Foreign currency (gain) loss and other ..........c.cccccceevveennnenens 510 (127) 813 2,686
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes (137,533) (15,658) 13,451 63,290
Less: Provision (benefit) for income taxes (see Note 8)............ (33,372) (3,093) 4,573 22,793
Income (loss) from continuing operations.............cceeccveveuennene (104,161) (12,565) 8,878 40,497
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax.............. — (111) — —
Net iNCOME (10SS) ..vvvevirerieririeriietieteeee ettt ee e reeaens (104,161) (12,676) 8,878 40,497
Less: Income attributable to noncontrolling interest ................. — — — 427
Net income (loss) attributable to Team shareholders................. $ (104,161) $ (12,676) $ 8,878 § 40,070
Basic earnings (loss) per common share:

Continuing OPerations.............ceveeeeeurerereeersreeeeeeereeeessenenees $ (3.49) $ 0.45) $ 043 §$ 1.95

Discontinued Operations ...........c.ceeuevververererererienienienienenne — — — —

Net income (10SS).....c.cveviveuiuriiieiiricieiceiesescsecis $ (3.49) $ (0.45) $ 043 § 1.95
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:

Continuing Operations..............ccceceeuvirirerinenesinnnenseeans $ (3.49) $ (0.45) $ 041 § 1.85

Discontinued OPerations ............ceeververrereereereeieerresuerseneneenes — — — —

Net income (10SS)......couiururiiiiiririiiiiiiiiicescreeeeeeeas $ (3.49) $ (0.45) $ 041 $ 1.85
Amounts attributable to Team shareholders:

Income (loss) from continuing operations, net of income

AX ettt $ (104,161) $ (12,565) $ 8,878 § 40,070

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax......... — (111) — —

Net iNCOME (L0SS)..vurvvvririrreeirinierieirinteeeeieeseeee e seeieseeseneeeas $ (104,161) $ (12,676) $ 8,878 § 40,070

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TEAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands)

Seven Months Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
Net iNCOME (10SS) ....uvurviiiieireiiciee e $ (104,161) $ (12,676) $ 8,878 $ 40,497
Other comprehensive income (loss) before tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustment............cccoeeuerevieeinneenennecnneenene. 10,607 (3,849) (7,228) (15,822)
Foreign currency hedge..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccicccceccecceceeeae (1,802) 481 101 3,237
Net actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit pension plans ............cccoceveeeeuenne 3,226 (10,518) — —
Amortization of net actuarial loss on defined benefit pension plans.............. 71 — — —
Other comprehensive income (10ss), before tax ...........cococeceeeveecenneienccrinnnene 12,102 (13,886) (7,127) (12,585)
Tax (provision) benefit attributable to other comprehensive income (loss) .. (2,898) 3,260 2,291 1,655
Total other comprehensive income (10ss), net 0f taX .......ceceevveveenneirrcerennne 9,204 (10,626) (4,836) (10,930)
Total comprehensive income (10SS) .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiniiiic e (94,957) (23,302) 4,042 29,567
Less: Total comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest.......... — — — 356
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Team shareholders................. $ (94,957) $ (23,302) $ 4,042 $ 29,211

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TEAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated
Additional Non- Other Total
Common Treasury Common Treasury Paid-in controlling Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Shares Stock Stock Capital Interest Earnings Loss Equity
Balance at June 1, 2014........ccoccceunnee 20,478 — 8 6,142 § — $ 105872 $ 5,678 § 202,032 § (2,679) § 317,045
Net iNCOME......ceeereereeieieieieieneenes — — — — — — 40,497 — 40,497
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of taxX........c.coceceruenne — - - — - — - (13,263) (13,263)
Foreign currency hedge, net of tax .. — — — — — — — 2,333 2,333
Comprehensive income attributable
to noncontrolling interest................. — — — — — 356 (427) 71 —
Non-cash compensation................... — — — — 4,838 — — — 4,838
Vesting of stock awards .................. 106 — 33 — (1,808) — — — (1,775)
Tax effect of share-based payment
arrangements . — — — — 3,034 — — — 3,034
Exercise of stock options. . 325 — 98 — 3,706 — — — 3,804
Purchase of treasury stock ............... — (547) — (21,138) — — — — (21,138)
Balance at May 31, 2015........ccccoevueee 20,909 (547) 6,273 (21,138) 115,642 6,034 242,102 (13,538) 335,375
Net income........ccevveivieiniiicinicnninne — — — — — — 8,878 — 8,878
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of taxX........c.coceceruenne — — — — — — — (4,898) (4,898)
Foreign currency hedge, net of tax .. — — — — — — _ 62 62
Purchase of noncontrolling interest . 728 — 218 — (118) (6,034) — — (5,934)
Non-cash compensation................... — — — — 3,522 — — — 3,522
Vesting of stock awards .................. 89 — 27 — (1,402) — — — (1,375)
Tax effect of share-based payment
AITANZEMENtS.....ooovvveniiiiiiiiecinns — — — — 374 — — — 374
Exercise of stock options................. 111 — 34 — 2,108 — — — 2,142
Balance at December 31, 2015 ........... 21,837 (547) 6,552 (21,138) 120,126 — 250,980 (18,374) 338,146
NEt 10SS .. — — — — — — (12,676) — (12,676)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of taxX..........coceceruenne — - - — - — - (2,498) (2,498)
Foreign currency hedge, net of tax .. — — — — — — — 300 300
Change in defined benefit pension
plan net actuarial loss, net of tax ..... — — — — — — — (8,428) (8,428)
Non-cash compensation................... — — — — 7,313 — — — 7,313
Vesting of stock awards ................... 142 — 40 — (1,749) — — — (1,709)
Tax effect of share-based payment
AITANZEMENLS. ...eoveoveevesreereeeeersens — — — — (535) — — — (535)
Issuance of common stock in
Furmanite acquisition and
conversion of Furmanite share-
based awards........c.coeeeieeciineeninne 8,208 — 2,462 — 209,068 — — — 211,530
Exercise of stock options................. 251 — 75 — 5,828 — — — 5,903
Issuance of common stock............... 168 — 50 — 5,884 — — — 5,934
Purchase of treasury stock — (274) — (7,593) — — — — (7,593)
Retirement of treasury stock... . (821) 821 (245) 28,731 (9,129) — (19,357) — —
Other ... — — — (50) — — — (50)
Balance at December 31, 2016 ........... 29,785 — 8,934 — 336,756 — 218,947 (29,000) 535,637
Adoption of ASU 2016-09............... — — — — — — 994 — 994
NEt 0SS ..o — — — — — — (104,161) — (104,161)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of taX..........cccceeeee — — — — — — — 7,688 7,688
Foreign currency hedge, net of tax .. — — — — — — — (1,114) (1,114)
Change in defined benefit pension
plan net actuarial loss, net of tax ..... — — — — — — — 2,630 2,630
Issuance of convertible debt, net of
EAX 1o — — — — 8,415 — — — 8,415
Non-cash compensation................... — — — — 7,876 — — — 7,876
Vesting of stock awards ................... 152 — 45 — (992) — — — (947)
Exercise of stock options................. 16 — 5 — 445 — — — 450
Balance at December 31, 2017 ........... 29,953 — 8 8,984 § — $ 352,500 § — $ 115780 § (19,796) $ 457,468

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TEAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Seven Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net iNCOME (10SS) ..vuvuiviviveereriisieieeieteseseeeesseeee ettt ese et se s e (104,161) $ (12,676) $ 8878 § 40,497
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ..............coeeeeererrnrereereninnenreeeeenens 52,143 48,673 19,426 22,787
Write-off of deferred loan costs ........... 1,244 — — —
Loss on asset impairment and disposals 553 1,540 51 617
Amortization of deferred loan costs and debt discount 3,085 541 256 223
Provision for doubtful accounts 7,097 6,336 1,819 233
Loss on investment in Venezuela — — — 1,177
Foreign currency (gain) loss 499 93) 813 1,509
Deferred income taxes (46,540) (4,236) 2,411 (729)
(Gain) loss on contingent consideration revaluation (1,174) 2,184 522 —
Gain on convertible debt embedded derivative (818) — — —
Goodwill impairment loss ............. 75,241 — — —
Non-cash compensation cost .. 7,876 7,313 3,469 4,838
Other, net (3,789) (1,182) — —
(Increase) decrease, net of the effects of acquisitions:
Receivables ... (39,820) 16,518 15,231 (43,425)
Inventory 614 2,119 372 (925)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ............cccoecereereereeneennens 6,642 (163) (111) (2,525)
Increase (decrease), net of the effects of acquisitions:
Accounts payable 6,424 8,361 (13,365) 10,789
Other accrued liabilities 14,896 (2,346) (14,426) 9,377
Income taxes 6,260 6,675 (8,085) (972)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities .... (13,728) 79,564 17,261 43,471
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (36,798) (45,812) (25,802) (28,769)
Proceeds from disposal of assets 3,259 4,232 5,227 133
Net proceeds from sale of discontinued operations . — 13,295 — —
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (48,382) (262,100) (3,075)
Change in restricted cash — 5,000 (5,000) —
Change related to Venezuelan operations ... — — — (620)
Other (457) 827 (105) 550
Net cash used in investing activities ... (33,996) (70,840) (287,780) (31,781)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net debt borrowings (payments) on Credit Facility (23,006) 15,996 103,000 8,000
Net (payments) borrowings under term loan (170,000) (20,000) 190,000 —
Issuance of convertible debt, net of issuance costs .. 222,311 — — —
Deferred consideration payments — (694) (2,307) (1,000)
Contingent consideration payments .... (1,278) (1,816) (230) (1,000)
Purchase of noncontrolling interest — — (5,934) —
Debt issuance costs on Credit Facility ........cccoceoeveereineiincncineeees (1,938) (801) (1,950) —
Payments related to withholding tax for share-based payment
ATTANZEMENTS ...viviiiiiieicicice ittt ens (947) (1,709) (1,375) (1,775)
Corporate tax effect from share-based payment arrangements — (535) 374 3,034
Exercise of stock options 450 5,903 2,142 3,804
Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs .... — 5,243 — —
Purchase of treasury stock — (7,593) — (21,138)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .... 25,592 (6,006) 283,720 (10,075)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ... 2,468 (1,327) (1,587) (3,060)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents . (19,664) 1,391 11,614 (1,445)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 46,216 44,825 33,211 34,656
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 26,552 $ 46,216 $ 44,825 $ 33,211
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid (refunded) during the year for:
Interest 13,176 $ 12,207 § 3,907 § 2,028
Income taxes .... 5719 °§ 2,741) $ 10,252 § 21,491

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TEAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES

EEINT3 2 ¢ 2 <

Description of Business. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms “Team, Inc.,” “Team,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and
“us” are used in this report to refer to Team, Inc., to one or more of our consolidated subsidiaries or to all of them taken as a whole.
We are a leading provider of standard to specialty industrial services, including inspection, engineering assessment and mechanical
repair and remediation required in maintaining high temperature and high pressure piping systems and vessels that are utilized
extensively in the refining, petrochemical, power, pipeline and other heavy industries. We conduct operations in three segments:
TeamQualspec Group (“TeamQualspec”) (formerly the Inspection and Heat Treating Services Group), TeamFurmanite Group
(“TeamFurmanite”) (formerly the Mechanical Services Group) and Quest Integrity (“Quest Integrity”). Through the capabilities
and resources in these three segments, we believe that Team is uniquely qualified to provide integrated solutions involving in their
most basic form, inspection to assess condition, engineering assessment to determine fitness for purpose in the context of industry
standards and regulatory codes and mechanical services to repair, rerate or replace based upon the client’s election. In addition,
our Company is capable of escalating with the client’s needs—as dictated by the severity of the damage found and the related
operating conditions—from standard services to some of the most advanced services and integrated integrity management and
asset reliability solutions available in the industry. We also believe that Team is unique in its ability to provide services in three
distinct client demand profiles: (i) turnaround or project services, (ii) call-out services and (iii) nested or run-and-maintain services.

TeamQualspec provides standard and advanced non-destructive testing (“NDT”) services for the process, pipeline and power
sectors, pipeline integrity management services, field heat treating services, as well as associated engineering and assessment
services. These services can be offered while facilities are running (on-stream), during facility turnarounds or during new
construction or expansion activities.

TeamFurmanite, our mechanical services segment, provides primarily call-out and turnaround services under both on-stream
and off-line/shut down circumstances. Turnaround services are project-related and demand is a function of the number and scope
of scheduled and unscheduled facility turnarounds as well as new industrial facility construction or expansion activities. The
turnaround and call-out services TeamFurmanite provides include field machining, technical bolting, field valve repair, and isolation
test plugging services. On-stream services offered by TeamFurmanite represent the services offered while plants are operating and
under pressure. These services include leak repair, fugitive emissions control and hot tapping.

Quest Integrity provides integrity and reliability management solutions for the process, pipeline and power sectors. These
solutions encompass two broadly-defined disciplines: (1) highly specialized in-line inspection services for unpiggable process
piping and pipelines using proprietary in-line inspection tools and analytical software; and (2) advanced condition assessment
services through a multi-disciplined engineering team.

We offer these services globally through over 220 locations in 20 countries throughout the world with more than 7,300
employees. We market our services to companies in a diverse array of heavy industries which include the petrochemical, refining,
power, pipeline, steel, pulp and paper industries, as well as municipalities, shipbuilding, OEMs, distributors, and some of the
world’s largest engineering and construction firms.

Our stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “TISI”.

In November 2015, we announced we would change our fiscal year end to December 31 of each calendar year from May
31. In connection with this change, we previously filed a Transition Report on Form 10-K to report the results of the seven-month
transition period from June 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. In this report, the periods presented are the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, the seven-month transition period from June 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015.
For comparison purposes, we have also included unaudited data for the year ended December 31, 2015 and for the seven months
ended December 31, 2014 (see Note 20).

Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Team, Inc. and our majority-owned subsidiaries
where we have control over operating and financial policies. Investments in affiliates in which we have the ability to exert significant
influence over operating and financial policies, but where we do not control the operating and financial policies, are accounted
for using the equity method. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Effective
February 1, 2015, we began reporting the results of our Venezuelan operations using the cost method of accounting (see Note 17).

Use of estimates. Our accounting policies conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States
(“GAAP”). The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and judgments that affect our reported financial position and results of operations. We review significant estimates and judgments
affecting our consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis and record the effect of any necessary adjustments prior to
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their publication. Estimates and judgments are based on information available at the time such estimates and judgments are made.
Adjustments made with respect to the use of these estimates and judgments often relate to information not previously available.
Uncertainties with respect to such estimates and judgments are inherent in the preparation of financial statements. Estimates and
judgments are used in, among other things, (1) aspects of revenue recognition, (2) valuation of acquisition related tangible and
intangible assets and assessments of all long-lived assets for possible impairment, (3) estimating various factors used to accrue
liabilities for workers’ compensation, auto, medical and general liability, (4) establishing an allowance for uncollectible accounts
receivable, (5) estimating the useful lives of our assets, (6) assessing future tax exposure and the realization of tax assets,
(7) estimating the value associated with contingent consideration payment arrangements, (8) the valuation of the embedded
derivative liability in our convertible debt and (9) selecting assumptions used in the measurement of costs and liabilities associated
with defined benefit pension plans. Our most significant accounting policies are described below.

Fair value of financial instruments. Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and debt obligations. The carrying amount of cash, cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable and
trade accounts payable are representative of their respective fair values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments. The
fair value of our banking facility is representative of the carrying value based upon the variable terms and management’s opinion
that the current rates available to us with the same maturity and security structure are equivalent to that of the banking facility.
The fair value of our convertible senior notes as of December 31,2017 is $23 1.6 million (inclusive of the fair value of the conversion
option) andisa “Level 2” (as defined in Note 10) measurement, determined based on the observed trading price of these instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of all demand deposits and funds invested in highly liquid
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Inventory. Except for certain inventories that are valued based on weighted-average cost, we use the first-in, first-out method
to value our inventory. Inventory includes material, labor and certain fixed overhead costs. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Inventory quantities on hand are reviewed periodically and carrying cost is reduced to net realizable value
for inventories for which their cost exceeds their utility. The cost of inventories consumed or products sold are included in operating
expenses.

Property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their respective useful life or the lease term. Depreciation
and amortization of assets are computed by the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Classification Useful Life
BUIIAINES ..ottt sttt 20-40 years
Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) SyStem .......ccccoevverierieniirierienieinineeeeene s 15 years

Leasehold IMProvVemMENtS...........ccccuiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiice s 2-15 years
Machinery and SqUIPIMIENT........cc.couerieieiiieirireneeteee ettt ettt ettt ere et et et e besaeseennennens 2-12 years
Furniture and fIXTUTES ........cccoeeirieirieirierieeneeree ettt sttt 2-10 years
Computers and cOmMPULET SOFEWATE..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccc e 2-5 years

AULOIMIODILES ..ottt sttt sttt 2-5 years

Revenue recognition. Most of our projects are short-term in nature and we predominantly derive revenues by providing a
variety of industrial services on a time and material basis. For all of these services our revenues are recognized when services are
rendered or when product is shipped to the job site and risk of ownership passes to the customer. However, due to various contractual
terms with our customers, at the end of any reporting period, there may be earned but unbilled revenue that is accrued to properly
match revenues with related costs. At December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the amount of earned but unbilled revenue
included in accounts receivable was $69.1 million and $39.7 million, respectively.

Goodwill and intangible assets. We allocate the purchase price of acquired businesses to their identifiable tangible assets
and liabilities, such as accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. We
also allocate a portion of the purchase price to identifiable intangible assets, such as non-compete agreements, trademarks, trade
names, patents, technology and customer relationships. Allocations are based on estimated fair values of assets and liabilities. We
use all available information to estimate fair values including quoted market prices, the carrying value of acquired assets, and
widely accepted valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows. Certain estimates and judgments are required in the application
of the fair value techniques, including estimates of future cash flows, selling prices, replacement costs, economic lives and the
selection of a discount rate, as well as the use of “Level 3” measurements as defined in Financial Accounting Standards Board
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(“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure (“ASC 8207). Deferred
taxes are recorded for any differences between the assigned values and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Estimated deferred taxes
are based on available information concerning the tax bases of assets acquired and liabilities assumed and loss carryforwards at
the acquisition date, although such estimates may change in the future as additional information becomes known. Any remaining
excess of cost over allocated fair values is recorded as goodwill. We typically engage third-party valuation experts to assist in
determining the fair values for both the identifiable tangible and intangible assets. The judgments made in determining the estimated
fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as asset lives, could materially impact our
results of operations.

Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life
are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of the ASC 350
Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (“ASC 350”). Intangible assets with estimated useful lives are amortized over their respective
estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values and reviewed for impairment in accordance with ASC 350. We assess
goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level, which we have determined to be the same as our operating segments. Each
reporting unit has goodwill relating to past acquisitions.

Prior to January 1, 2017, the test for impairment was a two-step process that involved comparing the estimated fair value
of each reporting unit to the reporting unit’s carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeded its
carrying amount, the goodwill of the reporting unit was not considered impaired; therefore, the second step of the impairment test
would not be deemed necessary. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeded its fair value, we would then perform the
second step to the goodwill impairment test, which involved the determination of the fair value of a reporting unit’s assets and
liabilities as if those assets and liabilities had been acquired/assumed in a business combination at the impairment testing date, to
measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recorded. However, as discussed under “Newly Adopted Accounting
Principles—ASU No. 2017-04” below, effective January 1, 2017 we prospectively adopted a new accounting principle that
eliminated the second step of the goodwill impairment test. Therefore, for goodwill impairment tests occurring after January 1,
2017, if the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we measure any goodwill impairment losses as the amount
by which the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to
that reporting unit. Our goodwill annual test date is December 1 of each year.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we performed a quantitative test for goodwill impairment as of December 1, 2016
and concluded that there was no impairment. The fair values of the reporting units at December 1, 2016 were determined using a
combination of income and market approaches. The income approach was based on discounted cash flow models with estimated
cash flows based on internal forecasts of revenue and expenses over a five-year period plus a terminal value period. The income
approach estimated fair value by discounting each reporting unit’s estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that
approximated our weighted-average cost of capital. Major assumptions applied in an income approach include forecasted growth
rates as well as forecasted profitability by reporting unit. Additionally, we considered two market approaches that used multiples,
based on observable market data, of certain financial metrics of our reporting units to arrive at fair value. We applied equal weighting
to each of the income and the two market approaches. The fair value derived from these approaches, in the aggregate, approximated
our market capitalization. At December 1, 2016, our market capitalization exceeded the carrying value of our consolidated net
assets by approximately $437 million or 80%, and the fair value of each reporting unit significantly exceeded its respective carrying
amount as of that date.

In the second quarter of the year ended December 31, 2017, we determined that there were sufficient indicators to trigger
an interim goodwill impairment analysis. The indicators included, among other factors, the continued market softness, primarily
in our TeamFurmanite segment, and the related impacts on our financial results and our stock price. The Company’s interim
goodwill impairment test was prepared as of June 30, 2017 using a similar methodology as described above for its 2016 impairment
test. The June 30, 2017 interim goodwill impairment test indicated no impairment as the fair values of each reporting unit exceeded
their carrying values. On June 30, 2017, our market capitalization exceeded the carrying value of our consolidated net assets by
approximately $175 million or 33%. The fair value of the Quest Integrity reporting unit significantly exceeded its carrying value.
With respect to our TeamQualspec and TeamFurmanite reporting unit, the fair values exceeded carrying values by 65% and 46%,
respectively.

In the third quarter of the year ended December 31, 2017, we determined that there were sufficient indicators to trigger an
additional interim goodwill impairment analysis, primarily due to a 43% decrease in the Company’s stock price during the quarter,
coupled with the continuation of the other factors noted above. This interim goodwill impairment test was prepared as of July 31,
2017 using a similar methodology as used in the December 1,2016 and June 30, 2017 impairment tests as described above, except
that additional weighting was given to the income approach. Additionally, for the two market approaches, we added a weighting
of historical financial metrics in addition to projected financial metrics. Management believes these changes were appropriate
given the significant decrease in share price since the last interim impairment test in order to reconcile its reporting unit fair values
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to the lower market capitalization. The July 31, 2017 interim goodwill impairment test indicated impairment as the carrying values
of the TeamFurmanite and TeamQualspec reporting units exceeded their fair values. The carrying value of the TeamFurmanite
reporting unit exceeded its fair value by $54.1 million and the carrying value of the TeamQualspec reporting unit exceeded its fair
value by $21.1 million, resulting in a total impairment loss of $75.2 million. The fair values of the reporting units are “Level 3”
measurements as defined in Note 10. The fair value of the Quest Integrity reporting unit significantly exceeded its carrying value.

For our annual goodwill impairment test as of December 1,2017, we elected to perform a qualitative assessment to determine
if it was more likely than not (that is, a likelihood of more than 50 percent) that the fair values of our reporting units were less
than their respective carrying values as of the test date. Our qualitative assessment considered relevant events and circumstances
occurring since the July 31, 2017 quantitative impairment test date that could affect the fair value or carrying amount of the
reporting units. Specifically, we considered changes in the Company’s stock price, industry and market conditions, our internal
forecasts of future revenue and expenses, any significant events affecting the Company and actual changes in the carrying value
of our net assets. After considering all positive and negative evidence, we concluded that it was not more likely than not that our
carrying values exceeded fair values and, as such, no additional impairment was indicated.

There was $284.8 million and $355.8 million of goodwill at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. A summary of
goodwill is as follows (in thousands):

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2017
TeamQualspec TeamFurmanite Quest Integrity Total
Balance at beginning of period.........c..cccoeevirerirerieenienennnn. $ 213,475 % 109,059 § 33252 $ 355,786
ACQUISIEIONS ...evveeeeienie ettt sre et ve e eeeeeeeaeees — — — —
Foreign currency adjustments............cccoceeeeeneenenceneennen. 1,876 1,642 741 4,259
Impairment 10SS .......ccceoevieiiiiiiiiiniinncee e (21,140) (54,101) — (75,241)
Balance at end of period.........ccccooeiieieiiiiiiceet e $ 194211 $ 56,600 $ 33,993 $ 284,804
Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2016
TeamQualspec TeamFurmanite Quest Integrity Total
Balance at beginning of year...........cccceevevvevieniencieenieeeens $ 207,497 $ 19,874 $ 29,283 § 256,654
ACQUISIEIONS ...eevveeiiieie ettt ees 5,955 89,646 4,137 99,738
Foreign currency adjustments.........c.cocceveevveveeinnenennenes 23 (461) (168) (606)
Impairment 10SS .......ccccovevieieririniininreneeeeee — — — —
Balance at end of year ...........ccooeeeveeeeciececeeeeeeeee $ 213,475 $ 109,059 $ 33252 $ 355,786

There was no accumulated impairment loss at December 31, 2016.

Income taxes. We follow the guidance of ASC 740 Income Taxes (“ASC 740”), which requires that we use the asset and
liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes and provide deferred income taxes for all significant temporary differences.
As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of
the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating our actual current tax payable and related tax expense
together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of certain items, such as depreciation, for tax and
accounting purposes. These differences can result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our consolidated
balance sheets.

In accordance with ASC 740, we are required to assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be realized and, to the
extent we believe that it is more likely than not (a likelihood of more than 50%) that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized, we must establish a valuation allowance. We consider all available evidence to determine whether, based on
the weight of the evidence, a valuation allowance is needed. Evidence used includes information about our current financial position
and our results of operations for the current and preceding years, as well as all currently available information about future years,
including our anticipated future performance, the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences and tax planning strategies.
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Management believes future sources of taxable income, reversing temporary differences and other tax planning strategies
will be sufficient to realize assets for which no reserve has been established. While we have considered these factors in assessing
the need for a valuation allowance, there is no assurance that a valuation allowance would not need to be established in the future
if information about future years change, or conversely, that a previously established valuation allowance would not need to be
released. Any change in the valuation allowance would impact our income tax provision and net income (loss) in the period in
which such a determination is made. As of December 31,2017, we believe that it is more likely than not that we will have sufficient
reversals of temporary differences and future taxable income to allow us to realize the benefits of the net deferred tax assets except
for those related to net operating loss carry forwards of certain foreign subsidiaries in the amount $6.0 million, United States
(“U.S.”) net operating loss carry forwards of $99.0 million and unutilized research and development tax credits of $0.8 million.
Our belief is based upon our record of historical earnings levels in recent years and projections of future taxable income over the
periods in which the future deductible temporary differences become deductible. As of December 31,2017, our deferred tax assets
were $59.7 million, less a valuation allowance of $26.2 million. As of December 31, 2017, our deferred tax liabilities were $33.3
million.

Significant judgment is required in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items for tax purposes. In
accordance with ASC 740-10, we establish reserves for uncertain tax positions when, despite our belief that our tax return positions
are supportable, we believe that it is not more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon challenge. When facts and
circumstances change, we adjust these reserves through our provision for income taxes. To the extent interest and penalties may
be assessed by taxing authorities on any related underpayment of income tax, such amounts have been accrued and are classified
as a component of income tax provision (benefit) in our consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2017, our
unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions were $1.2 million.

The 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “2017 Tax Act”) was enacted on December 22, 2017 and represents a significant change
to the U.S. corporate income tax system including: a federal corporate rate reduction from 35% to 21%; limitations on the
deductibility of interest expense and executive compensation; creation of new minimum taxes such as the base erosion anti-abuse
tax (“BEAT”) and Global Intangible Low Taxed Income (“GILTI”) tax; and the transition of U.S. international taxation from a
worldwide tax system to a modified territorial tax system, which will result in a one-time U.S. tax liability on those earnings that
have not previously been repatriated to the U.S.

Due to the complexities involved in accounting for the 2017 Tax Act, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118”), which requires companies include in their financial statements reasonable
estimates of the impacts of the 2017 Tax Act to the extent such reasonable estimates have been determined. Under SAB 118,
companies are allowed a measurement period of up to one year after the enactment date of the 2017 Tax Act to finalize the recording
of the related tax impacts. Accordingly, the Company has recorded certain reasonable estimates of the tax impact in its consolidated
statement of operations for year ended December 31, 2017, as detailed in Note 8. However, we have not yet completed our
accounting for the income tax effects of certain elements of the 2017 Tax Act, including the new GILTI and BEAT taxes. Due to
the complexity of these new tax rules, we are continuing to evaluate these provisions of the 2017 Tax Act and whether such taxes
are recorded as a current-period expense when incurred or whether such amounts should be factored into the measurement deferred
taxes. The Company will continue to evaluate the impact of the 2017 Tax Act and will record any resulting adjustments to its
provisional estimates during 2018, which may materially impact our income tax expense (benefit).

Workers’ compensation, auto, medical and general liability accruals. In accordance with ASC 450 Contingencies (“ASC
4507), we record a loss contingency when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. We review our loss contingencies on an ongoing basis to ensure that we have appropriate reserves recorded
on our balance sheet. These reserves are based on historical experience with claims incurred but not received, estimates and
judgments made by management, applicable insurance coverage for litigation matters, and are adjusted as circumstances warrant.
For workers’ compensation, our self-insured retention is $1.0 million and our automobile liability self-insured retention is currently
$500,000 per occurrence. For general liability claims, we have an effective self-insured retention of $3.0 million per occurrence.
Formedical claims, our self-insured retention is $350,000 per individual claimant determined on an annual basis. For environmental
liability claims, our self-insured retention is $1.0 million per occurrence. We maintain insurance for claims that exceed such self-
retention limits. The insurance is subject to terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions that may not fully compensate us for all
losses. Our estimates and judgments could change based on new information, changes in laws or regulations, changes in
management’s plans or intentions, or the outcome of legal proceedings, settlements or other factors. If different estimates and
judgments were applied with respect to these matters, it is likely that reserves would be recorded for different amounts.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. In the ordinary course of business, a portion of our accounts receivable are not collected

due to billing disputes, customer bankruptcies, dissatisfaction with the services we performed and other various reasons. We
establish an allowance to account for those accounts receivable that we estimate will eventually be deemed uncollectible. The
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allowance for doubtful accounts is based on a combination of our historical experience and management’s review of long outstanding
accounts receivable.

Concentration of credit risk. No single customer accounts for more than 10% of consolidated revenues.

Earnings (loss) per share. Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing income (loss) from continuing operations,
income (loss) from discontinued operations or net income (loss) attributable to Team stockholders by the weighted-average number
of shares of common stock outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing income (loss)
from continuing operations, income (loss) from discontinued operations or net income (loss) attributable to Team stockholders,
less income or loss for the period attributable to the noncontrolling interest, by the sum of (1) the weighted-average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during the period, (2) the dilutive effect of the assumed exercise of share-based compensation
using the treasury stock method, (3) the dilutive effect of the assumed conversion of our noncontrolling interest to our common
stock prior to the acquisition of that interest and (4) the dilutive effect of the assumed conversion of our convertible senior notes
under the treasury stock method. The Company’s intent is to settle the principal amount of the convertible senior notes in cash
upon conversion. If the conversion value exceeds the principal amount, the Company may elect to deliver shares of its common
stock with respect to the remainder of its conversion obligation in excess of the aggregate principal amount (the “conversion
spread”). Accordingly, the conversion spread is included in the denominator for the computation of diluted earnings per common
share using the treasury stock method and the numerator is adjusted for any recorded gain or loss, net of tax, on the embedded
derivative associated with the conversion feature.

Amounts used in basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share, for all periods presented, are as follows (in thousands):

Seven Months Twelve
Twelve Months Ended Ended Months Ended

December 31, December 31, May 31,

2017 2016 2015 2015

Weighted-average number of basic shares outstanding ............... 29,849 28,095 20,852 20,500
Stock options, stock units and performance awards .................... — — 260 419
Conversion of noncontrolling interest..........c..cocevevererenenrennenne. — — 313 732
Convertible SENIOr NOLES........ccvevvieieerieiiereeieeeere e e eeesreeeneneas — — — —
Total shares and dilutive SECUrIti€s.........cccevievrieeeeerienieenneens 29,849 28,095 21,425 21,651

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, all outstanding share-based compensation awards were excluded from
the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share because their inclusion would be antidilutive due to the loss from continuing
operations in those periods. Also, for the year ended December 31, 2017, the effect of our convertible senior notes was excluded
from the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share since the conversion price exceeded the average price of our common
stock during the applicable period. For information on our convertible senior notes and our share-based compensation awards,
refer to Note 9 and Note 11, respectively. There were no share-based awards outstanding during the seven months ended December
31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015 that were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because the
options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of common shares during the periods.

On August 31, 2015, we issued 728,266 shares of restricted common stock and paid $5.9 million in cash to acquire the
noncontrolling interest of Quest Integrity Group, LLC. Prior to August 31, 2015, these shares were included as dilutive securities
in the earnings per share calculation as set forth above.

Foreign currency. For subsidiaries whose functional currency is not the U.S. Dollar, assets and liabilities are translated at
period ending rates of exchange and revenues and expenses are translated at period average exchange rates. Translation adjustments
for the asset and liability accounts are included as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’
equity. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in our statements of operations.

We utilize monthly foreign currency swap contracts to reduce exposures to changes in foreign currency exchange rates
including, but not limited to, the Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar, Brazilian Real, British Pound, Euro, Malaysian Ringgit and
Mexican Peso. The impact from these swap contracts was not material as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 or for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015.

Defined benefit pension plans. Pension benefit costs and liabilities are dependent on assumptions used in calculating such
amounts. The primary assumptions include factors such as discount rates, expected investment return on plan assets, mortality
rates and retirement rates. These rates are reviewed annually and adjusted to reflect current conditions. These rates are determined
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based on reference to yields. The expected return on plan assets is derived from detailed periodic studies, which include a review
of asset allocation strategies, anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset classes, risks (standard deviations) and
correlations of returns among the asset classes that comprise the plans’ asset mix. While the studies give appropriate consideration
to recent plan performance and historical returns, the assumptions are primarily long-term, prospective rates of return. Mortality
and retirement rates are based on actual and anticipated plan experience. In accordance with GAAP, actual results that differ from
the assumptions are accumulated and are subject to amortization over future periods and, therefore, generally affect recognized
expense in future periods. While we believe that the assumptions used are appropriate, differences in actual experience or changes
in assumptions may affect the pension obligation and future expense.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts in prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. Such
reclassifications did not have any effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations as previously reported.

Newly Adopted Accounting Principles

ASU No. 2015-11. In July 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2015-11, Inventory—
Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory (“ASU 2015-117), which requires entities that measure inventory using the first-in,
first-out or average cost methods to measure inventory at the lower of cost and net realizable value to more closely align the
measurement of inventory in GAAP with International Financial Reporting Standards. Net realizable value is defined as estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation. Our
adoption, on a prospective basis, of ASU 2015-11 on January 1, 2017 had no impact on our results of operations, financial position
or cash flows.

ASU No. 2015-17. In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17, Income Taxes: Balance Sheet Classification of
Deferred Taxes (“ASU 2015-17”), which simplifies the presentation of deferred taxes by requiring deferred tax assets and liabilities
be classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet. As a result of our prospective adoption of ASU 2015-17 on January 1, 2017, all
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been classified as noncurrent on our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2017,
while our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2016 reflects classifications of deferred tax assets and liabilities in accordance
with previous GAAP. The adoption of ASU 2015-17 had no impact on our results of operations or cash flows.

ASU No. 2016-09. In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation: Improvements
to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting (“ASU 2016-09”), which makes several modifications to GAAP related to share-
based payments including the accounting for forfeitures, employee taxes and the financial statement presentation and timing of
recognition of excess tax benefits or deficiencies. Specifically, ASU 2016-09 requires excess tax benefits and deficiencies to be
recognized in the statements of operations as part of the provision for income tax (benefit) whereas previous guidance generally
resulted in such amounts being recognized in additional paid-in capital. ASU 2016-09 also clarifies the statement of cash flows
presentation for certain items associated with share-based awards. We adopted ASU 2016-09 on January 1, 2017. With respect to
the requirement to recognize excess tax benefits or deficiencies in the statements of operations, we began recognizing such amounts,
on a prospective basis, effective January 1, 2017 as a component of our provision (benefit) for income taxes as a discrete item.
For the year ended December 31, 2017, we recognized $1.8 million of net tax benefit deficiencies in the consolidated statement
of operations. Also, beginning prospectively on January 1, 2017, excess tax benefits, if any, from share-based awards are classified
as operating activities instead of financing activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows, as required by the ASU.
Additionally, in connection with the adoption, we recorded a cumulative-effect adjustment of $1.0 million that increased the
opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2017, reflecting the recognition of certain excess tax benefits from share-
based awards that did not yet qualify for recognition under previous guidance. The adoption of the other requirements in ASU
2016-09 had no impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

ASU No. 2017-04. In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350):
Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment (“ASU 2017-04”). Prior to adoption of ASU 2017-04, if an impairment of goodwill
is indicated, entities were required to then calculate the implied fair value of goodwill to determine the amount of impairment
loss. This procedure, referred to as the second step of the goodwill impairment test, required the determination of the fair value
of the assets and liabilities of a reporting unit as if those assets and liabilities had been acquired/assumed in a business combination
at the impairment testing date. ASU 2017-04 eliminated the second step and instead requires that the impairment loss be measured
as the amount by which the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value, not to exceed the total
amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. We elected to early adopt ASU 2017-04 prospectively effective January 1,
2017. Upon adoption, ASU 2017-04 had no impact on our consolidated financial statements, but we applied this new guidance to
our 2017 goodwill impairment tests.

Accounting Principles Not Yet Adopted
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ASU No. 2014-09. In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASU
2014-09”), which requires the Company to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers. ASU 2014-09 supersedes most existing revenue recognition guidance. Most of our
contracts with customers are short-term in nature and billed on a time and materials basis, while certain other contracts are billed
based upon a fixed price agreed upon in advance. For these fixed price contracts, we expect that ASU 2014-09 will generally result
in the recognition of revenue as the services are provided compared to recognition of revenue at the time of completion of those
contracts, under previous guidance. However, based on our current assessment of contracts with customers, we do not expect that
the adoption of ASU 2014-09 will result in significant changes to the overall pattern or timing of our revenue recognition. However,
to account for the cumulative effect of initially applying ASU 2014-09 as of January 1, 2018, we expect to recognize a pre-tax
increase to the opening balance of retained earnings of less than $10 million in the first quarter of 2018, pursuant to the modified
retrospective transition method, with a corresponding increase to contract assets for certain fixed-price contracts that were not yet
completed as of the date of adoption. Because we will apply the modified retrospective transition method of adoption, comparative
periods prior to January 1, 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted to reflect adoption of ASU 2014-09.

ASU No. 2016-02. In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (“ASU 2016-02”), which changes the
accounting for leases, including a requirement to record essentially all leases on the consolidated balance sheets as assets and
liabilities. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. We will adopt ASU 2016-02 effective January
1, 2019. We are currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on our ongoing financial reporting, however we expect a
significant amount of assets and liabilities will be recognized on our consolidated balance sheet upon adoption.

ASU No. 2016-13. In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326).
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (“ASU 2016-13”), which amends GAAP by introducing a new impairment
model for financial instruments that is based on expected credit losses rather than incurred credit losses. The new impairment
model applies to most financial assets, including trade accounts receivable. ASU 2016-13 is effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, although it may be adopted one year earlier, and requires a modified
retrospective transition approach. We are currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on our ongoing financial reporting.

ASU No. 2016-15. In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification
of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments (“ASU 2016-15"), which clarifies the classification in the statement of cash flows
of certain items, including debt prepayment or extinguishment costs, settlement of contingent consideration arising from a business
combination, insurance settlement proceeds, and cash receipts and payments having aspects of more than one class of cash flows.
We will adopt ASU 2016-15 in the first quarter of 2018, but we do not expect such adoption will have a material impact on our
statements of cash flows.

ASU No. 2016-16. In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers
of Assets Other Than Inventory (“ASU 2016-16"), which will require an entity to recognize the income tax consequences of an
intra-entity transfer of an asset, other than inventory, when the transfer occurs. ASU 2016-16 is effective for the Company beginning
January 1, 2018. Based on our current assessment of ASU 2016-16, at this time we do not anticipate that the adoption of this
guidance in the first quarter of 2018 will result in a material impact to our consolidated financial statements.

ASU No. 2017-07. In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, Compensation—Retirement Benefits: Improving the
Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost (“ASU 2017-07”), which prescribes
where in the statement of operations the components of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost
should be reported. Under ASU 2017-07, the service cost component is required to be reported in the same line or line items that
other compensation costs of the associated employees are reported, while the other components are reported outside of operating
income (loss). The changes in presentation in ASU 2017-07 are required to be adopted by the Company in the first quarter of 2018
and are to be applied retrospectively. ASU 2017-07 will apply to the presentation, in our statements of operations, of the net
periodic pension cost (credit) associated with our defined benefit pension plans, which are discussed in Note 12. We do not believe
that the changes in presentation required under ASU 2017-07 will have a material impact on our results of operations, although
we expect that most of our net periodic pension cost (credit) will be classified outside of operating income (loss) upon adoption.

ASU No. 2017-09. In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation: Scope of
Modification Accounting (“ASU 2017-09”), which provides guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-
based payment award require an entity apply modification accounting in Topic 718. Under ASU 2017-09, modification accounting
is required unless the effect of the modification does not impact the award’s fair value, vesting conditions and its classification as
an equity instrument or liability instrument. ASU 2017-09 is required to be adopted prospectively beginning in the first quarter
of 2018. We do not expect the adoption of ASU 2017-09 to have a material impact on our share-based compensation expense.

ASU No. 2017-12. In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted
Improvements to Accounting for Hedge Activities (“ASU 2017-12"). This update makes certain targeted improvements to the
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accounting and presentation of certain hedging relationships. For net investment hedges, ASU 2017-12 requires that the entire
change in the fair value of the hedging instrument included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness be recorded in the currency
translation adjustment section of other comprehensive income (loss). ASU 2017-12 is required to be adopted for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently
evaluating the impact this ASU will have on our ongoing financial reporting.

ASU No. 2018-02. In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income
(Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“ASU 2018-02). ASU
2018-02 introduces the option to reclassify from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to retained earnings the “stranded”
tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (see Note 8). Under GAAP, certain deferred tax assets or liabilities may
originate through income tax activity recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). However, because the adjustment of
deferred tax assets and liabilities due to the reduction of the historical corporate income tax rate to the newly enacted corporate
income tax rate is required to be included in income (loss) from continuing operations, the tax effects of items within accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) are not adjusted to reflect the new tax rate, resulting in “stranded” tax effects. ASU 2018-02
provides an option to reclassify such tax effects from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to retained earnings. ASU
2018-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption
is permitted. We are currently evaluating whether to elect the option set forth in ASU 2018-02.

2. ACQUISITIONS

Furmanite. In November 2015, Team and Furmanite Corporation (now Furmanite LLC, “Furmanite”) entered into an
Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) pursuant to which we acquired all the outstanding shares of Furmanite
in a stock transaction whereby Furmanite shareholders received 0.215 shares of Team common stock for each share of Furmanite
common stock they owned. The merger was completed on February 29, 2016. Outstanding Furmanite share-based payment awards
were generally converted into comparable share-based awards of Team, with certain awards vesting upon the closing of the merger,
pursuant to the Merger Agreement. The combination doubled the size of Team’s mechanical services capabilities and established
a deeper, broader talent and resource pool that better supports customers across standard and specialty mechanical services
worldwide.

The acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred totaled $282.3 million, which consisted of the following (in
thousands, except shares):

February 29, 2016

Common Stock (8,208,000 SHATES) ......ccueeruiruierieiierieiiesieeteseetesteetesteesesseessessaessesssessesssesseessessaessesseessenseensenses $ 209,529
Converted share-based PaymMeNnt AWATAS. .........ceiiiiiiieiieiee ettt ettt ettt e e s eeeeneeeeens 2,001
CASH otk ettt h ettt etk etk ek et a et naeae 70,811

TOLAl CONSIACTATION ...t e e e et e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e eee e s e e eeeeseeeeaeeeeeseneesneens $ 282,341

The fair value of the 8,208,006 common shares issued was determined based on the closing market price of our common
shares on the acquisition date of February 29, 2016. The issuance of common stock in the acquisition is a non-cash financing
activity that has been excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows. The fair value of the converted share-based payment
awards reflects an apportionment of the fair value of the awards, based on the closing market price of our common stock and other
assumptions as of the acquisition date, that is attributable to employee service completed prior to the acquisition date. The fair
value of the awards attributable to service after the acquisition date is recognized as share-based compensation expense over the
applicable vesting periods. The cash consideration represents amounts Team paid, immediately prior to the closing of the acquisition,
to settle Furmanite’s outstanding debt and certain related liabilities, which were not assumed by Team. The cash portion of the
consideration was financed through additional borrowings under our banking credit facility.
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The following table presents the purchase price allocation for Furmanite (in thousands):

February 29, 2016

Cash and cash eQUIVALEIILS ..........cccoveiriiirieinieiicteere ettt sttt ettt ettt sa et n e nnene $ 37,734
ACCOUNTS TECRTVADIC....euviiiiieiieeiieetieeiie et et e it e st e et e e tte e beeeae e beesebeesssessseessseasseessseensaasseessseesssaasseessseansannsseans 65,925
INVENTOTY ..ot 25,847
CUITent dEfEITEd tAX ASSELS ....viiiieeirieiiieiiieitie et eette et e e steeteesteeebe e ttesbeesseeesseessseesseessseassaesseessaessseesseesssansseensns 19,857
Prepaid expenses and Other CUITENTE ASSELS......c.coerirerieerieerieinieenteeertee ettt ettt ettt re s ne e snene 23,044
Current assets of diSCONtINUE OPETALIONS ......cc.evviruirrirtiriirieieieeeietetetee ettt ettt e e ese et eseeaeenes 18,623
Property, plant and EQUIPIENL. ........cccoeoiriiriiiiieenteentee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt se e e bt sa et ne e nnene 63,259
INtANEIDIE ASSELS......uiiiiiiciiicii e e e 88,958
GOOAWILL ...ttt ettt ettt e e s be et e st e esb e et e esbeesaesseesaesseeseesseessesseessesssessaassessanssesseessenseessesseaneas 89,646
Other NON-CUITENE ASSELS ....c.eureuieuieuieiieiieiert ettt ettt ettt ettt et b eateseebeebeebesae et e e b s et st et et et esaens et eneeneeneeneeueenes 687
NON-CUITENT ACTEITEA tAX ASSELS ...evviivieiiiiieitieiieitieteete ettt et e et ete st eae st essesseebeessessessseseessesesssesseessesseessesseensas 2,542

TOtal @SSES ACUITE. ....c.vevetitititetet ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt et a et be et be e et et et eneeaeeneeneas 436,122
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ..ottt s sttt 12,359
Other aCCTUEA [HADIIITIES .......evieiieeieieceeie ettt ettt ettt e et e eee e teeseesbeesbesaeessesssessaessessesssesseesseseensesseeneas 33,127
INCOME tAXES PAYADIE ...uvieiiiieiieti ettt ettt ettt et ettt e s et e ntesae e tesseentees e et e ene e st eneeeneeneeeneennas 229
Current liabilities of diSCONtINUE OPEIALIONS. .....c.coueriruerieuirieiirieienreierteentet ettt ettt sae e re e nnene 1,434
Non-current deferred tax HADIILIES .........coiieiiiiiiiiie ettt sre e ste e e e e steesaaeebeesebeeseeseseessaessneans 91,431
Defined benefit pension HabIlILY .........ccceciiiiiiiiiieeeee ettt 13,509
Other 1ong-term HADIIIEIES ....c.eeveiiieiiiiiiiieeer ettt ettt ettt eae b 1,692

Total lIabilities @SSUME.......cccviiuieiieiieiieieie ettt ettt et e ete et e ete e beeseesaeeseesaeessesseessesseessesssensenseenns 153,781

B[S AR R R et |5 (<1« RSP $ 282,341

The purchase price allocation shown above is based upon the fair values at the acquisition date. The fair values recorded
are “Level 3” measurements as defined in Note 10.

Of the $89.0 million of acquired intangible assets, $69.8 million was assigned to customer relationships with an estimated
useful life of 12 years, $16.9 million was assigned to trade names with a weighted-average estimated useful life of 12 years and
$2.3 million was assigned to developed technology with an estimated useful life of 10 years.

The $89.6 million of goodwill was assigned to the TeamFurmanite segment. The goodwill recognized is attributable primarily
to expected synergies and the assembled workforce of Furmanite. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

The fair value of accounts receivable acquired was $65.9 million, considering we expect $7.9 million to be uncollectible.
Additionally, we acquired accounts receivable with a fair value of $13.6 million associated with discontinued operations, which
is included in the current assets of discontinued operations line above. The gross contractual amount of receivables acquired was
$88.0 million

Current assets of discontinued operations as of the acquisition date also includes $3.3 million of goodwill and $1.6 million
of intangible assets that were allocated to a business that we sold in December 2016, as discussed in Note 15. The amount of
current assets of discontinued operations acquired shown above is net of costs to sell of $1.1 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2016 and for the seven months ended December 31, 2015, we recognized a total of $6.7
million and $3.0 million, respectively, of acquisition costs related to the Furmanite acquisition, which were included in selling,
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

Our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes the activity of Furmanite beginning
on the acquisition date of February 29, 2016. Subsequent to the acquisition date, we commenced integration activities relative to
Furmanite. As a result, certain business operations have been consolidated and/or transferred from legacy Furmanite operations
to legacy Team operations to facilitate the new operating structure. Revenues of $216 million and a net loss of $6.4 million are
included in the year ended December 31, 2016 and only include operating results that are directly attributable to legacy Furmanite
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operations. These amounts do not reflect any attempt to adjust for the effects of integration activities, which are not practicable
to determine.

Certain transactions related to the Furmanite acquisition were recognized separately from the acquisition of assets and
assumption of liabilities in accordance with GAAP. These transactions, which were attributable to certain compensation (both
cash and share-based) that was paid or became payable in conjunction with the closing of the acquisition, totaled $4.7 million and
were recognized as selling, general and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2016.

Our unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations are shown below as if the acquisition of Furmanite had occurred
on June 1, 2015. These results are not necessarily indicative of the results that would actually have occurred if the acquisition had
taken place at June 1, 2015, nor are they necessarily indicative of future results (in thousands, except per share data).

Pro forma data

Year Ended Sevel??nlt\iginths
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
(unaudited) (unaudited)
REVEIUES ...ttt et ettt ettt e et e e b e s taeeabeestbeeaseenssseabaesaseenbeesaseeareens $ 1,240,466 $ 787,914
Income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to Team shareholders.................... $ (7,497) $ 15,979
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing Operations: ............cecceceeererenenereneneneneennenns
BASIC -ttt ettt $ (0.25) $ 0.55
DAIIULEA ...ttt $ (0.25) $ 0.54

These amounts have been calculated after applying Team’s accounting policies and adjusting the results of Furmanite to
reflect the additional depreciation and amortization that would have been charged assuming the fair value adjustments to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets had been applied on June 1, 2015, together with the related tax effects. Additionally,
these pro forma results exclude discontinued operations as well as the impact of transaction and integration-related costs associated
with the Furmanite acquisition included in the historical results.These pro forma results also assume the Qualspec acquisition,
which is discussed below, had been completed as of June 1, 2014.

Qualspec. In July 2015, we acquired 100% of the membership interests in Qualspec for total cash consideration of $255.5
million. Qualspec is a leading provider of NDT services in the U.S., with significant operations in the West Coast, Gulf Coast and
Mid-Western areas of the country. Qualspec was primarily specialized in nested or run-and-maintain services and adds strength
to our resident refinery inspection programs with major customer relationships across the U.S., as well as to our already strong
capabilities in advanced inspection services, rope access services and the delivery of innovative technologies to our customers.
The purchase of Qualspec was financed through borrowings under our banking credit facility.
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The following table presents purchase price allocation for Qualspec (in thousands):

July 7, 2015

Cash and Cash EQUIVALENILS .........c.eiuiiieieee ettt ettt et e s bttt e bt s be st et et e st e b et et e e eneeseeneeneas W
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ....iiuviiiiieiiecie ettt ettt e e et e e e b e eteesebe e teesebe e baeesseesseeesseesseaeseessseasseessseanseesseenseesneansens 21,495
CUITent ETEITEA tAX ASSELS ...veuvvieetiietertetirteierteit sttt ettt et ettt b ettt bbbttt b ettt eb et eb et eb et senbebesbe st enens 279
PIEpaid EXPEIISES .....eeiiiiiieieiiietieetere ettt ettt s et eas 1,049
Plant, property and ©QUIPIMENL ..........cc.eiueieieieiee ettt ettt sttt e e et e st ebesaeebeebeebesaebessessesenseneeneeneeseeneeneas 15,472
INTANEIDIE ASSELS ...eviiiiiiiiieiietee ettt eas 78,100
GOOAWIIL.. e e st e s e s ee s es e e eeseses e es s eeseeeseeeseees e eeseeeseesseeeesseseeeseseseeeseseseens 148,482
OERET @SSELS ..vteuetiriertiet ettt ettt et ettt et et eb e bt b e st b et sttt et es b ese e bt eh e eb e e bt sb e e bt s bt se et et et et en b et eneebeebeebeenea 138

TOtal ASSES ACUITEA ...ttt ettt ettt b ettt e et bt e bt e st e s bt e st e s bt et e s b e entesbeentesbeenee 2—68,996
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE ...cniiiiieiiecie ettt ettt e et et e et e e te e sbe e seessbeessseesseessseesseeseeansaeseesnseenssesnseensseanseensseans 2,892
Other ACCIUEA HADIIITIES ......eecuviiiiieiieciie ettt ettt ettt et e et e e teeeabe e taeeabeestseeaseesaeessaessseeabeassseeaseessseanseessseans 7,581
Non-current deferred tax HADILILY ........coecvviiiiriiireie ettt 2,982

Total 1HabilitieS ASSUMEM. ........cccuiiitiieiieetie et et ettt ettt e et e e teeebeestaeesbeestseesseestseesseaesseesseessseesseessseeseesseans 13,455

Nt @SSELS ACAUITEA .....eeuietieiieitiete ittt ettt ettt et sb et bt e bt e bt et e ebt et e eat e et e eseesbeeneesbeeaesbeenbesmeenbesnnens m

The purchase price allocation shown above is based upon the fair values at the acquisition date. The fair values recorded
are “Level 3” measurements as defined in Note 10.

Of the $78.1 million of acquired intangible assets, $75.2 million was assigned to customer relationships with an estimated
useful life of 15 years, $1.6 million was assigned to non-compete agreements with an estimated useful life of 5 years and $1.3
million was assigned to trade names with an estimated useful life of 1 year.

The $148.5 million of goodwill was assigned to the TeamQualspec segment. The goodwill recognized is attributable primarily
to expected synergies and the assembled workforce of Qualspec. About $109.6 million of the goodwill is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

The fair value of accounts receivables acquired was $21.5 million, with the gross contractual amount being $22.5 million.
We expect $1.0 million to be uncollectible.

Our consolidated results include the activity of Qualspec beginning on the acquisition date of July 7, 2015. Revenues of
$79.3 million and net income of $2.7 million of Qualspec are included in the consolidated statement of operations (in the
TeamQualspec segment) for the seven months ended December 31, 2015.

Our unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations are shown below as if the acquisition of Qualspec had occurred
at June 1, 2014. These results are not necessarily indicative of the results which would actually have occurred if the acquisition
had taken place at June 1, 2014, nor are they necessarily indicative of future results (in thousands, except per share data).

Pro forma data

Seven Months Ended

December 31, Year Ended May 31,
2015 2015
(unaudited) (unaudited)

REVEIUES ....oiiiiieec e e e et e e e s e satb e e e e e entbaeeeeeesnsaaeeens $ 589,553 $ 1,011,829

Income from continuing operations attributable to Team shareholders..............c......... $ 9215 $ 41,597
Earnings per share from continuing Operations: ...........c.cceeeerreeeerreeiesreereessesseesseesuennes

BSIC ..ttt et e e e et e e et e e et e e s et e e seaeenaans $ 044 $ 2.03

DIIULEA. ...ttt ettt ettt e et e et e e b e e ta e b e eseesseeseeseereesseenaeneas $ 043 $ 1.92

These amounts have been calculated after applying Team’s accounting policies, reflecting additional interest expense and
adjusting the results of Qualspec to reflect the additional depreciation and amortization that would have been charged assuming
the fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets had been applied on June 1, 2014, together with
the consequential tax effects.
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3. RECEIVABLES

A summary of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2017 2016
Trade acCOUNtS TECEIVADIE ........ieiuiieiiieiiecieetee ettt te et te e e be et eebeesteesebaessaeennas $ 244,133  § 230,889
UNDIIIEA TEVENUES......ecvieeieieieieiieieetee ettt ettt et e eete st e sesstesseessessaessesseessessaensenseensenses 69,138 39,719
Allowance for doubtful ACCOUNLS .......c..cceeiririririniriieeere ettt (11,308) (7,835)
TORALL ..ttt ettt b et et b bbbt b e na s $ 301,963 $ 262,773

The allowance for doubtful accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts
receivable. Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the
potential for recovery is remote. The following summarizes the activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts (in thousands):

Seven Months Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
Balance at beginning of period...........cccccevvvevvereennnne. $ 7,835 § 3,548 $ 2,775 $ 4,784
Provision for doubtful accounts...........ccccevveveenennnnne. 7,097 6,336 1,819 233
Write-off of bad debts.............cccocniiiiii (3,624) (2,049) (1,046) (2,242)
Balance at end of period.........cceeveierieienieeeee $ 11,308 $ 7,835 $ 3,548 $ 2,775

4. INVENTORY

A summary of inventory as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2017 2016
RAW MALETIALS ..evviviieiiiicieeect ettt ettt ettt e et et e e te et e essesbeessesseessasseessessnensenseas $ 8,707 $ 6,844
WOTK 10 PIOGIESS....niiiiiiciereeie ettt 2,836 2,713
FINISHEd ZOOQS ....viviiiiiiieiieietieete ettt ettt e at e b e eseesseessesaeesseseaensenneas 38,160 40,014
TOAL et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e enen $ 49,703 $ 49,571
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2017 2016

LN et e e e e e ——————————ataeaeaeereraaaaaaaaas $ 6,698 §$ 7,429
Buildings and leasehold improvements. ...........ccuerueiierierienieeieseeieseeieeeesreseesaesee e snessessnens 47,924 42,257
Machinery and SqUIPIMIENT .......c.cccueiririririintenentetetee ettt ettt e sttt st eneeaes 261,343 233,063
FUrniture and fIXEUIES .......ocveviieiiieieieccete ettt et e teesaesseesbesseensessaessesnnessesssens 9,405 8,431
Capitalized ERP system development COSES........coiiiiiiriiiirieniieieeieeie e 46,637 44,876
Computers and COMPULET SOTEWATE ........ccuivieriiiieiiiierieeiete ettt ettt a e s sae e e saessnesseesnens 13,052 11,775
AULOIMODILES ...evieiiieieieeieecie ettt ettt et e et e ev e e teeetteeteeesbe e seesssaessaeesseessseensaesseanseenseennsens 5,070 5,370
CONSLIUCTION TN PIOZTESS ...vuvuerieeirteeteetertestentestestetestestestesteseesteteebesbesbeebesbestenbensetenseseeneeseeneases 12,613 12,997

TORAL ..ttt ettt ettt a e st st ettt e e bt h et ebeeae s et et et entententeneeneenene 402,742 366,198
Accumulated depreciation and amortiZation ............coceoveirerirerinenene e (199,523) (163,068)
Property, plant, and eqUIPmMENt, NEt..........coveeereriirierieieieieeteeeere ettt $ 203,219 § 203,130

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and

the year ended May 31, 2015 was $35.7 million, $33.5 million, $13.9 million and $19.0 million, respectively.

At the end of 2013, we initiated the design and implementation of a new ERP system, which was substantially installed by
the end of 2017. Amortization of the ERP system development costs began in March 2017 and is computed by the straight-line
method. Through December 31, 2017, we have capitalized $46.6 million associated with the project that includes $1.6 million of

capitalized interest, and we have recognized $2.6 million of amortization expense.

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A summary of intangible assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2017
Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relatioNSRIPS.......cocuieierieiereee e $ 175,226  $ (38,712) $ 136,514
NON-COMPELE AZIECMENLS ....ccuvereientirireniiritenieetenieetesieenteste st etesbe et sbeennesaeenee 5,563 (4,509) 1,054
TTAAE NAIMIES ...ttt ettt ettt 24,830 (6,211) 18,619
TECRNOLOZY ...t 7,867 (4,292) 3,575
LICRISES .ttt st sttt ettt 859 (460) 399
TOTAL. .. ettt ettt ettt ettt b e ta et e st e reenteeaeennas $ 214345 § (54,184) $ 160,161

December 31, 2016
Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relatioNSRIPS........ccvieiiriieieiieieceee et $ 174,742 $ (25,508) $ 149,234
NON-COMPELE AZIEEMENLS......c.verurenririreiieirenieeteeieete et ere e ere e ere st enresaeenne 5,397 (3,896) 1,501
TTadE NAIMIES ...oeevvieiiiieiiecit ettt ettt e et esbeessaeenbeessaeenseeens 24,624 (4,216) 20,408
TECANOLOZY ...t 7,812 (3,364) 4,448
LICEIISES ..ttt sttt 838 (325) 513
L] | SRS $ 213413 § (37,309) $ 176,104
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Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and
the year ended May 31,2015 was, $16.5 million, $16.1 million, $5.5 million, and $3.8 million, respectively. Amortization expense
for current intangible assets is forecast to be approximately $29 million in 2018, approximately $14 million per year in 2019 and
2020 and approximately $13 million per year in 2021 and 2022. The increase in forecast amortization expense for 2018 is primarily
due to a change in the estimated useful life of the Furmanite trade name, to be accounted for prospectively beginning January 1,
2018. The weighted-average amortization period for intangible assets subject to amortization is 13.3 years as of December 31,
2017. The weighted-average amortization period as of December 31, 2017 is 13.5 years for customer relationships, 4.5 years for
non-compete agreements, 12.5 years for trade names, 9.6 years for technology and 9.3 years for licenses.

7. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

A summary of other accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2017 2016

Payroll and other COMPENSation EXPENSES ........ccveueeuireruirrirerterienienterteteteeeseeseenesreeresbeseeseessenes $ 40,988 $ 38,214
INSULANCE ACCIUALS.......viitieieieeiie ettt et ettt e et e bt estaeebeeseaeebeessteesseessseesseessseasseessseenseenseeas 15,799 13,896
Property, sales and other non-income related taXes..........ccvevveeverieeienieienieieee e 6,483 5,599
LeaSe COMMUILIMENTS ....ecvieiiiieiieiiieieeciie et e ete e e st e ebeestbeebeeseseebaessseesseessseesseessseasseessseenseenseeas 1,616 2,119
DETEITEA TEVEINUE ...ecvviiieiiieiietieeeteet ettt ettt ettt e b e se et e ess e seessesseessesseessessaensesseas 6,102 3,433
ACCTUCA COMIMUISSION ...vieuviieiiieitiieieeiie et eetteebeesteeeteesteeeseesteeesseessaessseessseesseesssessseanseesnseessensses 1,473 1,355
ACCTUC INEETESE ....evieuiiieieieeiiete ettt ettt e et e eat e te et e e teesbesseesaesseesseesaesseessessaessanseessaeseensenseessenses 5,950 603
VOIUME QISCOUNT .....eeiiiiieiiieiieitie et ette ettt ettt e ettt e e be e teeebeeseessbeessseeaseessaessseenseesnseenseensss 1,545 1,067
Contingent CONSIACTALION .......cvievierieeierieetesteetesteeteseete st ebesseeseessesseesseseessesseessesseessesseessesses 1,246 2,103
ProfeSSioNal fEES ......cciiiiieeiiciie ettt ettt et et e et e et e e b e e abeebeestaeebaeaaeas 1,098 1,530
ONET .ttt ettt et et e s bt et e steesaesteesbeeae e s s e et s esbeess e beeRsenseeseeebeeneeeaeenaesreensenaean 10,172 9,985

TOAL e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eee e e e e e e e eeeen $ 92472 $ 79,904
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8. INCOME TAXES

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31,
2015, we were taxed on income (loss) from continuing operations at an effective tax rate of 24%, 20%, 34% and 36%, respectively.
Our income tax provision (benefit) on continuing operations for years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months
ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015, was $(33.4) million, $(3.1) million, $4.6 million and $22.8 million,
respectively, and includes federal, state and foreign taxes. The components of our tax provision (benefit) on continuing operations
were as follows (in thousands):

Current Deferred Total
Twelve months ended December 31, 2017:
ULS. Federal.......cooiiieiieiee ettt $ 6,177 $ (42,516) $ (36,339)
State & 10CAL.....eieiiieiiriiircrcc e 170 (4,819) (4,649)
Foreign JuriSAiCtionS.........coererierienieieiceeeeee et 6,821 795 7,616

$ 13,168 $§  (46,540) $  (33.372)

Twelve months ended December 31, 2016:

ULS. Federal......covuiiiiiiiiieinccnccic et $ (2,048) $ (5,262) $ (7,310)
State & LOCAL......cveuiieiiieiecc e (1,338) 206 (1,132)
Foreign JuriSAICtIONS.........coevverieieieieieieeeteere e 4,529 820 5,349
$ 1,143 § (4,236) $ (3,093)
Seven months ended December 31, 2015:
U.S. Federal......c.oouiiiiiiiiciciccceee s $ 4 S 1,667 $ 1,663
State & 10Cal.....cviiiiiiiieic e 90 187 277
Foreign JuriSAiCtionS.........coevuerierienieieieeececeere et 2,128 505 2,633
$ 2,214 $ 2,359 § 4,573
Twelve months ended May 31, 2015:
U.S. FedeTal ..ot $ 17,183 $ 606 $ 17,789
State & 10CaL.....oviiiiiiciiic s 2,634 (141) 2,493
Foreign JuriSAICtIONS.........coevverieieieieieieeeeere e 3,598 (1,087) 2,511
$ 23,415 $ (622) $ 22,793

The components of pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operations for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016, the
seven months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015 were as follows (in thousands):

Seven Months

Twelve Months Ended Ended Twelve Months
December 31, December 31, Ended May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
DOMESTIC....veiviieeeieeeee ettt ettt aeenean $ (149,045) $ (25,488) $ 6,627 $ 51,784
FOT@IGN....ccviiiieiiiieieceeteeee et 11,512 9,830 6,824 11,506

S (137.533) $  (15,658) $ 13451 $ 63,290
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Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to income (loss) from continuing operations differed from the amounts computed
by applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 35% to pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operations as a result of the following

(in thousands):

Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operations ......
Computed income taxes at statutory rate.....................
State income taxes, net of federal benefit....................
Foreign tax rate differential .............ccoocoevinieninnnne.
Production activity deduction..........c.cceeeverrievverneennenne.
Deferred taxes on investment in foreign subsidiaries..
Non-deductible eXpenses..........ccevereverreecreseesreeeennens
Foreign tax credits ........cccveeeriieienieiereeeeeee e
Other taX Credits .......coeverveuerieireirieinieereeeeeeeneenene
Deemed repatriation taX ..........cceeceeeereerieneeeneeneeeeee.
Goodwill IMPaIrmMent...........cceeceerreeienreeienreeeeseeeeees
Dividend from foreign subsidiaries..........ccccecereenennee.

Valuation allowance............ccoveevvveeiveeeeniieeeeeeeeeens

Total provision (benefit) for income tax on
CONtINUING OPETAtIONS...ccvvrrreeereerierireeireenereenaeeenes

Seven Months Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015

(137,533) $ (15,658) $ 13,451 $ 63,290
(48,136) (5,481) 4,710 22,153
(4,709) (713) 258 1,670
(642) (707) (648) (1,318)
— — (10) (136)
(17,079) 1,777 (335) 819
1,030 871 335 513
(17,445) (2,302) (19) (11)
(631) (1,033) (446) (223)
24,374 — — _
19,442 — — —
— 2,021 — —
20,955 1,986 771 (394)
(17,360) — — —
6,829 488 (43) (280)
(33,372) $ (3,093) $ 4573 $ 22,793
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are presented below (in thousands):

December 31,

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued compensation and DENEefits ..........oecuerieiiriiiiiiee e $ 9,810 $ 12,559
RECEIVADIES ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et e sb e e sa e b e essesseeseesbeesaesaeensesaeensenseas 2,381 3,856
INVENTOTY ..ottt et 873 3,539
SEOCK OPTIONS ...ttt ettt ettt et eb e bt e b et be b et e s e 738 1,526
Foreign currency translation and other equity adjustments.............ccceveeeereereneeneseerenenn 2,945 6,359
Other acCrued HabIlItIES ....c.eeuievieeieiicieie ettt e esbe e e e saeesaeseeessesneas 3,066 5,811
Tax credit carry fOrward...........oov oo e 2,588 4,769
Net operating 10Ss Carry fOrWards ........cocceeeeririrerininereseee ettt 35,185 25,061
L0111 1< (USRS PRUUPRRRURROt 2,066 4,227
DETEITEA taX ASSCLS ..eeuviiuiiiietietieeierieei et et e sttt e st ete s e et e steesbeeseesbeesseseessesseessesseessesseessesseensessens 59,652 67,707
Less: Valuation allOWanCe...........ccueoueieiriiiiinieniitisene ettt ettt (26,185) (13,168)
DEferred tax @SSELS, NMET.....icieriieieirieierieete it ete st ete st eteste e e esae b e esaesbeesseseessesseessesseessesseensesseas 33,467 54,539
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and €qUIPIMENT ..........coveieiriiiriie ettt (20,918) (28,700)
Goodwill and INtANGIDIE COSES.....cviiiiriiiiiiiriicrteeer ettt (27,762) (43,737)
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries...........coeevverieirieinieinieineineinceeceeceeeeeenes (13,795) (51,087)
CONVEIIDIE dEDE.....coueriiiiiiiiiiieieeee ettt ettt s (3,622) —
OFRET ..ttt ettt sttt sttt ettt ettt (679) (1,602)
Deferred tax HaADIIILIES .....ccceiririririiieieieicieee ettt ettt (66,776) (125,126)
Net deferred tax HabIlity ......cceierereieeee ettt $ (33,309) $ (70,587)

As of December 31, 2017, we had a valuation allowance of $26.2 million to reduce our deferred tax assets to an amount
more likely than not to be recovered. This valuation allowance relates primarily to deferred tax asset on U.S. net operating loss
carry forwards in the amount of $19.8 million. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, we consider whether it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible. We consider factors including the reversal of future taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income
and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

As of December 31, 2017, we had net foreign net operating loss carry forwards totaling $5.6 million that were expected
to be realized in the future periods. A total of $2.2 million has an unlimited carry forward period and will therefore not expire.

AtDecember 31,2017, we also have net operating loss carry forwards for U.S. federal income tax purposes of $99.0 million,
which are available, subject to certain limitations, to offset future taxable income, if any, through the year 2037. In addition, we
have alternative minimum tax credit carry forwards of approximately $1.2 million which, under the 2017 Tax Act, can be used to
offset regular income tax in future periods, and which is refundable for any tax year beginning after 2017 and before 2022 in an
amount equal to 50% (100% for tax years beginning in 2021).

AtDecember 31,2017, none of our undistributed earnings of foreign operations were considered to be permanently reinvested
overseas. As a result of the recent changes in U.S. tax law (the 2017 Tax Act, as further discussed below), we recorded a net tax
benefit of $17.1 million reflecting the impact of a new foreign dividends-received deduction for U.S. tax purposes. The existence
of this deduction under the new law has significantly reduced our requirement under ASC 740 to recognize a deferred tax liability
for the future remittance of such earnings to the U.S.

At December 31, 2017, we have established liabilities for uncertain tax positions of $1.2 million, inclusive of interest and
penalties. To the extent these uncertainties are ultimately resolved favorably, the resulting reduction of recorded liabilities would
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have an effect on our effective tax rate. In accordance with ASC 740-10, our policy is to recognize interest and penalties related
to unrecognized tax benefits through the tax provision.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. with federal and state jurisdictions as well as various foreign jurisdictions. With few
exceptions, we are no longer subject to U.S. Federal, state and local or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for
years prior to 2015. We are currently in the examination phase of IRS audits for the tax years ended May 31, 2015 and December
31,2015. The income tax laws and regulations are voluminous and are often ambiguous. As such, we are required to make certain
subjective assumptions and judgments regarding our tax positions that may have a material effect on our results of operations,
financial position or cash flows. We believe, however, that there is appropriate support for the income tax positions taken, and to
be taken, on our returns, and that our accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on an assessment of many
factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law applied to the facts of each matter.

Set forth below is a reconciliation of the changes in our unrecognized tax benefits associated with uncertain tax positions
(in thousands):

Seven Months

Twelve Months Ended Ended Twelve Months
December 31, December 31, Ended May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015

Balance at beginning 0f YEar.........ccoevieuiiririinirerniieeseeineie e eseneee $ 858 $ 539 $ 477 $ 715
Acquisition of Furmanite uncertain tax positions — 660 — —
Additions based on current year tax POSItIONS ........cceveueerueueererierenirieeennnne — 464 62 —
Additions based on tax positions related to prior years.........c.ccoceeeeeeruerennne 301 96 — 68
Reductions based on tax positions related to prior years.........cococeevvereereenenns — (564) — (306)
Settlements — (337) — —
Reductions resulting from a lapse of the applicable statute of limitations..... — — — —
Balance at end of Year........c.cvvirieiiirieiiirieie e $ 1,159 §$ 858 §$ 539§ 477

The estimated amount of liabilities recorded for uncertain tax positions that we believe will be effectively settled within the
next twelve months is immaterial.

Recent Legislation - The 2017 Tax Act and SAB 118 Provisional Estimates

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. government enacted the 2017 Tax Act, which significantly revises U.S. corporate income
tax law by lowering the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21%, implementing a territorial tax system, imposing
a one-time tax on foreign unremitted earnings and setting limitations on deductibility of certain costs (e.g., interest expense),
among other changes.

Due to the complexities involved in accounting for the 2017 Tax Act, the SEC issued SAB 118, which requires that companies
include in their financial statements reasonable estimates of the impact of the 2017 Tax Act to the extent such reasonable estimates
have been determined. Accordingly, the Company recorded the following reasonable estimates of the tax impact of the new law
in its statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017:

a) The Company accrued a reasonable estimate of $8.4 million of tax expense (net of applicable foreign tax credits) for
the 2017 Tax Act’s one-time transition tax on the foreign subsidiaries’ accumulated, unremitted earnings going back
to 1986. The Company will elect to pay the transition tax in installments over the period of 8 years, pursuant to the
guidance of the new Internal Revenue Code Section 965.

b) The Company accrued $17.4 million of provisional tax benefit related to the net change in deferred tax balances
stemming from the 2017 Tax Act’s reduction of the U.S. federal income tax rate,

¢) The Company recorded a reasonable estimate of the state tax impact of the 2017 Tax Act, based on the current law in
the states in the U.S in which it operates, and

d) The Company calculated a reasonable estimate of the effect on certain deferred tax assets and liabilities of the Company
related to the 2017 Tax Act’s revised rules regarding certain incentive-based compensation tax deductions under Internal
Revenue Code Section 162(m).

The 2017 Tax Act also includes a provision to tax GILTI of foreign subsidiaries and a BEAT measure that taxes certain
payments between a U.S. corporation and its subsidiaries. The Company will be subject to the GILTI and BEAT provisions effective
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beginning January 1, 2018 and is in the process of analyzing their effects, including how to account for the GILTI provision from
an accounting policy standpoint.

The final impact on the Company from the 2017 Tax Act’s transition tax legislation may differ from the aforementioned
reasonable estimate due to the complexity of calculating and supporting such U.S. tax attributes as accumulated foreign earnings
and profits, foreign taxes paid and other tax components involved in foreign tax credit calculations for prior years back to 1986.
The other provisional estimates outlined above may also change based on the various applications of the respective elements of
the 2017 Tax Act, to the extent that they pertain to the provisional items disclosed herein. Such differences could be material, due
to, among other things, changes in interpretations of the 2017 Tax Act, future changes in U.S. states’ tax laws related to the Act,
future legislative action to address questions that arise because of the 2017 Tax Act, changes in accounting standards for income
taxes or related interpretations in response to the 2017 Tax Act or any updates or changes in estimates that the Company has utilized
to calculate these reasonable estimates.

Pursuant to the SAB 118, the company is allowed a measurement period of up to one year after the enactment date of the
2017 Tax Act to finalize the recording of the related tax impacts. The Company will continue to assess the impact of the 2017 Tax
Act on our provisional estimates and will record any resulting tax adjustments during 2018.

9. LONG-TERM DEBT, DERIVATIVES AND LETTERS OF CREDIT

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, our long-term debt is summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2017 2016
Credit FACIIILY c..vovvivieievieietieeteeeee ettt ettt ettt b et st bt et se b essesesseteanerennas $ 177,857 $ 366,911
CONVETtIDIE AEDE' .......vooeoeeeeeeeeeeeee e 209,892 —
Total 1oNg-terM debL.......c.eeiieiieiieiee ettt 387,749 366,911
Less: current portion of long-term debt...........cccovevierierieiieieiieieeeee e — 20,000
Total long-term debt, 1ess CUrrent POrtion..........c.cceevereeviereerieeeeieeeesreeeesre e sreeee e e $ 387,749 $ 346,911
1 Comprised of principal amount outstanding plus embedded derivative liability, less unamortized discount and issuance costs. See Convertible Debt section below for additional
information.
Future maturities of long-term debt, are as follows (in thousands):
December 31
20 L8 ettt e ettt e e —— e e e ea ———teeeea————aeeeaa——teeeeaa———teeeea———aeeean———taeeean—rateeeeatareeeeanntanes $ —
2079 et e et et e ————eeeea————eeeeaa———teeeeaa———teeeaan——teeesaa———teeee e —ateeeeeaatareeeeanntaaes —
2020 ettt e e et eeee——eeeeeee———eeeeea————aeeeaai——taeeeaa——ateeeaaa——taeeeaa——taaeeeairaaaaeeaaareaeeeeaatrrens 177,857
202 ettt e e e ee—————eeeea———aeeeaa——teeeeaa———teeeaan——tteeean———teeee e —raaeeeeatareeeeinrtanes —
2022 ettt e e ————eeeea————teeeaa————eeeeaa———teeeeaa———teeeian———teeeean———teeee e —ateeeeeaatareeeeanntrres —
T3 TN £ GO RRRRRE 230,000
TOTALL ..ottt ettt et ettt et e ettt e et et e e et e e et e eate et e e eateetee st e eatesaeeaeesraeen $ 407,857
Credit Facility

In July 2015, we renewed our banking credit facility (the “Credit Facility”). In accordance with the second amendment to
the Credit Facility, which was signed in February 2016, the Credit Facility had a borrowing capacity of up to $600 million and
consisted of a $400 million, five-year revolving loan facility and a $200 million five-year term loan facility. The swing line facility
is $35.0 million. On July 31, 2017, we completed the issuance of $230.0 million of 5.00% convertible senior notes in a private
offering and used the proceeds from the Offering (as defined below) to repay in full the outstanding term-loan portion of our Credit
Facility and a portion of the outstanding revolving borrowings. Concurrent with the completion of the Offering and the repayment
of outstanding borrowings discussed above, we entered into the sixth amendment to the Credit Facility, effective as of June 30,
2017, which reduced the capacity of the Credit Facility to a $300 million revolving loan facility, subject to a borrowing availability
test (based on eligible accounts, inventory and fixed assets). The Credit Facility matures in July 2020, bears interest based on a
variable Eurodollar rate option (LIBOR plus 3.75% margin at December 31, 2017) and has commitment fees on unused borrowing
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capacity (0.75% at December 31, 2017). The Credit Facility limits our ability to pay cash dividends without the consent of our
bank syndicate.

The Credit Facility also contains financial covenants. As of December 31, 2017, the Company was required to maintain (i)
a maximum ratio of senior secured debt to consolidated EBITDA (the “Senior Secured Leverage Ratio,” as defined in the Credit
Facility agreement) of not more than 4.25 to 1.00 and (ii) an interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.00 to 1.00 (the “Interest
Coverage Ratio,” as defined in the Credit Facility agreement). As of December 31,2017, we are in compliance with these covenants.
The Senior Secured Leverage Ratio and the Interest Coverage Ratio stood at 3.53 to 1.00 and 3.03 to 1.00, respectively, as of
December 31, 2017. At December 31, 2017, we had $26.6 million of cash on hand and approximately $41 million of available
borrowing capacity through our Credit Facility. In connection with the repayment in full of the outstanding term-loan portion of
our Credit Facility of $160.0 million on July 31, 2017 and the reduction in capacity of the revolving portion of the Credit Facility,
we recorded a loss of $1.2 million during the third quarter of 2017 associated with the write-off of a portion of the debt issuance
costs associated with the Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2017, we had $2.1 million of unamortized debt issuance costs that
are being amortized over the life of the Credit Facility.

We entered into the seventh amendment to the Credit Facility (the “Seventh Amendment”) on March 8, 2018 to modify
certain of the financial covenants. The Seventh Amendment eliminated the Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility
agreement) covenant through the remainder of the term of the Credit Facility and also modified both the Senior Secured Leverage
Ratio and the Interest Coverage Ratio as follows. First, the Company is required to maintain a maximum Senior Secured Leverage
Ratio of not more 4.25 to 1.00 as of March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2018, not more than 3.50 to 1.00 as of September 30, 2018 and
each quarter thereafter through June 30, 2019 and not more than 2.75 to 1.00 as of September 30, 2019 and each quarter thereafter.
With respect to the Interest Coverage Ratio, the Company is required to maintain a ratio of not less than 2.25 to 1.00 as of March
31, 2018 and each quarter thereafter through December 31, 2018 and not less than 2.50 to 1.00 as of March 31, 2019 and each

quarter thereafter.

Our ability to maintain compliance with the financial covenants is dependent upon our future operating performance and
future financial condition, both of which are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that
we will be able to maintain compliance with the Credit Facility covenants as of any future date. In the event we are unable to
maintain compliance with our financial covenants, we would seek to enter into an amendment to the Credit Facility with our bank
group in order to modify and/or to provide relief from the financial covenants for an additional period of time. Although we have
entered into amendments in the past, there can be no assurance that any future amendments would be available on terms acceptable
to us, if at all.

In order to secure our casualty insurance programs we are required to post letters of credit generally issued by a bank as
collateral. A letter of credit commits the issuer to remit specified amounts to the holder, if the holder demonstrates that we failed
to meet our obligations under the letter of credit. If this were to occur, we would be obligated to reimburse the issuer for any
payments the issuer was required to remit to the holder of the letter of credit. We were contingently liable for outstanding stand-
by letters of credit totaling $22.5 million at December 31, 2017 and $21.6 million at December 31, 2016. Outstanding letters of
credit reduce amounts available under our Credit Facility and are considered as having been funded for purposes of calculating
our financial covenants under the Credit Facility.

Convertible Debt

Description of the Notes

On July 31, 2017, we issued $230.0 million principal amount of 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2023 (the “Notes”)
in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers (as defined in the Securities Act of 1933) pursuant to Rule 144A under the
Securities Act (the “Offering”). The Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company. The Notes bear interest at rate of
5.0% per year, payable semiannually in arrears on February 1 and August 1 of each year, beginning on February 1, 2018. The
Notes mature on August 1, 2023 unless repurchased, redeemed or converted in accordance with their terms prior to such date. The
Notes are convertible at an initial conversion rate of 46.0829 shares of our common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the
Notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $21.70 per share, which represents a conversion premium
of 40% to the last reported sale price of $15.50 per share on the NYSE on July 25, 2017, the date the pricing of the Notes was
completed. The conversion rate, and thus the conversion price, may be adjusted under certain circumstances as described in the
indenture governing the Notes.

Holders may convert their Notes at their option prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding
May 1, 2023, but only under the following circumstances:
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. during any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending on December 31, 2017 (and only during
such calendar quarter), if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not
consecutive) during a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding
calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price on each applicable trading day;

. during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day period (the “measurement period”) in which
the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Notes for each trading day of such measurement period was less than
98% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the conversion rate on such trading day;

. if we call any or all of the Notes for redemption, at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the redemption date; or;

. upon the occurrence of specified corporate events described in the indenture governing the Notes.

On or after May 1, 2023 until the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the maturity date, holders
may, at their option, convert their Notes at any time, regardless of the foregoing circumstances.

Because the Notes could be convertible in full into more than 19.99 percent of our outstanding common stock, we are
required by the listing rules of the NYSE to obtain the approval of the holders of our outstanding shares of common stock before
the Notes may be converted into more than 5,964,858 shares of common stock. The Notes are initially convertible into 10,599,067
shares of common stock. We have agreed to seek approval of the holders of our outstanding shares of common stock at our next
annual stockholders’ meeting. The Notes will be convertible into, subject to various conditions, cash or shares of the Company’s
common stock or a combination of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock, in each case, at the Company’s election,
except that prior to receipt of the requisite stockholder approval, the Company will settle conversions in cash or a combination of
cash and shares of common stock.

If holders elect to convert the Notes in connection with certain fundamental change transactions described in the indenture
governing the Notes, we will, under certain circumstances described in the indenture governing the Notes, increase the conversion
rate for the Notes so surrendered for conversion.

We may not redeem the Notes prior to August 5, 2021. We will have the option to redeem all or any portion of the Notes on
or after August 5, 2021, if certain conditions (including that our common stock is trading at or above 130% of the conversion price
then in effect for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive)), including the trading day immediately preceding the date
on which the Company provides notice of redemption, during any 30 consecutive trading day period ending on, and including,
the trading day immediately preceding the date on which the Company provides notice of redemption at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption
date.

Net proceeds received from the Offering were approximately $222.3 million after deducting discounts, commissions and
expenses. We used $160.0 million of the net proceeds to repay all outstanding borrowings under the term-loan portion of our
Credit Facility and $62.3 million of the net proceeds to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the revolving portion
of our Credit Facility, which may be subsequently reborrowed for general corporate purposes.
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Accounting Treatment of the Notes

As of December 31, 2017, the Notes were recorded in our consolidated balance sheet as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2017

Liability component:

PLINCIPAL....eetiieieeietet ettt ettt ettt ettt e et s e et e beeb e b e b et e st esbenb e st est et e eseese et eeneeneesensenne $ 230,000
UNamOTtiZE€d ISSUANCE COSES ....euviririrririerrierietietieteeseeseesseestesseessesseessesseessasssessesssessesssesseessesseessesseessessees (6,820)
UNamoOrtiZE€d AISCOUNT........eeuiiiiiieiieiie et eete ettt e et et e et e ertee s veeseeeeebeessseesseessseesseesseessseessesssseenseessseenes (33,882)
Net carrying amount of the liability COMPONENL.......c.cccuririririiririririereree ettt 189,298
Embedded derivative lHADIIILY . ........ccoeieviiiieiiiieie ettt ettt sreesbesae e bessa e seessebeessenseens 20,594
TOTRAL oottt $ 209,892

Equity component:
Carrying amount of the equity component, net of iSSUANCE COSES” ............ovvrvrrverreerrreesreseesesreesesnnen $ 13,912

1 Included in the Long-term debt line of the consolidated balance sheet.
2 Included in the Additional paid-in capital line of the consolidated balance sheet.

Under ASC 470-20, Debt with Conversion and Other Options, (“ASC 470-20”), an entity must separately account for the
liability and equity components of convertible debt instruments that may be settled entirely or partially in cash upon conversion
(such as the Notes) in a manner that reflects the issuer’s economic interest cost. However, entities must first consider the guidance
in ASC 815-15, Embedded Derivatives (“ASC 815-15”), to determine if an instrument contains an embedded feature that should
be separately accounted for as a derivative. Unless an exception under ASC 815-15 applies, such accounting requires that an
embedded feature that is not “clearly and closely related” to the host contract be accounted for separately as a derivative and
marked to fair value in the statement of operations each period. The Company concluded that the conversion feature is not “clearly
and closely related” to the debt host contract. However, ASC 815-15 provides an exception for embedded features that are considered
both indexed to our common stock and classified in stockholders’ equity. Because the Notes permit the Company to settle the
conversion feature in cash, stock or any combination thereof at its election, ordinarily the conversion feature would be considered
both indexed to our common stock and classified in stockholders’ equity and therefore exempt from the requirements of ASC
815-15. However, because the Notes could be convertible into more than 19.99 percent of our outstanding common stock and
shareholder approval in accordance with the NYSE rules (as described above) to issue more than 19.99 percent of our outstanding
common stock has not yet been obtained, the Company could be required to settle the conversion feature for a portion of the Notes
in cash instead of shares. Therefore, the conversion feature for a portion of the Notes cannot be classified in stockholders’ equity
and therefore the exception under ASC 815-15 does not apply. As such, the Company concluded that for a portion of the Notes,
it must recognize as an embedded derivative under ASC 815-15 while the remainder of the Notes are subject to ASC 470-20.

The Company determined the portions of the Notes subject to ASC 815-15 and ASC 470-20 as follows. First, while the
Notes are initially convertible into 10,599,067 shares of common stock, the occurrence of certain corporate events could increase
the conversion rate, which could result in the Notes becoming convertible into a maximum of 14,838,703 shares. As noted above,
we must obtain stockholder approval to issue more than 5,964,858 shares of stock to settle the Notes upon conversion. Therefore,
approximately 40% of the maximum number of shares is authorized for issuance without shareholder approval, while 8,873,845
shares, or approximately 60% would be required to be settled in cash. The Company thus concluded that embedded derivative
accounting under ASC 815-15 is applicable to approximately 60% of the Notes, while the remaining 40% of the Notes are subject
to ASC 470-20. The Company will reassess the classification of the Notes each reporting period considering changes in facts and
circumstances, if any. Once (and if) we receive stockholder approval to issue more than 19.99 percent of our outstanding common
stock upon conversion of the Notes, we will reclassify the embedded derivative, at its then-current fair value, to stockholders’
equity, and it will no longer be marked to fair value each period.

We estimated the fair value of similar notes without the conversion feature to be $194.2 million, with the resulting conversion
feature having an estimated fair value of $35.8 million at the issuance date. For the portion of the Notes subject to ASC 815-15,
we recorded an embedded derivative liability at fair value of $21.4 million and for the portion of the Notes subject to ASC 470-20,
we recorded $14.4 million as additional paid-in capital in stockholders’ equity. The fair values recorded are “Level 2” measurements
as defined in Note 10. The difference between the principal amount of the Notes and the amounts allocated to the embedded
derivative liability and additional paid-in capital resulted in a debt discount of $35.8 million that is amortized as interest expense
over 72 months (the six-year period from issuance to maturity of the Notes).
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The Company incurred approximately $7.7 million in issuance costs associated with the Notes. Issuance costs of $7.2 million
were allocated as a reduction of the carrying amount of the debt while the remaining $0.5 million were allocated as a reduction
to additional paid-in capital in stockholders’ equity. The portion allocated to the debt component is being amortized over the life
of the debt. As of December 31, 2017, the remaining amortization period is 67 months.

The following table sets forth interest expense information related to the Notes (in thousands, except percentage):

Twelve Months
Ended
December 31,
2017

COUPOM TNEETESE . ....veuteventeetesiestesteeeettestetteeeeteeteesessessessessassessessensaseasseseaseaseeseeseesesesessansansensansansessanseseeseeneeseesessessens $ 4,823

Amortization of debt diScoOUnt and ISSUANCE COSES.......cviiiirriiiiieieieiieeeteeeeeeeeeeeee e et e e eeteeseeaeeeeseeeeaeeeensreeeenreeeas 2,310

Total interest expense 0N CONVEItibIE SENIOT NOTES .......cveivieiiiiieiieiierietiete et este et esteeeesteeraesreesesteessesreessesseens $ 7,133
EffECHIVE INEEIESE TALE ... .ecviiiiieetieetie ettt ettt et ete e et e e bt e eteeeteeebeeeteeeabeeeseeeaseetseeaseensessabeenseesaseesaessseesaenaseenses 9.12%

Derivatives and Hedging

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”), requires that derivative instruments be recorded at fair value and included
in the balance sheet as assets or liabilities. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends on the
intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation, which is established at the inception date of a derivative. Special
accounting for derivatives qualifying as fair value hedges allows derivatives’ gains and losses to offset related results on the hedged
item in the statement of operations. For derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges, changes in fair value, to the extent
the hedge is effective, are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. Hedge
effectiveness is measured at least quarterly based on the relative cumulative changes in fair value between the derivative contract
and the hedged item over time. Credit risks related to derivatives include the possibility that the counter-party will not fulfill the
terms of the contract. We consider counterparty credit risk to our derivative contracts when valuing our derivative instruments.

Our borrowing of €12.3 million under the Credit Facility serves as an economic hedge of our net investment in our European
operations as fluctuations in the fair value of the borrowing attributable to the U.S. Dollar/Euro spot rate will offset translation
gains or losses attributable to our investment in our European operations. At December 31, 2017 the €12.3 million borrowing had
a U.S. Dollar value of $14.8 million.

As discussed above, we have recorded an embedded derivative for a portion of the Notes. The embedded derivative represents
conversion features to the purchasers of the Notes that provide an opportunity to profit if the value of the shares that may be
attained from the conversion of the Notes is higher than the redemption amount of the Notes. In accordance with ASC 815-15,
the embedded derivative instrument is recorded at fair value each period with changes in fair value reflected in our results of
operations. No hedge accounting is applied.
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The amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), reclassified into income (loss) and the amounts recognized
in income (loss) for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended

May 31, 2015 are as follows (in thousands):

Gain (Loss) Recognized in Other Comprehensive

Gain (Loss) Reclassified from Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) to Earnings

Income (Loss)
Seven Seven
Months Twelve Months Twelve
Ended Months Ended Months
Twelve Months Ended December Ended Twelve Months Ended December Ended
December 31, 31, May 31, December 31, 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015 2017 2016 2015 2015
Derivatives Classified as Hedging
Instruments
............................. $  (1,802) $ 481 101 $ 3,237 $ — 8 — 8 — 3 —

Net investment hedge

Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income (Loss)"

Seven
Months Twelve
Ended Months
Twelve Months Ended December Ended
December 31, 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
Derivatives Not Classified as Hedging
Instruments
Embedded derivative in convertible
818 § — — S —

1

derivatives not designated as hedges under ASC 815 (in thousands):

Reflected as “Gain on convertible debt embedded derivative” in the consolidated statements of operations.

December 31, 2016

The following table presents the fair value totals and balance sheet classification for derivatives designated as hedges and

December 31, 2017
Balance . Balance .
. X Sheet Fair . . Sheet Fair
Classification Location Value Classification Location Value
Derivatives Classified as Hedging Instruments
Long- Long-
Net investment hedge..............ccceveeivveviceeeerenenne. Liability term debt $ (3,246) Liability term debt $ (5,048)
Derivatives Not Classified as Hedging Instruments
Long-
Liability term debt $ 20,594

Embedded derivative in convertible debt
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Lease Obligations

We enter into operating leases to rent facilities and obtain vehicles and equipment for our field operations. Our obligations
under non-cancellable operating leases, primarily consisting of facility and auto leases, were approximately $119.2 million at
December 31, 2017 and are as follows (in thousands):

Operating

Twelve Months Ended December 31, Leases
2018 oo eeee e e s e et s e ee e eeee e e e e s e e e et s e s e et e et e e eee e s e s e e e e e s er et reeeee s $ 33,141
2019 ettt ettt et e et e et 24,438
2020 111 e et e e s e e e e st e ee e e e e e e e e oo s ee e e ee s e e s e e e e e et es e ee s es et e e e st er e ee e e e 17,755
D021 oo e e e s e s et e et es s s e e e et et ees e e s ee s eeeeens 13,509
2022 oo 9,193
TREICATTET ....eivviieetecit ettt ettt et ettt e b e e te e s b e e teesbeeseesbeese e seesaesaeessesaeessesseesbeessenbeessenbeeseenseenneeaeeneas 21,129

TTOTAL -ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e ———————————eteteeeeeeaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa——————————oetoeeeees $ 119,165

Total rent expense resulting from operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended
December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015 was $47.7 million, $40.0 million, $18.8 million, and $29.5 million
respectively.

10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

We apply the provisions of ASC 820, which among other things, requires enhanced disclosures about assets and liabilities
carried at fair value.

As defined in ASC 820, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. We utilize market data or assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the
valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. We primarily apply
the market approach for recurring fair value measurements and endeavor to utilize the best information available. Accordingly,
we utilize valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The use
of unobservable inputs is intended to allow for fair value determinations in situations in which there is little, if any, market activity
for the asset or liability at the measurement date. We are able to classify fair value balances based on the observability of those
inputs. ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy such that “Level 1”” measurements include unadjusted quoted market prices for
identical assets or liabilities in an active market, “Level 2” measurements include quoted market prices for identical assets or
liabilities in an active market which have been adjusted for items such as effects of restrictions for transferability and those that
are not quoted but are observable through corroboration with observable market data, including quoted market prices for similar
assets, and “Level 3” measurements include those that are unobservable and of a highly subjective measure.

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, our financial assets and liabilities that are accounted
for at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. As required by ASC 820, financial assets and liabilities
are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement (in thousands):

December 31, 2017
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Items Observable Unobservable
(Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) Total
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration'................ccoocoovervrerieerrrennnn. $ — 3 — 3 1,712 § 1,712
Net investment hedge .........coooevieiiiiiiiiieeeee $ — $ (3,246) $ $ (3,246)
Embedded derivative in convertible debt....................... $ — 5 20,594 $ — 3 20,594
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December 31, 2016
Quoted Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Items Observable Unobservable
(Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) Total
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration’ $ — 3 — 3 3,739 §$ 3,739
Net investment hedge ........ccceevvveerriecinieieeieeieeeeenene $ — $ (5,048) $ — 3 (5,048)

1 Inclusive of both current and noncurrent portions.

There were no transfers in and out of Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The fair value of the convertible debt embedded derivative liability is estimated using a lattice model with inputs including
our stock price, our stock price volatility and interest rates. As the assumptions used in the valuation are primarily derived from
observable market data, the fair value measurement is classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of contingent consideration liabilities classified in the table above were estimated using a discounted cash
flow technique with significant inputs that are not observable in the market and thus represents a Level 3 fair value measurement
as defined in ASC 820. The significant inputs in the Level 3 measurement not supported by market activity include a combination
of actual cash flows and probability-weighted assessments of expected future cash flows related to the acquired businesses,
appropriately discounted considering the uncertainties associated with the obligation, and as calculated in accordance with the
terms of the acquisition agreements.

The following table represents the changes in the fair value of Level 3 contingent consideration (in thousands):

Twelve Months Ended December 31,

2017 2016
Beginning balance $ 3,739 $ 3,638
AcCTetion Of THADIIIEY .....cuviuieiiiiiiiieicitie ettt 222 366
Foreign CurrenCy €ffECtS ......oouiiiiiiiiiiiee e 203 80
PaYmMENt ..ottt st (1,278) (4,000)
ReVAUALION ..ot (1,174) 2,184
ACQUISTEIONS ...ttt ettt sttt et ettt et eb e eb e e bt ebe et e e bt saeeb e b e sbe st et e aeneennen — 1,471
ENding BalancCe .......c..ooouiiiiiiiiieie et ettt ae s $ 1,712 $ 3,739

11. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

We have adopted stock incentive plans and other arrangements pursuant to which our Board of Directors (the “Board”’) may
grant stock options, restricted stock, stock units, stock appreciation rights, common stock or performance awards to officers,
directors and key employees. At December 31, 2017, there were approximately 1.1 million stock options, restricted stock units
and performance awards outstanding to officers, directors and key employees. The exercise price, terms and other conditions
applicable to each form of share-based compensation under our plans are generally determined by the Compensation Committee
of our Board at the time of grant and may vary.

Our share-based payments consist primarily of stock units, performance awards, common stock and stock options. In May
2016, our shareholders approved the 2016 Team, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), which replaced all of our previous equity
compensation plans. The Plan authorizes the issuance of share-based awards representing up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock.
Shares issued in connection with our share-based compensation are issued out of authorized but unissued common stock.

In connection with the acquisition of Furmanite in February 2016, we assumed the share plan related to Furmanite employee
grants. As provided for in the Merger Agreement, each option to purchase Furmanite common stock outstanding immediately prior
to the closing of the acquisition was converted into an option to purchase Team common stock, adjusted by the 0.215 exchange
ratio. Similarly, each previously existing Furmanite restricted share, restricted stock unit or performance stock unit outstanding
immediately prior to the acquisition were converted into Team restricted stock units, also at the 0.215 exchange ratio. The converted
awards generally have the same terms and conditions as the replaced awards, except the vesting of certain awards was accelerated
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to the acquisition date and any performance conditions associated with the Furmanite awards no longer apply. The fair value of
the options was determined using a Black-Scholes model, while the fair value of the restricted stock units was determined based
on the market price on the acquisition date. The fair value of the converted Furmanite awards was allocated between consideration
transferred in the acquisition and future share-based compensation expense, based on past service completed and future service
required. The converted Furmanite awards have been identified, as applicable, in the tables that follow.

Compensation expense related to share-based compensation totaled $7.9 million, $7.3 million, $3.5 million and $4.8 million
for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015,
respectively. Share-based compensation expense reflects an estimate of expected forfeitures. At December 31,2017, $16.9 million
of unrecognized compensation expense related to share-based compensation is expected to be recognized over a remaining
weighted-average period of 2.7 years. The excess tax benefit (deficiency) derived when share-based awards result in a tax deduction
for the company was $(1.8) million, $(0.5) million, $0.4 million, and $3.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015, respectively.

Stock units are settled with common stock upon vesting unless it is not legally feasible to issue shares, in which case the
value of the award is settled in cash. We determine the fair value of each stock unit based on the market price on the date of grant.
Stock units generally vest in annual installments over four years and the expense associated with the units is recognized over the
same vesting period. We also grant common stock to our directors which typically vests immediately. Compensation expense
related to stock units and director stock grants totaled $7.1 million, $7.2 million, $3.0 million and $4.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015, respectively.

Transactions involving our stock units and director stock grants are summarized below:

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Weighted Weighted
No. of Stock Average No. of Stock Average
Units Fair Value Units Fair Value
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Stock and stock units, beginning of year.............cccccveevennens 535§ 35.11 371§ 36.26
Changes during the year:
GIanted .....co.evvereerieieieeetetee e 563 $ 13.64 322§ 34.23
Assumed - Furmanite Acquisition ...........cccceeeeveecenenne. — 3 — 40 $ 25.63
Vested and settled .........ocoovveineincinccnccinceceene 211) $ 34.10 (180) $ 34.19
Cancelled ......c.coeeueeieeieeeeeeeeeeeee e (33) $ 30.12 (18) $ 30.75
Stock and stock units, end of year.........cccoceeeveriecienieiennnnns 854 § 21.42 535§ 35.11
Seven Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2015 May 31, 2015
Weighted Weighted
No. of Stock Average No. of Stock Average
Units Fair Value Units Fair Value
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Stock and stock units, beginning of year.............c.cccceeuenee. 304 $ 36.23 310 $ 31.42
Changes during the year:

Granted .......c.eueueueueueeeieieieieieie ettt 197 § 35.14 156 $ 39.51
Vested and settled ..........ccoeoviiniininiiccceeen (126) $ 34.43 (133) $ 29.23
Cancelled .......ccooveireiriinieiceeee s 4 s 39.27 29 $ 34.12
Stock and stock units, end of year.........ccoceeeveriecienieinnns 371 $ 36.26 304§ 36.23

We have a performance stock unit award program whereby we grant Long-Term Performance Stock Unit (“LTPSU”’) awards
to our executive officers. Under this program, the Company communicates “target awards” to the executive officers at the beginning
of a performance period. LTPSU awards cliff vest with the achievement of the performance goals and completion of the required
service period. Settlement occurs with common stock as soon as practicable following the vesting date. LTPSU awards granted
on November 4, 2014 and October 15, 2015 are subject to a three-year performance period and a concurrent three-year service
period. The performance target is based on results of operations over the three-year performance period with possible payouts

78



Table of Contents

ranging from 0% to 300% of the “target awards.” LTPSU awards granted on March 15, 2017 are subject to a two-year performance
period and a concurrent two-year service period. For these awards, the performance goal is separated into three independent
performance factors based on (i) relative shareholder total return (“RTSR”) as measured against a designated peer group, (ii) RTSR
as measured against a designated index and (iii) results of operations over the two-year performance period, with possible payouts
ranging from 0% to 200% of the “target awards” for the first two performance factors and ranging from 0% to 300% of the “target
awards” for the third performance factor.

We determine the fair value of each LTPSU award based on the market price on the date of grant. However, for the portion
of the LTPSU awards that are subject to the RTSR performance factors, we determine the fair value of that portion of the award
based on the results of a Monte Carlo simulation, which uses market-based inputs as of the date of grant to simulate future stock
returns. Compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting term. For LTPSU awards (or portions thereof)
subject to a results of operations performance goal, compensation expense is recognized based upon the performance target that
is probable of being met. For the portion of LTPSU awards subject to the RTSR performance factors, because the expected outcome
is incorporated into the grant date fair value, compensation expense is not subsequently adjusted for changes in the expected or
actual performance outcome. Compensation expense (credit) related to performance awards totaled $0.8 million, $(0.4) million,
$0.3 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31, 2015 and
the year ended May 31, 2015, respectively. Transactions involving our performance awards are summarized below:

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
No. of Long- No. of Long-
Term Weighted Term Weighted
Performance Average Performance Average
Stock Units Fair Value Stock Units Fair Value
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Long-term performance stock units, beginning of year ...... 59 % 37.16 59 § 37.16
Changes during the year:
GIanted ........oooovveieeiiieeee e 182 $ 19.68 — 3 —
Vested and settled .........cccooooviiiiiiiiei e — 3 — — 3 —
Cancelled .......ooveveeviiieeieeeeeeeeeee e ©67) $ 30.11 — 3 —
Long-term performance stock units, end of year................. 174  $ 21.58 59 § 37.16
Seven Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2015 May 31, 2015
No. of Long- No. of Long-
Term Weighted Term Weighted
Performance Average Performance Average
Stock Units Fair Value Stock Units Fair Value
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Long-term performance stock units, beginning of year ...... 23 $ 42.25 — 3 —
Changes during the year:
Granted .....c.oeeveeeeeeiieeeieeecse et 36 $ 33.91 23§ 42.25
Vested and settled ........occoeevevieiiiiiiciieceec e, — 3 — — 3 —
Cancelled .......oc.oeeeevveieeeeeceeeeeeeee e — — — —
Long-term performance stock units, end of year................. 59 § 37.16 23 $ 42.25

Performance awards are settled with common stock upon vesting unless it is not legally feasible to issue shares, in which
case the value of the award is settled in cash. We determine the fair value of each performance award based on the market price
on the date of grant. Performance awards were previously granted to our Chairman of our Board and were to vest over the longer
of four years or the achievement of performance goals based upon our future results of operations. Compensation expense related
to performance awards was $0.3 million for the year ended December 31,2016, $0.5 million for seven months ended December 31,

2015 and $0.6 million for the year ended May 31, 2015. Transactions involving our performance awards are summarized below:
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Performance awards, beginning of year ............cccceccvennenen.

Changes during the year:

Granted .........cooovveeenneenne.
Vested and settled ............
Cancelled .......ccoooennene...

Performance awards, end of year

Performance awards, beginning of year ............cccccccvennennen.

Changes during the year:

Twelve Months Ended

Seven Months Ended

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
No. of Weighted No. of Weighted
Performance Average Performance Average
Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value

(in thousands)

13 $ 35.15
— 3 —
(13) $ 35.15
— 3 —
— 3 35.15

Twelve Months Ended

May 31, 2015
No. of Weighted
Performance Average
Awards Fair Value

(in thousands)

50 $ 30.63
— 3 —
(22) $ 27.66
— 3 —
28 $ 32.86

80

(in thousands)

28§
— §
(15) $
— §
13§

32.86

30.82

35.15



Table of Contents

We determine the fair value of each stock option at the grant date using a Black-Scholes model and recognize the resulting
expense of our stock option awards over the period during which an employee is required to provide services in exchange for the
awards, usually the vesting period. There was less than $0.1 million in compensation expense related to stock options for the year
ended December 31, 2017 and $0.2 million of expense for the year ended December 31, 2016, but none for the seven months
ended December 31, 2015 or the year ended May 31, 2015, as all stock option awards were fully vested. Our options typically
vest in equal annual installments over a four-year service period. Expense related to an option grant is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the specified vesting period for those options. Stock options generally have a ten-year term. Transactions involving

our stock options are summarized below:

Shares under option, beginning of year...........cceceeevvererenee.

Changes during the year:
Granted

Assumed - Furmanite AcquiSition ...........cccceevevveevennnnne.

Exercised........ccouue.......
Cancelled ....................
Expired......cccccvveeuvennnnn.

Shares under option, end of year.........ccccecevvererenencnennenn

Exercisable at end of year

Shares under option, beginning of year..........ccceceeevverurenee.

Changes during the year:
Granted
Exercised........ccceeuee.
Cancelled ...................
Expired......ccccceeerenncnn

Shares under option, end of year...........cccoceeeveveeienreenennnns

Exercisable at end of year

Twelve Months Ended

Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Weighted Weighted
No. of Average No. of Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
(in thousands) (in thousands)
203§ 30.63 376 $ 25.71
— § — 132§ 33.20
(16) $ 27.91 (251) $ 23.50
— S — (50) $ 35.00
(108) $ 30.08 4 $ 44.62
79 $ 31.94 203§ 30.63
79 $ 31.94 203§ 30.63
Seven Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2015 May 31, 2015
Weighted Weighted
No. of Average No. of Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
(in thousands) (in thousands)
490 § 24.80 816 $ 19.61
(109) $ 21.41 (326) $ 11.79
(5) $ 30.33 — -
376 $ 25.71 490 § 24.80
376 $ 25.71 490 $ 24.80

Options exercisable at December 31, 2017 had a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 3.8 years. For total options
outstanding at December 31, 2017, the range of exercise prices and remaining contractual lives are as follows:

‘Weighted Weighted
Average Average
No. of Exercise Remaining
Range of Prices Options Price Life
(in thousands) (in years)
$20.19 10 $30.28..ciice e 14 8 21.68 33
$30.29 10 $40.38..eee s 58 § 32.07 3.6
$40.39 10 850,47 e 7 8 50.47 6.4
79 $ 31.94 3.8
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12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined contribution plan. Under the Team, Inc. Salary Deferral Plan (the “Plan”), contributions are made to the Plan by
qualified employees at their election and our matching contributions to the Plan are made at specified rates. Our contributions to
the Plan in the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December 31,2015 and the year ended May 31,
2015, were approximately $10.4 million, $7.1 million, $3.0 million and $4.8 million, respectively.

Defined benefit plans. In connection with our acquisition of Furmanite, we assumed liabilities associated with the defined
benefit pension plans of two foreign subsidiaries, one plan covering certain United Kingdom employees (the “U.K. Plan”) and
the other covering certain of its Norwegian employees (the “Norwegian Plan”). As the Norwegian Plan represents
approximately one percent of both the Company’s total pension plan liabilities and total pension plan assets, only the schedules
of net periodic pension cost (credit) and changes in benefit obligation and plan assets include combined amounts from the two
plans, while assumption and narrative information relates solely to the U.K. Plan.

Benefits for the U.K. Plan are based on the average of the employee’s salary for the last three years of employment. The
U.K. Plan has had no new participants added since the plan was frozen in 1994 and accruals for future benefits ceased in connection
with a plan curtailment in 2013. Plan assets are primarily invested in unitized pension funds managed by U.K. registered fund
managers. The most recent valuation of the U.K. Plan was performed as of December 31, 2017. Estimated defined benefit pension
plan contributions for 2018 are expected to be approximately $2.4 million. We expect a similar level of annual contributions
through 2032 as a result of certain funding commitments.

Pension benefit costs and liabilities are dependent on assumptions used in calculating such amounts. The primary assumptions
include factors such as discount rates, expected investment return on plan assets, mortality rates and retirement rates. The discount
rate assumption used to determine end of year benefit obligations was 2.5% as of December 31, 2017. These rates are reviewed
annually and adjusted to reflect current conditions. These rates are determined appropriate based on reference to yields. The
expected return on plan assets of 4.7% for 2018 is derived from detailed periodic studies, which include a review of asset allocation
strategies, anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset classes, risks (standard deviations) and correlations of
returns among the asset classes that comprise the plans’ asset mix. While the studies give appropriate consideration to recent plan
performance and historical returns, the assumptions are primarily long-term, prospective rates of return. Mortality and retirement
rates are based on actual and anticipated plan experience. In accordance with GAAP, actual results that differ from the assumptions
are accumulated and are subject to amortization over future periods and, therefore, generally affect recognized expense in future
periods. While management believes that the assumptions used are appropriate, differences in actual experience or changes in
assumptions may affect the pension obligation and future expense.

Net pension cost (credit) included the following components (in thousands):

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,
2017 2016

Service cost $ 90 $ 79
Interest cost 2,438 2,504
Expected return on Plan @SSELS ..........c.ccvivieriiiieriiiierieetesie et ste et ereere e e ae e esre e e saeeraesaeesnens (3,110) 2,577)
Amortization of Net aCtUATIAL LOSS .......eecvivuieiiieieii ettt 71 —

Net periodic pension COSt (CTEAIL).......ccuiruiiierrieieirieiecte ettt ete ettt e e et e e aesreesnesreennas $ (511) $ 6

1 Reflects net pension cost from the date of the Furmanite acquisition.
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The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

December 31,
2017 2016

Discount rate ..........cceeeeeeercrennenne. 2.5% 2.7%
Rate of compensation increase’ Not applicable Not applicable
INTTATION ¢ttt sttt sttt 3.1% 3.3%

1 Not applicable due to plan curtailment.

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost (credit) for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,
2017 2016
DISCOUNE TALE ....eveeeeeeieiieeieiieieeteeteeteetesteteste st estess et eseesteseeseeseeseese et eeseesessessensassassensensensensenseneanensensas 2.7% 4.0%
Expected long-term return on plan aSSELS ........c..coeeieieirieireninieeierie e 4.5% 4.9%
Rate 0f COMPENSAtION INCTEASE  ...........veeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e eeee e e e e ee e s s Not applicable Not applicable
INFTAION 1.ttt b bbbt bbbttt ettt ettt ne b enes 3.3% 2.8%

1 Not applicable due to plan curtailment.

The plan actuary determines the expected return on plan assets based on a combination of expected yields on equity securities
and corporate bonds and considering historical returns.

The expected long-term rate of return on invested assets for 2018 is determined based on the weighted average of expected
returns on asset investment categories as follows: 4.7% overall, 5.8% for equities and 1.8% for debt securities.
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The following table sets forth the changes in the benefit obligation and plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 (in thousands):

Twelve Months Ended December 31,

2017 2016
Projected benefit obligation:
BEGINNING OF YEAT .......voviiiiievceceeeeteeeeee ettt ettt aeaeas $ 89,206 $ —
Acquisition Of FUIMMANILE. ..........c.couiiiiiiieieiiieiceeee ettt et esesae e sre e — 80,410
SEIVICE COST..c.veuiuirtintintertintetert ettt ettt ettt b b bt sttt ettt et et et e st eae e bt ebeebesbesbeebesbeneennen 90 79
J e Ty A oo 1] ST 2,438 2,504
ACTUATIAL JOSS ..ttt e et e e e e st e e e e s e aa st e e e seenaateee s e s aaeeeesenanaaeeas 890 18,233
Benefits PAIA......ccueiiiiiieiiciieeeeee ettt b et b e e reeaeees (4,187) (2,804)
Foreign currency translation adjustment and other .............ccceoeviiiiiininininnncccen 8,438 (9,216)
ENA Of VAT ...ttt b et ae et eaaas 96,875 89,206
Fair value of plan assets:
Beginning Of YEAT ......c.ccoviiiiiiieiciieeteeeee ettt sttt et b et aeereene e 67,967 —
Acquisition Of FUIMANIte..........ccecuirieriieieieese ettt — 66,901
Actual gain ON PlAN @SSELS .....c.cceeriiiieiieieiieeteeieet ettt ettt et ae et be e e sbe e e be s e sreessenreens 7,383 10,222
EMPloyer CONITDULIONS .......ccuivieiieeieiieieic ettt ene e e e ees 4,350 1,182
Benefits PAIA......cceiiiiiiiiiciicieeeeeee ettt b e te e ereeneens (4,187) (2,804)
Foreign currency translation adjustment and other .............cccooeveiiiiininininninnccen 6,386 (7,534)
ENA Of YEAT ..oouiiiieiieeeteeeee ettt r e e ra e ae e saeas 81,899 67,967
Excess projected obligation under (over) fair value of plan assets at end of year...................... $ (14,976) $ (21,239)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
INEt ACTUATIAL LOSS ...veivviviiiiecte ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt e ete et e ereeaseereeteereeseeanan $ (7,221) $ (10,518)

No material amounts of accumulated other comprehensive loss are expected to be amortized as a component of net periodic
benefit cost during 2018.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the U.K. Plan was $95.6 million and $88.1 million at December 31,2017 and 2016,
respectively.

At December 31, 2017, expected future benefit payments are as follows for the years ended December 31, (in thousands):

2018 ettt t ettt et et b et b et et e et b e et et at et ea b ete s te b ete s ete et eae b e et s e et et easeseabese et ete b ese s eas et essasenes $ 3,157
2019 ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ea e et e et et eat et eas et et et et et et ete et ere et ere et easeteasetenserenes 3,608
2020 .1ttt ettt ettt ettt et et e b te et et s et eas b e et et e et et e e b ete s ete b ete et ete s eae s easeb e et et eas et eabese s ete b ete s ets et essaseaes 3,750
2021 ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et et et ae ettt et eat et ett et eas et et et et et et ettt ere et ere et eaeeteasetenserens 3,978
2022 ettt ettt ettt ettt h ettt et e e s ea s b e et et eat et ea s et e st e b eae et et et eae s e et s e et et eas et eabete b ete b ete et eas et essesenes 4,163
202372027 ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et ettt et ettt et e et et e at et eas et et et et et et et et ere et eas et enseteasetennetens 22,801

TOUAL ..ottt e e et e e et e e et e et e e et e e e atesaa e e e et e e e e tteaa—ae e et e eaa—tesaateearteeaaraeenannes $ 41,457
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The following tables summarize the plan assets of the U.K. Plan measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually)
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

December 31, 2017

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Significant
for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Asset Category Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (a) (Level 3) (a)
a8 e $ 651 $ 651 $ — 3 —
Equity securities:
UK. equity (D) .eeeeeeeeeieee et 17,809 — 17,809 —
U.S. equity indeX (C)...coerverrerienieieieieeeienenieneseniee 4,370 — 4,370 —
European equity index (d) .....ccccoevvevvevienvninicncnenne. 4,378 — 4,378 —
Pacific rim equity index (€) ......cccevverveveeeenencneniennen 3,506 — 3,506 —
Japanese equity index (f) .....cceoeveeninenineneeceeee, 2,733 — 2,733 —
Emerging markets equity index (g) ......c.cooeeverereruenne. 2,785 — 2,785 —
Diversified growth fund (h) ..o 17,296 — 17,296 —
Global absolute return fund (1) .....ccceeevevveeceererceenienen. 6,534 — 6,534 —
Fixed income securities:
Cash fund (J) «eeoeeveeerereneneneeeee e 5,315 — 5,315 —
U.K. government fixed income securities (k)............. 6,494 — 6,494 —
U.K. government index-linked securities (1) .............. 8,934 — 8,934 —
TOLAL .. $ 80,805 $ 651 $ 80,154 $ _
December 31, 2016
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant Significant
for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Asset Category Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (a) (Level 3) (a)
CASN. e $ 744 $ 744 $ — 3 —
Equity securities:
UK. €qUIty (D) ceveeveeeeeiieiesienieieeee e 13,927 — 13,927 —
U.S. equity indeX (C)..ververrereererieieneieireeeeeeeeneeenns 3,453 — 3,453 —
European equity index (d) .....cccooeveneieiniiinciceee, 3,421 — 3,421 —
Pacific rim equity indeX (€) ....ccccovevveveererenerenennenn 2,645 — 2,645 —
Japanese equity index (f) ......ccocerereneieinieeccee, 2,185 — 2,185 —
Emerging markets equity index (g) .....cccceoceverereruenne. 2,014 — 2,014 —
Diversified growth fund (h).......ccccooevveviiiiniiiinnen. 11,637 — 11,637 —
Global absolute return fund (1) ....ccceeeveveereeerereeninnen. 5,821 — 5,821 —
Fixed income securities:
Cash fund () ..oveeeverveeierieieeeeeeee e 7,921 — 7,921 —
U.K. government fixed income securities (k)............. 5,454 — 5,454 —
U.K. government index-linked securities (1) .............. 7,825 — 7,825 —
TOUAL ..o $ 67,047 $ 744§ 66,303 $ —
a) The net asset value of the commingled equity and fixed income funds are determined by prices of the underlying securities, less the

funds’ liabilities, and then divided by the number of shares outstanding. As the funds are not traded in active markets, the commingled
funds are classified as Level 2 or Level 3 assets. The net asset value is corroborated by observable market data (e.g., purchase or sale
activities) for Level 2 assets.

b) This category includes investments in U.K. companies and aims to achieve a return that is consistent with the return of the FTSE All-
Share Index.
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c) This category includes investments in a variety of large and small U.S. companies and aims to achieve a return that is consistent with
the return of the FTSE All-World USA Index.

d) This category includes investments in a variety of large and small European companies and aims to achieve a return that is consistent
with the return of the FTSE All-World Developed Europe ex-U.K. Index.

e) This category includes investments in a variety of large and small companies across the Australian, Hong Kong, New Zealand and

Singapore markets and aims to achieve a return that is consistent with the return of the FTSE-All-World Developed Asia Pacific ex-
Japan Index.

f) This category includes investments in a variety of large and small Japanese companies and aims to achieve a return that is consistent
with the return of the FTSE All-World Japan Index.

g) This category includes investments in companies in the Emerging Markets to achieve a return that is consistent with the return of the
IFC Investable Index ex-Malaysia.

h) This category includes investments in a diversified portfolio of equity, bonds, alternatives and cash markets and aims to achieve a
return that is consistent with the return of the Libor GBP 3 month +3% Index.

i) This category includes investments in a diversified portfolio of equity and bonds combined with investment strategies based on advanced
derivative techniques and aims to achieve a return over rolling three-year periods equivalent to cash plus 5% per year, gross of fees.

7 This category includes investments in British pound sterling-denominated money market instruments and fixed-income securities
issued by governments, corporations or other issuers which may be listed or traded on a recognized market.

k) This category includes investments in funds with the objective to provide a leveraged return to U.K. government fixed income securities
(gilts) that have maturity dates in 2040 and 2052.

1) This category includes investments in funds with the objective to provide a leveraged return to various U.K. government indexed-

linked securities (gilts), with maturity periods ranging from 2022 to 2062. The funds invest in U.K. government bonds and derivatives.

Investment objectives for the U.K. Plan, as of December 31, 2017, are to:

. optimize the long-term return on plan assets at an acceptable level of risk
. maintain a broad diversification across asset classes
. maintain careful control of the risk level within each asset class

The trustees of the U.K. Plan have established a long-term investment strategy comprising global investment weightings
targeted at 65% (range of 60% to 70%) for equity securities/diversified growth funds and 35% (range of 30% to 40%) for debt
securities. Diversified growth funds are actively managed absolute return funds that hold a combination of debt and equity securities.
Selection of the targeted asset allocation was based upon a review of the expected return and risk characteristics of each asset
class, as well as the correlation of returns among asset classes. Actual allocations to each asset class vary from target allocations
due to periodic investment strategy changes, market value fluctuations and the timing of benefit payments and contributions.

The following table sets forth the weighted-average asset allocation and target asset allocations as of December 31, 2017
and 2016 by asset category:

Asset Allocations Target Asset Allocations
2017 2016 2017 2016

Equity securities and diversified growth funds' . 73.5% 67.3% 65.0% 65.0%
DEbt SECUITIES” ......vvoveeceeceeeeee e 25.7% 31.6% 35.0% 35.0%
L 13T SRS 0.8% 1.1% —% —%

TOtAL ... e 100% 100% 100% 100%
1 Diversified growth funds refer to actively managed absolute return funds that hold a combination of equity and debt securities.
2 Includes investments in funds with the objective to provide leveraged returns to U.K. government fixed income securities and U.K. government indexed-linked securities.
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Con Ed Matter. We have, from time to time, provided temporary leak repair services to the steam system of Consolidated
Edison Company of New York (“Con Ed”) located in New York City. In July 2007, a Con Ed steam main located in midtown
Manhattan ruptured resulting in one death and other injuries and property damage. As of December 31, 2017, sixty-eight lawsuits
are currently pending against Con Ed, the City of New York and Team in the Supreme Court of New York, alleging that our
temporary leak repair services may have contributed to the cause of the rupture, allegations which we dispute. The lawsuits seek
generally unspecified compensatory damages for personal injury, property damage and business interruption. Additionally, Con
Ed is alleging that our contract with Con Ed requires us to fully indemnify and defend Con Ed for all claims asserted against Con
Ed including those amounts that Con Ed has paid to settle with certain plaintiffs for undisclosed sums as well as Con Ed’s own
alleged damages to its infrastructure. Con Ed filed an action to join Team and the City of New York as defendants in all lawsuits
filed against Con Ed that did not include Team and the City of New York as direct defendants. We are vigorously defending the
lawsuits and Con Ed’s claim for indemnification. We are unable to estimate the amount of liability to us, if any, associated with
these lawsuits and the claim for indemnification. We filed a motion to dismiss in April 2016. We maintain insurance coverage,
subject to a deductible limit of $250,000, which we believe should cover these claims. We have not accrued any liability in excess
of the deductible limit for the lawsuits. We do not believe the ultimate outcome of these matters will have a material adverse effect
on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Patent Infringement Matters. In December 2014, our subsidiary, Quest Integrity Group, LLC, filed three patent infringement
lawsuits against three different defendants, two in the U.S. District of Delaware (the “Delaware Cases”) and one in the U.S. District
of Western Washington (“Washington Case”). Quest Integrity alleges that the three defendants infringed Quest Integrity’s patent,
entitled “2D and 3D Display System and Method for Furnace Tube Inspection”. This Quest Integrity patent generally teaches a
system and method for displaying inspection data collected during the inspection of furnace tubes in petroleum and petro-chemical
refineries. The subject patent litigation is specific to the visual display of the collected data and does not relate to Quest Integrity’s
underlying advanced inspection technology. In these lawsuits Quest Integrity is seeking temporary and permanent injunctive relief,
as well as monetary damages. Defendants have denied they infringe any valid claim of Quest Integrity’s patent, and have asserted
declaratory judgment counterclaims that the patent at issue is invalid and/or unenforceable, and not infringed. In June 2015, the
U.S. District of Delaware denied our motions for preliminary injunctive relief in the Delaware Cases (that is, our request that the
defendants stop using our patented systems and methods during the pendency of the actions). In March 2017, the judge in the
Delaware Cases granted summary judgment against Quest Integrity, finding certain patent claims of the asserted patent invalid.
In August 2017, the judge in the Washington Case granted summary judgment against Quest Integrity based on the Delaware
Cases ruling. Quest Integrity is in the process of appealing both Delaware Cases and the Washington Case.

We are involved in various other lawsuits and are subject to various claims and proceedings encountered in the normal
conduct of business. In our opinion, any uninsured losses that might arise from these lawsuits and proceedings will not have a
materially adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements.

We establish a liability for loss contingencies, when information available to us indicates that it is probable that a liability
has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.
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14. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC DISCLOSURES

ASC 280, Segment Reporting, requires we disclose certain information about our operating segments where operating
segments are defined as “components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.” We conduct
operations in three segments: TeamQualspec Group, TeamFurmanite Group and Quest Integrity Group. All three operating segments
operate under a business segment manager who reports directly to Team’s Chief Executive Officer who operates as the chief
operating decision maker. Furmanite, which we acquired in the first quarter of 2016 (see Note 2), is included in the TeamFurmanite
segment, except that Furmanite’s corporate-related activities are included within corporate and shared support services in the tables
below. Discontinued operations are not allocated to the segments. Segment data for our three operating segments are as follows
(in thousands):

Seven Months Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
Revenues:
TeamQualspec.......ccccvevveeerveieniee e $ 588,441 $ 589,478 % 351,949 $ 467,099
TeamFurmanite ..........ccceeeveveeceeeeeneeseenenen, 529,973 539,627 178,238 300,456
Quest INteGrity ...oovvveeeieieieeeieeeeec e 81,797 67,591 41,531 74,492
Total...oeeeieiecieeeeeeeeeee e $ 1,200,211  $ 1,196,696 §$ 571,718  $ 842,047
Seven Months Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
Operating income (loss):
TeamQualspec' .........ooovvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen, $ 11,128 $ 43367 $ 31,175 $ 60,198
TeamFurmanite ............ccoo.coovveerveerrvoerrionns (33,993) 27,283 14,335 28,713
Quest INtegrity......cocvvvevierieiieieeeeeeeeee 12,337 4,780 5,491 13,196
Corporate and shared support services.......... (104,582) (78,548) (31,839) (33,642)
Total. .o $ (115,110) $ (3,118) $ 19,162 $ 68,465
1 Includes goodwill impairment loss of $21.1 million and $54.1 million for TeamQualspec and TeamFurmanite, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Seven Months Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
Capital expenditures:
TeamQUAlSPEC......c.ccvevveeeieieieeeeeeeeeeeee $ 10,505 $ 8,803 $ 6,557 $ 10,276
TeamFurmanite ..........c.cccceeeevveeieecieecieenenee, 17,791 15,077 5,656 4916
Quest Integrity.......cocevvevvevecieieiciiireceeee, 3,316 2,007 1,993 2,961
Corporate and shared support services.......... 5,186 19,956 11,596 10,616
Total..ccuvieiieeie e $ 36,798 $ 45,843 $ 25,802 $ 28,769
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Seven Months Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015
Depreciation and amortization:
TeamQUAISPEC.....c.evveveierieieieieeieereeeeer e $ 19,279 $ 19,853 $ 10,568 $ 8,413
TeamFurmanite ..........cceceveeveeneecenceneneenen, 23,412 21,387 4,779 7,583
Quest INteGrity.....cccvevveeeeiieieieieeeeee e 4,423 5,323 3,403 5,704
Corporate and shared support services.......... 5,029 2,110 676 1,087
Total ..o $ 52,143 § 48,673 $ 19,426 $ 22,787

Separate measures of Team’s assets by operating segment are not produced or utilized by management to evaluate segment
performance.

A geographic breakdown of our revenues for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016, the seven months ended December
31, 2015 and the year ended May 31, 2015 and our total assets as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and May 31, 2015 are
as follows (in thousands):

Total Total
Revenues' Assets
Twelve months ended December 31, 2017
UNIEEA STALES ....vveiviieerieetie ettt ettt et e e eve e te e ebeeetaeeabe e tseeaseeseeeabeessseesseessseeaseessseenseeseean $ 871,367 $ 613,897
L1 1 - T E- SRR SRPRRRPRRt 134,256 60,879
BUTODE ..ttt ettt ettt et b e st esae e sate et e sabeenee 119,603 325,182
Other fOTeIZN COUNTIIES ....eeuviruieiiriieiieiiee ettt sttt ettt ettt et st e st et e saeeneesbeenaeenean 74,985 55,877
TOAL ..ttt sttt ettt h bbbt be bbb e e s $ 1,200,211 $ 1,055,835
Twelve months ended December 31, 2016
LT LT N 2 £ PP $ 889,967 $ 788,780
CANAGA......cviiieciicieceet ettt ettt et et e e e e s te et e te e b e te e b e e tt et e e ta e beertesbeereeeaeentesreenseeneas 128,122 66,056
L) T OSSR 108,720 234,847
Other fOTEIZN COUNTIIES .....ovieuierietieiieeiesieete e ete st etesteebesteesbeeseessesseeseessesseessesseensesseessesseas 69,887 57,735
TORAL e $ 1,196,696 $ 1,147,418
Seven months ended December 31, 2015
UNIEEA STALES ..ovveeeiieeiieciieeieeete et stte e e eteesete e teeebeestaeesbeessseesseesseessseesseeasseesssassseessseesseeseens $ 448,508 $ 682,124
(O 1o - FO PR SURRTRP 71,325 59,626
BUFODE ..ttt sttt e be e et e b e st e be e st e st eae 27,718 33,271
Other fOTIZN COUNTIIES .....evieuieiieiietieierieeterteete st etesteesesteessessaesseessesseessesseeseesseensesseessesses 24,167 23,970
] O ERPURUUSRP $ 571,718  $ 798,991
Twelve months ended May 31, 2015
TUNIEEA STALES .ottt et et e e e e e e e e et e et eeeeeeeeeeeeesesaseeseaeese e neeaanneeeeees $ 625,044 $ 399,173
CANAAA. ... .ecviiieieeieect ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e e tb e eb e e e tbeebeeeabeebeeeteeebeestaeeabeesabeereenes 132,573 68,043
BUTOPE .o 47,524 34,612
Other fOrigN COUNLIIES ......eveiiieieieiieiieteiceteete ettt ettt ebt et et sb e sbesbesae st be e 36,906 22,005
L] | OSSR RRU PRI $ 842,047 $ 523,833
1 Revenues attributable to individual countries/geographic areas are based on the country of domicile of the legal entity that performs the work.
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As part of our acquisition of Furmanite, we acquired a pipeline inspection business that primarily performed process
management inspection services to contractors and operators participating primarily in the midstream oil and gas market in the
U.S. We previously concluded that this business was not a strategic fit for Team and we completed the sale of business in December
2016. Proceeds from the sale were $13.3 million cash (net of costs to sell) and a $1.5 million principal amount of a note from the
buyer that bears interest at a 5% stated rate per annum, payable quarterly in arrears, with the principal amount due in full at maturity
in January 2020.

We concluded that this business qualified as a discontinued operation upon its acquisition under GAAP. Therefore, we
classified the operating results as discontinued operations in our consolidated statements of operations. Discontinued operations
does not include any allocation of corporate overhead expense or interest expense. Due to the acquisition of this business and the
completion of its sale all within the twelve months ended December 31, 2016, there are no assets or liabilities of discontinued
operations reported as held for sale in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2017 or 2016. For information about the
assets and liabilities of discontinued operations acquired in the Furmanite acquisition, see Note 2.

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax, from the date of the Furmanite acquisition, consists of the following
(in thousands):

Twelve Months
Ended
December 31, 2016

REVEITUES. ...ttt ettt et e e et e et e eae e et e e eaeeeaseeeteeeaaeeeaesenseeesesenteeeaeeenseessseanseeesssenteeeneeenseeeneeenseens $ 46,771
OPCTALING CXPCIISES....c.vveureeerereesresteestesseessesseeseestesseessessesssesseassasseessessessesssessesseessesssessesssessesssessesssessesssensesssenn 43,081

GTOSS TNATGIN.......viviietietieteetteete et eete et e ete et e eteeteeteeteeteeeseessesseesseseesseeseenseeseesseessensesseeseesseseessenteas 3,690
Selling, general and adminiStrative EXPENSES........eceervierierieeeerreeeesreetesseeeesseesesseessesseessesseesseseessenns 1,939
GAIN ON AISPOSAL ...ovviviiiieiicieeee ettt ettt ettt ettt e e et e e ta et e et e te e s e ebeeateeaeeseereeseessenteensenreas 7
Income from discontinued operations, before income tax 1,758
Less: ProviSion fOI INCOIME TAXES.........eeiiueeieeieeeeeeeeeee e et e e e e et e e e et eeeeaeeseaeeeseaeeeseaeeseaeeessreeesaans 1,869
Loss from discontinued operations, net 0f INCOME tAX..........ccuerieriieieriieiertieeesteeeesreeee e esesreesesreesesseesenns $ (111

The provision for income taxes on discontinued operations includes the effect of a permanent difference associated with
non-deductible goodwill that was derecognized as part of the disposal transaction.

Cash flows attributable to our discontinued operations are included in our statements of consolidated cash flows. For the
year ended December 31, 2016, there were no material amounts of depreciation, amortization, capital expenditures or significant
operating non-cash items related to discontinued operations. The $1.5 million principal amount note receivable from the buyer,
which was part of the consideration received from the sale of discontinued operations, is a non-cash investing activity.
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16. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER RELATED CHARGES

Our restructuring and other related charges, net for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016 are summarized by segment
as follows (in thousands):

Twelve Months Ended December 31,

2017 2016
Furmanite Belgium and Netherlands Exit
Severance and related costs (credits)
TeamPUIMANILE .......oooiviviiiiiiiic e $ (173) $ 4,862
Disposal (gain)/impairment loss
TEAMPFUIMANILE ....c.uvieiiiiiieiecie ettt ettt et e s e et e e stbeesbeessaeesbeesaeenseenseennsas (1,056) 651
V1o (0] 721 F RSP (1,229) 5,513
2017 Cost Savings Initiative
Severance and related costs
TEAMQUALSPEC ...c.veeeveiieeieeiieiiettete ettt ettt ste et e e e eete e b e etae b e eseeseessesseessesseensesseensessean 966 —
TEAMEFUIMANITE ...ttt ettt ettt et sa e e enen 1,622 —
QUEST INEEEIIEY ..eeuvieiieiieeieeieeieeeet ettt ste et ste et e e e b e s te e b e eta e b e esaeseesseseessesseensesseensensean 428 —
Corporate and shared SUPPOIT SEIVICES.....ccueeueruirieriieientieieetiesteeiee e eeee st ee e eeeseeeeeseeas 864 —
V1o (0] 721 FE TR 3,880 —
GIANA TOTAL ..ceiiiiiiieeee ettt ettt et ettt et b e e $ 2,651 $ 5,513

Furmanite Belgium and Netherlands Exit. Due to continued economic softness and unfavorable costs structures, we
committed to a plan to exit the acquired Furmanite operations in Belgium and the Netherlands in the fourth quarter of 2016 and
communicated the plan to the affected employees. The closures are now essentially complete. During the year ended December
31,2017, we recorded a reduction to severance costs of $0.2 million and a disposal gain of $1.1 million. The disposal gain resulted
from an asset sale of the Furmanite operations in Belgium, which was completed during the first quarter of 2017, whereby we
conveyed the business operations, $0.3 million of cash and approximately $0.2 million of other assets to the purchaser in exchange
for the assumption by the purchaser of certain liabilities, primarily severance-related liabilities of $1.6 million associated with the
employees who transferred to the purchaser in connection with the transaction.

A rollforward of our accrued severance liability associated with the Belgium and Netherlands exit is presented below (in
thousands):

Twelve Months Ended December 31,

2017 2016
Balance, beginning of PEriod........cccouevieiriiirinininereteerteteteteree ettt $ 4,846 $ —
Charges (CTEAILS), MEL ...c.eviieieieiieteitet ettt ettt sbe bbbt st s b st aenaens (173) 4,846
PaYmMENES ... e (3,144) —
DIHSPOSAL ...ttt ettt eh e bbbt bbbt naen (1,601) —
Foreign currency adjuStmMents .........coouieuierieeienieieeie ettt 72 —
Balance, end of PEriod ........coiviriiriiiiieieieee e $ — 3 4,846

With respect to these exit activities, to date we have incurred cumulatively $4.7 million of severance-related costs and an
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of $0.7 million, partially offset by a disposal gain of $1.1 million.

2017 Cost Savings Initiative. On July 24, 2017, we announced our commitment to a cost savings initiative to take direct
actions to reduce our overall cost structure given the recent weak and uncertain macro environment in the industries in which we
operate. The resulting severance and related charges of this initiative amounted to $3.9 million during the year ended December
31,2017.
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A rollforward of our accrued severance liability associated with this initiative is presented below (in thousands):

Twelve Months

Ended
December 31, 2017
Balance, beginning Of PEriod.........occveiiiiiiieieiieie sttt ettt ae e et e teebesta e s e esaenseesneseenseseenes $ —
CRAIEZES ..ottt ettt ettt et a e bt e b e s h ke h e s a ettt ettt et eae et et ebeea e ae st be b e 3,880
PAYMENLS ..ot (3,292)
Balance, eNnd OF PETIOA ... .c..eouiiieeeeee ettt ettt et ettt et nae et bt et e abeenteeaean $ 588

With respect to this initiative, to date we have incurred cumulatively $3.9 million in severance and related expenses. Although
this cost savings initiative is largely complete, the Company is continuing a comprehensive assessment of its operating plan, which
could result in additional initiatives.

17. VENEZUELAN OPERATIONS

In June 2015, we disposed of our Venezuelan operations and realized no gain or loss from the transaction. Our annual
revenues have historically been less than one percent of our consolidated revenues for all periods presented. Because of the
uncertain political environment in Venezuela, starting in the quarter ended February 28,2010, we began to account for Venezuelan
operations pursuant to accounting guidance for hyperinflationary economies. Following the designation of the Venezuelan economy
as hyperinflationary, we ceased taking the effects of currency fluctuations to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and
began reflecting all effects as a component of non-operating income (loss) in our consolidated statements of operations.

Prior to February 1, 2015, we included the results of our Venezuelan operations in our consolidated financial statements
using the consolidation method of accounting. Venezuelan exchange control regulations resulted in an other-than-temporary lack
of exchangeability between the Venezuelan Bolivar and U.S. Dollar, and restricted our Venezuelan operations’ ability to pay
dividends and obligations denominated in U.S. Dollars. These exchange regulations, combined with other Venezuelan regulations,
constrained equipment availability and significantly limited our Venezuelan operations’ ability to maintain normal operations. As
a result of these conditions, and in accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation, we began reporting the results of our Venezuelan
operations using the cost method of accounting. The change, which we made effective February 1, 2015, resulted in a pre-tax
charge of $1.2 million for the year ended May 31, 2015.

18. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

A summary of changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss included within shareholders’ equity is as follows (in
thousands):

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31,2017 December 31, 2016
Foreign Defined Foreign Defined
Currency Foreign benefit Currency Foreign benefit
Translation Currency pension Tax Translation Currency pension Tax
Adjustments Hedge plans Provision Total Adjustments Hedge plans Provision Total
Balance at beginning of
VAT ..eiiiiiiiiiie e $ (31,973) § 5,048 $ (10,518) $ 8,443 $(29,000) $ (28,124) $ 4,567 $ — $ 5,183 $(18,374)
Other comprehensive
income (1088).....c.covveuenennne 10,607 (1,802) 3,297 (2,898) 9,204 (3,849) 481 (10,518) 3,260 (10,626)

Balance at end of year....... $ (21,366) $ 3246 $ (7.221) $ 5545 $(19,796) $ (31,973) $ 5048 $ (10,518) $ 8,443 $ (29,000)
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The following table represents the related tax effects allocated to each component of other comprehensive income (loss) (in
thousands):

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Gross Tax Net Gross Tax Net
Amount Effect Amount Amount Effect Amount
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........ $ 10,607 $ (2919) $ 7,688 $ (3,849) $§ 1351 $ (2,498)
Foreign currency hedge.......c..cccoeveniecncnnncncnn (1,802) 688 (1,114) 481 (181) 300
Defined benefit pension plans..............cccu.e..... 3,297 (667) 2,630 (10,518) 2,090 (8,428)
TOtal ..o $§ 12,102 $ (2,898) $§ 9,204 $ (13,886) $ 3,260 $ (10,626)
Seven Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2015 May 31, 2015
Gross Tax Net Gross Tax Net
Amount Effect Amount Amount Effect Amount
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........ $ (7,228) $ 2,330 $ (4,898) $ (15,822) $§ 2,559 $ (13,263)
Foreign currency hedge.........cccoocvevvvcveniennennen. 101 (39) 62 3,237 (904) 2,333
TOMAL e $ (7,27) $ 2291 $ (4.836) $ (12,585) $ 1,655 $ (10,930)

19. ISSUANCE AND REPURCHASE OF COMMON STOCK

At-the-Market Equity Issuance Program. On November 28, 2016, we filed with the SEC a prospectus supplement, to our
October 2016 shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (the “Shelf Registration Statement”), under which we could have sold up
to $150.0 million of our common stock through an “at-the-market” equity offering program (the “ATM Program”). Through
December 31, 2016, we sold 167,931 shares of common stock under the ATM Program. The net proceeds from such sales were
$6.0 million after deducting the aggregate commissions paid of approximately $0.1 million and were used to reduce outstanding
indebtedness. No shares of common stock were sold under the ATM Program during 2017.

On July 31, 2017, we delivered written notice to Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Raymond James &
Associates, Inc. and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. (collectively, the “Agents”) of our termination of the ATM Equity
Offering®™ Sales Agreement, dated November 28, 2016 (the “Sales Agreement™), pursuant to Section 9(a) thereof. The Sales
Agreement was terminable by us or the Agents for any reason at any time without penalty upon three days’ written notice to the

other party.

In connection with the filing of the Shelf Registration Statement and the commencement of the ATM Program, we capitalized
costs totaling $0.7 million, substantially all of which was written off to selling, general and administrative expense in 2017 after
the cancellation of the ATM Program.

Common Stock Repurchase Plan. On June 23, 2014, our Board authorized an increase in the stock repurchase plan limit
to $50.0 million (less $13.3 million repurchased previously). During year ended May 31, 2015, we repurchased 546,977 shares
for a total cost of $21.1 million. During the year ended December 31, 2016, we repurchased 274,110 shares for a total cost of $7.6
million. In the fourth quarter of 2016, these 821,087 shares were retired and are not included in common stock issued and outstanding
as of December 31, 2016. The retirement of the shares resulted in a reduction in common stock of $0.2 million, a reduction of
$9.1 million to additional paid-in capital, and a $19.4 million reduction to retained earnings. No shares were repurchased during
the year ended December 31, 2017. At December 31, 2017, $7.9 million remained available to repurchase shares under the stock
repurchase plan.

Under the Credit Facility, the Company is limited in its ability to make stock repurchases unless the Total Leverage Ratio
isbelow 2.50 to 1.00. Notwithstanding such provision, in the event that after giving pro forma effect to such repurchase, if Liquidity
(as defined in the Credit Agreement) is at least $15.0 million and the Total Leverage Ratio is less than or equal to 4.00 to 1.00,
the Credit Facility generally permits the Company to make stock repurchases provided that such repurchases, plus any payments
of cash dividends, do not exceed $50.0 million in the aggregate.
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20. TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND SEVEN MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
COMPARATIVE DATA (Unaudited)

The condensed consolidated statements of income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2015 and the seven months
ended December 31, 2014 is as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Twelve Seven
Months Months
Ended Ended
December 31, December 31,
2015 2014
REVEIUES ...ttt ettt ettt et e e bt st e sbee st eesbeeeaneenaee $ 926,356 $ 487,408
OPETALIZ EXPEIISES ...uvenvenruieueetteterierteetestestestetestestestestestesteutebeeseeseebesbesteebesbe st et e be st et ensenteneebeeueenesbeas 655,465 337,977
GTOSS IMATZII ..ceovtiiiiiiietieteete ettt sttt ettt et ettt et e bt eu et s bt bt s b sa et e e s e ae s sn et eneeneeneeneeseeues 270,891 149,431
Selling, general and adminiStrative EXPEISES ........eoververrerrerieiieieeeieeieresteetente ettt et eeenesae e ene 223,078 109,348
Loss on revaluation of contingent CONSIAGIATION .........cevuirieriirierieiiniieieeicete et 522 —
OPEIALINE INCOIMIE ...ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt eb e ebe e b e s bt s bt b s b st et et et et e s et enteneeueebeebeebeenes 47,291 40,083
INEETESt EXPEINSE, NEL .. ..eiiiiiiiieiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt et et e e be e st e b e st e sbeesaneenaee 5,792 1,332
Foreign currency 10SS and OtheT ..........c.coiiiiiriiiiniiiicctcte ettt 2,309 1,197
Income from continuing operations before iNCOMEe taXes ........cceveeverierienieneniene e 39,190 37,554
Less: Provision fOr iNCOIME TAXES ....c..ceuerrertirtirterienteteteteteeteiteieete et ste sttt sttt st et e et ebeebeene i 13,744 13,622
Income from CONtINUING OPETATIONS .....evueeeiruieriiriieriieiterteeite ettt ettt et et e e sbe e teseeenaeseeenbesseenbeennens 25,446 23,932
Income from discontinued operations, net 0f INCOME taX ........cccerereririreririneneneeeteeeeeeeeee e — —
INEE TIMCOIMIC ...ttt ettt a et ettt et e s bt e ate s bt e b e eb e et e e bt et e eb e e bt es e e bt enee bt eneesaeenees 25,446 23,932
Less: income attributable to noncontrolling iNterest...........c.cecveerereririrenireneneneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeas 213 214
Net income attributable to Team shareholders...........cocevieiiiiiiiiiirieeeee e $ 25233 § 23,718
Income from continuing operations per share and net income per share: Basic.........ccccccceeceerenennen. s 121§ 115
Income from continuing operations per share and net income per share: Diluted............c.ccocereeene $ 1.18 $ 1.08
Weighted-average shares outstanding:
BaSIC .ttt bbb bbbttt et ettt beeaes 20,780 20,593
DIIULEA ...ttt ettt b et b et 21,378 21,907
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21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of selected unaudited quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016

(in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31, 2017

First Second Third Fourth Total
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
REVENUES ..o $ 286,554 $ 312,256 $ 285,067 $ 316,334  $ 1,200,211
OPErating 108" ....oooovvvesvcresccrssc $ (12,088) $ (6,693) $ (94,116) $ (2,213) $ (115,110)
Loss from continuing operations.........c..c.ceceeereeneene. $ (9,508) $ (11,086) $ (83,528) $ (39 $ (104,161)
Net loss attributable to Team shareholders............... $ (9,508) $ (11,086) $ (83,528) § (39 8 (104,161)
Basic loss per share:
Continuing OPErations ...........cecevveveeeereereeerereeeene $ 0.32) $ 0.37) $ (2.80) $ — (3.49)
NEELOSS coeviieieieteeieieee e $ 032) $ 0.37) $ (2.80) $ — $ (3.49)
Diluted loss per share:
Continuing OPErations ...........cecevvereeeereereeerereeeenes $ 0.32) $ 0.37) $ (2.80) $ — (3.49)
NEELOSS coeviieieiieteeieieeete e $ 032) $ 0.37) $ (2.80) $ — $ (3.49)
1 Includes a goodwill impairment loss of $75.2 million in the third quarter of 2017.
Year Ended December 31, 2016
First Second Third Fourth Total
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
REVENUES ..ottt $ 250,854 $ 336,440 $ 289,577 $ 319,825 § 1,196,696
Operating income (loss) .. $ (7,380) $ 14,008 $ (4,043) $ (5,703) $ (3,118)
Income (loss) from continuing operations................ $ (6,560) $ 6,970 $ (4,537) $ (8,438) $ (12,565)
Net income (loss) attributable to Team
Shareholders.........ovuvvvvririeiricicieec e $ (6,434) $ 7,356 $ 4,221) $ 9,377) $ (12,676)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing OPerations ...........c.coceeeerereereerereeenennes $ 0.27) 024 $ 0.15) $ 0.29) $ (0.45)
Net income (10SS).....cvrveeeeeriereinireieirieeeeeeees $ 0.27) 025 $ 0.14) $ 032) $ (0.45)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing OPerations ...........c.coeeveeervereerrerererennen $ (0.27) 024 $ 0.15) $ 029) $ (0.45)
Net income (10SS)......cueeeveveerierereniniecnineerecneereeenes $ (0.27) 025 $ 0.14) $ 032) $ (0.45)
22. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Refer to Note 9 for information on the Seventh Amendment to the Credit Facility that we entered into on March 8§, 2018.
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FIVE YEAR COMPARISON

The following table presents our selected financial data. This information has been derived from our audited consolidated
financial statements. This historical data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” (in thousands, except per
share data)

Seven
Months
Ended
Years Ended December 31, December 31, Years Ended May 31,
2017 2016 2015 2015 2014 2013

Statements of operations data:
REVENUES ...t $ 1200211 $ 1,196,696 $ 571,718  $ 842,047 $ 749,527 $ 714,311
Operating income (10SS) ......cceeveverererirrerereerereenes $ (115,110) $ (3,118) $ 19,162 §$ 68,465 §$ 53421 $ 55,602
Income (loss) from continuing operations.......... $ (104,161) $ (12,565) $ 8878 §$ 40,497 $ 30,149 $ 32,714
Net income (loss) attributable to Team
shareholders..........ooovuiiiiiiniiie $ (104,161) $ (12,676) $ 8,878 $ 40,070 $ 29,855 $ 32,436
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Continuing operations ...........c..ceveerrerreerreene $ 3.49) $ 0.45) $ 043 $ 195 § 146 $ 1.61

Net income (10SS).....c.cuvvreererreeecrerneeerenneeeenne $ (3.49) $ 0.45) $ 043 $ 195 $ 146 S 1.61
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Continuing Operations ...........ccccevevverererrerueene $ 3.49) $ 045) $ 041 $ 1.85 $ 140 $ 1.53

Net income (1088).......crrveeinnrriierieernnn. $ (349) $ 0.45) $ 041 $ 185 § 140 $ 1.53
Weighted-average shares outstanding

BaSiC ..o 29,849 28,095 20,852 20,500 20,439 20,203

DATULEd o oevvvecooeee e 29,849 28,095 21,425 21,651 21,285 21,166
Balance sheet data:
Total assets $ 1,055835 $§ 1,147418 § 798,991 § 523833 § 484,941 $ 460,203
Long-term debt and other long-term liabilities .. § 450,583 $ 464,060 $ 368,685 $ 97,234 § 92,753  § 95,209
Stockholders” eqUity ........cceevevevevrreriereiieieeennan $ 457,468 $ 535,637 $ 338,146 $ 335,375 $ 317,045 $ 292,190
Working capital ........cccovveveeinncrinincininiccnenne $ 249,276 $ 253,636 $ 222,399 § 197,472 § 173,671 § 174,114
Noncontrolling interest...........ooovrvrrverervererrenenn. $ — 3 — $ —  $ 6,034 $ 5678 $ 5,384
Other financial data:
Depreciation and amortization ..................cc....... $ 52,143 § 48673 $ 19,426 $ 22,787 $ 21,468 § 19,664
Goodwill impairment 10SS ........cccoceverevrerienenne. $ 75,241 $ — 3 — — 3 — 3 —
Share-based compensation ... .3 7876 $ 7,313 $ 3469 $ 4,838 §$ 4239 $ 3,931
Capital expenditures...........ccceeervereeenreeeereenes $ 36,798 $ 45843 §$ 25,802 $ 28,769 $ 33,016 $ 26,068
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Exhibit 31.1

I, Amerino Gatti, certify that:

1.

b)

d)

b)

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Team, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2018

/S/ AMERINO GATTI

Amerino Gatti
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

I, Greg L. Boane, certify that:

b)

d)

a)

b)

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Team, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2018

/S/" GREG L. BOANE

Greg L. Boane
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Team, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2017 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Amerino Gatti, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15
U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

/S/ AMERINO GATTI

Amerino Gatti
Chief Executive Officer

March 15, 2018



Table of Contents

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Team, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2017 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Greg L. Boane, Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15
U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

/S/" GREG L. BOANE

Greg L. Boane
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

March 15, 2018
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